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CORPORATE PROFILE
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Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”
or “Sunny Optical Technology”’, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) (Stock Code: 2382.HK) is a global leading integrated
optical components and products manufacturer with more than thirty-
five years of history. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
research and development (the “R&D”), manufacture and sales of
optical and optical-related products. Such products include optical
components (such as glass spherical and aspherical lenses, plane
products, handset lens sets, vehicle lens sets, security surveillance
lens sets and other various lens sets) (the “Optical Components”),
optoelectronic products (such as handset camera modules, three
dimensional (the “3D”) optoelectronic products, vehicle modules and
other optoelectronic modules) (the “Optoelectronic Products”) and
optical instruments (such as microscopes and intelligent equipment
for testing) (the “Optical Instruments”). The Group focuses on the
application fields of optoelectronic-related products, such as handsets,
digital cameras, vehicle imaging and sensing systems, security
surveillance systems and virtual reality (‘VR”)/augmented reality (‘AR”),
which are combined with optical, electronic, software and mechanical
technologies.
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Financial Summary

MBEBE

MAIN FINANCIAL INDEXES IN 2020
—E_FFIEUBRR

Revenue Net Profit
A =
== 38,001.8 =0 | 4,940.3
RMB million AR¥EEET RMB milion AR¥EE & T
YoY YoY

Gross Profit Margin
— ER =R

22.9%

Net Profit Margin
BFRIE

13.0%

|

+2.4ppt
YoY

+2.4ppt
YoY

Net Assets

EERE

16,826.1

RMB milion AR E & T

+32.2%
YoY

—

O

AN

Earnings per Share - Basic

BREF - EF

4.46

RMB AR# T

+22.2%
YoY
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(in Renminbi ("RMB’) million, except for per share amounts)

(AREBET - BRTHFIL)

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEMBHRE

For the year ended 31 December

Et=A=t-ALEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
_?_?ﬂi :/\_j-LEE _T )-\g /\Eﬁ

Consolidated

g A
jaN=)
Operating results & & ¥4
Revenue WA 38,001.8 37,848.7 25,931.9 22,366.3 14,611.8
Gross profit 7| 8,697.9 7,750.7 4,913.1 4,802.8 2,680.1
Finance costs @& A A (233.7) (250.4) (202.1) (48.8) (16.2)
Profit before tax &% A 3 7l 5,642.9 4,550.4 2,851.3 3,318.3 1,446.4
Income tax expense FT5FiFH (702.6) (531.0) (338.6) (404.2) (174.8)
Profit for the year FREF] 4,940.3 4,019.4 2,512.7 2,914.1 1,271.6
Attributable to: 538 :
— Owners of the Company
NN} 3 4,871.8 3,991.3 2,490.9 2,901.6 1,270.8
— Non-controlling interests
PR 68.5 28.1 21.8 12.5 0.8
4,940.3 4,019.4 2,512.7 2,914.1 1,271.6
Earnings per share - Basic (in RMB)
BREFN - ER(ARYE) 4.46 3.65 2.28 2.67 1.18
Assets and liabilities EER &&
Non-current assets IERBN A & 9,808.6 8,247 .1 6,083.7 4,090.9 2,318.7
Current assets BN &&E 25,629.5 22,446.0 16,768.4 11,635.4 9,317.9
Total assets BEE 35,438.1 30,693.1 22,852.1 15,726.3 11,636.6
Bank borrowings $R1TEE 2,070.6 1,118.6 1,482.4 1,347.9 904.3
Bonds payable fEfT{E% 3,895.9 4,156.1 4,080.0 - -
Other liabilities H & & 12,645.5 12,692.2 8,001.6 6,859.2 5,819.0
Total liabilities #& & 18,612.0 17,966.9 13,564.0 8,207.1 6,723.3
Net assets EEFE 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,519.2 4,913.3
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
VNNV ey 16,597.2 12,552.9 9,234.1 7,488.5 4,895.3
Non-controlling interests FE#5 A% # 2 228.9 173.3 54.0 30.7 18.0
Total equity #5458 16,826.1 12,726.2 9,288.1 7,519.2 4,913.3
Key financial ratio T E 8Lt =
Gross profit margin (%) £ 5% (%) 22.9 20.5 18.9 21.5 18.3
Net profit margin (%) /% I & (%) 13.0 10.6 9.7 13.0 8.7
Gearing ratio (%) B & E (%) 16.8 17.2 24.3 8.6 7.8
Current ratio (times) 8L R (£2) 1.9 1.8 1.9 1.5 1.4

[w=]
Quick ratio (times) RENEL R (%) 1.5 1.4 1.6 1.2 1.0
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

Dear Shareholders,

The Company is pleased to present to the shareholders the annual
report for the year of 2020. In 2020, the worldwide spread of
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19"), the rapid and profound
development in global political landscape and the everchanging global
economic environment have formed an unprecedented tremendous
change in the past century, which threatened the development of
many corporations. However, the Group worked together with all
of its employees to get through this difficult period and achieved
excellent performance in pandemic prevention and control, resumption
of work and production as well as the enhancement of operational
performance, which continuously created value for shareholders.
Besides, some relevant subsidiaries of the Group actively responded
to the need in pandemic prevention by working overtime during the
pandemic to produce key components for anti-pandemic products,
which satisfied the anti-pandemic requirement at that time and fulfilled
its corporate responsibility. The Group has received wide acclaim from
the society.

Mr. YE Liaoning
REERE

BUR
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MRETEBNRRL BT TEEXREE R
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, due to the wide spread of the pandemic around the world,
the overall global economy has declined, coupled with the sudden
changes in the international situation and the Sino-U.S. trade friction,
the market environment has undergone tremendous changes. In
spite of challenges, the Group continued to consolidate and exploit
its existing advantageous businesses. By improving R&D capabilities,
promoting automated manufacturing processes and strengthening
cost control capabilities, the Group has solidified its supreme position
in the industry. The Group continued to increase investment in new
businesses, made every effort to develop emerging businesses and
nurtured new business growth points in order to deploy a layout for
sustainable development in the future. At the same time, the Group
further promoted the transformation of human resources and fostered
the construction of digitalization in human resources while energizing
the management cadres and human resources management group.
With the implementation of a series of corporate cultural activities,
the comprehension and awareness of the corporate culture by all
employees have been greatly enhanced, thereby ensuring the provision
of talents for the continuous and rapid development of the Company.

During the year under review, despite the unfavourable situation of the
year-on-year decline in the global smartphone industry and vehicle
camera industry, the Group’s major businesses achieved good results.
The shipment volume of handset related businesses continued to hit
new heights. Moreover, the Group made breakthroughs in business
and technology for high-end products, further increasing its global
market share and market competitiveness. Despite the circumstances
of decline in the global vehicle sales, the vehicle related businesses
still achieved growth. The business of vehicle lens sets continued
to maintain the global No.1 in market share. The infrared related
business emerged during the outbreak of the pandemic which did
not only achieve impressive growth in business performance, but also
make contributions to fighting the pandemic. Other businesses and
emerging businesses also made breakthroughs and developments
in the aspects of technological R&D, market expansion and stable
delivery.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

During the year under review, in view of the continued recurrence
of the COVID-19 and the pandemic is influential to the future
development of the country, enterprise, family and individual, the
Group was highly concerned about the prevention and control of
the pandemic and actively adopted various measures to ensure that
all employees returned to their work positions safely, and to orderly
resume the production of all its subsidiaries in a relatively short time.
The Group responded swiftly and formulated the Working Plan of
Emergency Response Organizations and Management Groups for
Pandemic Prevention”, and established 11 working teams covering
overall coordination, temperature measurement, sterilization,
quarantine, canteen, dormitory, procurement, human resources,
finance, monitoring and outreach publicity in order to make a thorough
action, and also adopted the “Three Colors Classified Management
Method and Grid Management Method for the Staff (E T=®{t 5 BE
T2 EHEKIEERE) in order to make deliberate deployment for the
pandemic prevention and strictly implement various prevention and
control measures in various departments of the Group. The Group has
also specially appointed two famous doctors as its health consultants
to provide professional medical guidance on the pandemic prevention
to effectively protect the health of staff and production safety. Under
the leadership of management and the continuous efforts of all
employees, the Group strictly adhered to precautions to ensure orderly
production and timely delivery of its products as scheduled, thereby
winning unanimous praise from customers. The Group will further
improve the emergency response plan and conduct practical trainings
to enhance the risk management and optimize the internal control
systems.

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

In 2020, with the concerted efforts of all employees and under
the leadership of the energetic, experienced and forward-looking
management, the Group always adhered to the core value of “Create
Together” of the corporate culture, actively carrying forward the
entrepreneurial spirit of working hard, innovative spirit of keeping
up with the times and the team spirit of solidarity. The Group has
achieved a satisfying business performance.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue increased
by approximately 0.4% to approximately RMB38,001.8 million. Profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased by
approximately 22.1% to approximately RMB4,871.8 million. Besides,
the basic earnings per share increased by approximately 22.2%
to approximately RMB445.78 cents. The board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”, each a “Director”) has proposed a final
dividend of approximately RMB0.888 (equivalent to HK$1.057) (2019:
approximately RMBO0.728) per share.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes that promoting the sustainable development of
the environment is the unshirkable responsibility of an enterprise,
and the sustainable development of an enterprise shall also be its
long-term policy of business operation. The Group believes that the
harmonious development of society requires the concerted efforts of
every individual and organization. The Group is willing to undertake
the social responsibility as a corporate citizen consciously in the
aspects of economic development, social security, cultural education
and environmental protection, making a long-term commitment to
foster the civilization progression and sustainable development of the
society. Therefore, the Group always adheres to the core value of
“Create Together” in the production and operation process, striving to
provide customers with higher quality products and services as well
as continuing to improve the satisfaction of customers, society and
shareholders and at the same time to realize the rapid development
of various businesses. While pursuing outstanding performance, the
Group also realizes that sustainable development is the cornerstone
for the Group to be stronger, bigger and go further in order to achieve
the corporate vision of becoming a “Hundred-Year-Old Brand” in
the optoelectronic industry. The Group has always taken all factors
of sustainable development into consideration in corporate strategy
formulation and routine operation and management in order to strive
for achieving sustainable profit growth. The Environmental, Social and
Governance Report for 2020 of the Group will be published before the
end of June 2021, which will be available on the website of HKEXnews
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”) (http://www.hkexnews.hk) or the website of the
Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com).
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Chairman’s Statement
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OUTLOOK

In 2021,
countries have started the vaccination against the novel coronavirus,

COVID-19 will continue to rage globally. Although various

it still takes a certain period of time for the global economy to recover
from the damages caused by the pandemic. On the other hand, the
Sino-U.S. trading friction is still not optimistic, and the global economic
environment will become more complicated and severe. At the same
time, the Group also sees the emerging and continued development of
a new round of technological revolution and industrial transformation,
and the rapid development of intelligentization and digitalization
have brought a broad development space for the optoelectronic
sector. With the deepening application of 5G and artificial intelligence
(“Al"), and the gradual implementation and commercialization of the
application of ultra-high-definition video, AR/VR and autonomous
driving, it is expected to see the continuous prosperity of the market
for optical related products. Leveraging on its leading position in the
industry, the Group will firmly seize the development opportunities
in the optoelectronic industry, fully leverage on its own competitive
advantages to further broaden the application fields of products. The
Group is committed to becoming the world’s leading manufacturer of
integrated optical components and products and a strategic partner of
international renowned enterprises.

Looking forward, the Group will firmly implement the “Mingpeijue” ($
it /) strategy, continue to create values for the customers and seize
the new market opportunities, enhance the core competitiveness of
R&D and production in order to achieve sustainable development and
promote the integration of information technology and production
technology. Besides, the Group will also swiftly promote the
construction of Yuyao Chengxi Production Base and overseas bases
in order to lay the foundation for the medium- to long-term rapid
development of the Group. The Group believes that opportunities are
always more than challenges. | will lead all employees to continue
to go forward and move on the path ahead in order to repay

shareholders with good performance and give back to the society.

RE

—T - —F - COVID- 195 #HEE R EREE -
BARECHBERTTRS  BRI1B ﬁwi
HEENSENEE—BREMNEE

B PEBFEBEETRLE iﬁ%@
BEREAEMMERE - R AEBHOER
F—milEEaNEEEE HFE KR -
bt BFEHPRRERE N EAFTRT ER
R - BEESG - ATERE(TAL) EMA
BRE - BEaRE - AR/VR - BB B ETE
BELSEMEEL - HERBEERNTSA
SELREBELE o BIEMITEPMELIA -

&0 b

$E@%§%ﬂﬁﬁ EEXNEREE o
RESNBRFEDS  E-PHRERNER

R BOIRKARERBENGERBTHR
EmtERMERANEEENBESIERHY -

REARR  AEESBEIBHER B A]

BE SER/TPAEEE  BEILENOD
BB ReMBENRENRLBEZHIAESR
AR RR - WSS BRI EELE R AY A
B o ks - REB R REHEE RYIR TR ESE

HEABIEMNTIRER - SAKED R
MREHREFTER - AEERE  HERE
%%%ﬁ’$khﬁ%A%iI%\§4Em
EEI’J BRLE - AREFOERERFER - BT

mE}



APPRECIATION

The Group would like to express its appreciation to all of its staff for
their long-term efforts and to the management for their outstanding
contributions. It is the unremitting efforts of each member that enable
the Group to make great achievements. Meanwhile, the Group wishes
to express its sincere gratitude towards its shareholders, customers
and business partners for their long-standing support and recognition.
The Group will continue to strive for the sustainable development of
the business, so as to realise higher values for its shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

China
17 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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MARKET REVIEW

Looking back in 2020, the sudden occurrence of COVID-19 severely
affected the global economy and the economic activities of production,
consumption, investments are all at a historical low, with the macro-
economy facing tremendous pressure. As governments at all levels
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) paid great attention to
the pandemic and took effective prevention and control measures, the
enterprises in the PRC took the lead to resume work and production,
and the annual gross domestic product achieved positive growth. The
social governance capabilities in the PRC attracted global attention.
However, the changes in the international situation and the Sino-U.S.
trading friction have changed faster than expected, leading to changes
in the layout of the smartphone market. The performance of the
terminal smartphone market is unfavourable, with the sales channels
being blocked and the tension in the supply chain production, all of
which had caused a decrease in the overall shipment volume in the
smartphone market. According to the latest data issued by a market
analyst firm, Canalys, the global shipment volume of smartphones
in 2020 was approximately 1,264,700,000 units,
decrease of approximately 7.5% compared to that of 2019. The

representing a

stringent market conditions led to more intense competition among
the smartphone brand manufacturers. Nevertheless, despite being in
the cold winter of the market, the smartphone brand manufacturers
were still in high sentiment and dedicated to tackling the challenge
ahead. In 2020, although the downgraded specification of smartphone
cameras presented, in order to achieve breakthroughs in model
sales and continue to increase market share, various well-known
smartphone brand manufacturers were still looking for cameras
with new specifications to increase competitive advantages via
differentiated performance, such as ultra-high resolution, ultra-large
image size, ultra-large aperture, ultra-wide angle, ultra-miniaturization,
high time optical zoom, optical image stabilization in a bid to improve
user experiences. Relying on the market-driven technological
innovation, the Group actively invested in R&D of new products,
and conducted in-depth cooperation with mainstream smartphone
brand manufacturers to further develop and consolidate its leading
technological advantages in the optical-related industries.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, under the background of the sweeping of the COVID-19
across the globe, the automobile markets of various countries were
under tremendous pressure, and the global new vehicle sales dropped
drastically. According to the information updated by Techno Systems
Research (“TSR”), a Japanese research firm, in February 2021, the
global new vehicle sales in 2020 decreased by approximately 17.0%
compared to that of 2019, and the number of vehicle cameras
decreased by approximately 3.4% year-on-year. However, with the
development of the “electrified, connected, intelligent, shared” of
vehicle driving, the gradual improvement in the penetration rate of
advanced driver assistance systems (‘ADAS”) and the increase in the
level of autonomous driving, the market demand for vehicle cameras
has started to increase rapidly. On one hand, the ADAS needs to be
equipped with more vehicle cameras, which opens up the market to
cope with the increase in the penetration rate of vehicle cameras. On
the other hand, the ADAS has a higher requirement for the functions
and quality of vehicle cameras, especially the side, surround, front,
and in-cabin view and other lens sets, which will impose higher
requirements on various functional indicators such as accuracy and
reliability of the optical components of the vehicle cameras, thereby
driving the development of vehicle cameras with high specification.

In addition, with the gradual and deepening promotion of the
commercialization of smart driving, governments of various
countries have introduced relevant policies and laws to promote the
development of the vehicle camera industry. In April 2019, the Korean
government promulgated the “Law on Promoting and Supporting
the Commercialization of Autonomous Vehicles” which was officially
implemented on May 1, 2020 and aimed to encourage the South
Korea Ministry of Land Infrastructure and Transport to designate
safe zones for autonomous driving and invest in the construction of
autonomous road infrastructure and intelligent transportation systems
within the zones to assist the safe driving of autonomous vehicles.
In December 2020, the Ministry of Transport of the PRC put forward
the “Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Development and Application
of Road Traffic Autonomous Driving Technology”, stating that by
2025, active progress will be made in the basic theoretical research
of autonomous driving and road infrastructure, with significant
breakthroughs to be made in key technologies such as intelligence of
basic facilities for road facilities and vehicle-road synergy, as well as
product development and test verification; introduction of a number
of basic and key standards for autonomous driving; establishment of
a number of national-level autonomous driving test bases and pilot
application demonstration projects, and to realize their application in
partial scenarios as to promote the application of industrialization of
autonomous driving technology. Leveraging on its own technological
innovation and industry leading advantages, the Group will fully benefit
from the rapid development in the vehicle camera industry.
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In the optical instrument market, COVID-19 has brought a certain
degree of influence on the technological research, medical,
educational and industrial fields. The large-scale suspension in
work and production have caused a weak demand continuously in
overseas markets. However, benefited from the growth of domestic
semiconductor investment and the drive for localization of equipment,
the demand in the PRC market has recovered significantly, particularly
for the outstanding performance in the industrial field.

The Group has also made in-depth expansion in other emerging
businesses and acquired substantial progress and breakthroughs.
In terms of the biological identification business, the Group has
deployed a series of biological identification lens sets. In addition,
with the gradual landing and clarification of 3D vision-related market
applications, the time of flight (“TOF”) products and technical solutions
of the Group can be applied to robotic vision, facial recognition
payment, smart retail, smart logistics and other related fields. The
Group’s 3D interactive lens sets adopted new interactive technology
that can provide a variety of different types of 3D interactive lens
sets in accordance with customer demands. The TOF lens sets can
carry out real time distance assessment to obtain depth information
of objects; the dual-camera wide-angle solution can realize the
interaction between human and machine; and the ultra-thin design can
realize the miniaturization of terminal products. In addition to improving
its own R&D capabilities, the Group has also strengthened in-depth
cooperation with top global high-tech companies, thereby laying a
solid foundation for the Group’s future development in the new fields.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, facing the drastic industrial changes,
the impact of the normalized pandemic and the continuing trade
frictions, the Group maintained a leading position in the industry
through the following aspects: 1. continued to make breakthroughs
in key technologies, improved the construction of the R&D system
and enhanced the technological value added to the products; 2.
optimised the manufacturing management process and organisation
structure continuously, innovated the technological skills persistently,
accelerated to propel the processes of automatic inspection, and
elevated the value added to the production; and 3. Optimized
suppliers and supply channels persistently, standardised the
management procedures, improved the management efficiency and

accuracy, and reduced the operating costs.

In order to prevent operating risks effectively in intellectual property
rights, the Group has established a professional intellectual property
rights management team and has been proactively formulating overall
planning in relation to patent layout. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group had 2,096 granted patents, including 623 invention patents,
1,421 utility model patents and 52 exterior design patents. In addition,

another 3,212 patent applications are pending approval.
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OPTICAL COMPONENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from the Optical
Components business segment was approximately RMB9,181.1
million, representing an increase of approximately 4.1% compared to
that of last year. This segment accounted for approximately 24.2% of
the Group’s total revenue, compared to approximately 23.3% of last
year.

During the year under review, the shipment volume of handset lens
sets of the Group amounted to 1,529,757,000 units,
an increase of approximately 13.9% compared to that of last year,

representing

achieving a record high, with 6P and above products accounting
for approximately 24.7% of the shipment volume. Other than the
increased shipment volume, the Group also paid great attention to
“quality improvement”. Therefore, by continuously strengthening R&D
and engineering capabilities, the Group has successfully developed
a number of high-specification products during the year under
review, mainly including continuous zoom handset lens sets, 8P
high-resolution handset lens sets, freeform handset lens sets and
millimeter-scale ultra-macro shooting handset lens sets. At the same
time, the Group’s 100-mega pixel large image size handset lens sets
and supers-mall distortion wide-angle (115°) handset lens sets have
commenced mass production. In addition, with extensive experience
and leading technological advantages in the optical field, the Group
actively developed emerging optical markets and engaged in the
development of lens sets and other optical components applied in VR/
AR, 3D sensing, smart home, drones and motion tracking, etc. During
the year, the sales of the Group’s VR lens sets and lenses and 3D
interactive lens sets achieved further breakthroughs and generated

considerable economic benefits.
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In terms of the vehicle lens sets business, affected by the global
pandemic in the first half of the year, the Group’s shipment to
overseas customers was delayed; while overseas customers gradually
resumed work in the second half of the year, the Group’s shipment
of vehicle lens sets rebounded rapidly. During the year under review,
the shipment volume of vehicle lens sets of the Group amounted to
56,174,000 units,

compared to that of last year.

representing an increase of approximately 12.1%
Meanwhile, the Group achieved
breakthroughs in the innovation of vehicle lens sets technology
continuously. The Group completed the R&D of 2-mega pixel hybrid
front-view vehicle lens sets which can overcome the technological
barrier of temperature stability of lens sets containing plastic lenses. In
addition, the pure glass 8-mega pixel front-view vehicle lens sets with

glass aspherical lenses commenced mass production and delivery.

In addition, the Group speeded up product development and market
layout in the emerging vehicle optical components business and
actively developed new business growth points. During the year under
review, the Group completed the R&D of megapixel smart headlight
lens sets of vehicle which can help to seize the opportunities in the
industry.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 1,084 granted patents have
been obtained by the Group in the Optical Components business
segment, including 285 invention patents, 794 utility model patents
and 5 exterior design patents. In addition, 1,788 patents are pending

approval.
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OPTOELECTRONIC PRODUCTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from the
Optoelectronic Products business segment was approximately
RMB28,494.3 million, representing a slight decrease of approximately
0.9% compared to that of last year. This segment accounted for
approximately 75.0% of the Group’s total revenue, compared to
approximately 76.0% of last year.

During the year under review, the shipment volume of handset camera
modules of the Group amounted to 592,878,000 units, representing
an increase of approximately 9.7% compared to that of last year,
with the periscope modules and large image size (image size is
1/1.7” and above) modules accounting for approximately 10.3% of
the shipment volume. During the year, due to the global outbreak of
the pandemic, end-customer demand was weak and the shipment
volume of smartphone continued to decline, and the camera industry
experienced downgrade in specification and configuration. However,
the Group firmly believed that the specification of smartphone
camera will continue to upgrade in the future. Therefore, the Group
actively invested in R&D and strengthened the researches on core
technology. Meanwhile, in line with customer demand and the latest
development trends of the industry, the Group has completed the
R&D of continuous zoom handset camera modules and sensor-shift
handset camera modules. In addition, gimbal stabilization handset
camera modules and handset camera modules with the second-
generation of molding on board and second-generation of molding on
chip packaging technique have commenced mass production.

In order to further improve product yield rate, enhance production
efficiency and strengthen competitiveness, the Group has further
optimised the production line process of handset camera modules
during the year. The Optical Reflection System-Active Alignment
independently developed by the Group has been put into use. Such
equipment can provide high-precision assembly solutions for a variety
of high-end periscopic products.

In terms of the vehicle modules business, the Group continued to
plan systematically for product roadmap focusing on market and
customer demand, and increased the added value of products with
unique technological innovations, achieving breakthroughs in business
progress. During the year, the Group has completed the R&D of front-
view, side-view and rear-view vehicle modules which are all 8-mega
pixel.
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In addition, the Group continued to build a robotic vision platform,
deploying the two product lines of robotic recognition and positioning.
In terms of the recognition business, the face live detection solution
based on structured light and ToF has obtained the Bank Card Test
Center enhanced-level certification, thereby allowed to enter the
supply chain of UnionPay system customers; the face scan payment
solution based on ToF technology has obtained the WeChat testing
certification, thereby allowed to enter the supply chain of WeChat pay
equipment manufacturer customers; and the Group completed the
development of structured light system applied to smart door locks,
and conducted strategic cooperation with customers. In terms of the
positioning business, the Group completed the R&D of the ToF-related
algorithm of the sweeping robot and the development of the binocular
solution, and completed the project delivery with key customers.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 836 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optoelectronic Products business
segment, including 305 invention patents, 509 utility model patents
and 22 exterior design patents. In addition, 1,354 patents are pending

approval.
OPTICAL INSTRUMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from the Optical
Instruments business segment was approximately RMB326.4 million,
representing an increase of approximately 14.6% compared to that
of last year. This segment accounted for approximately 0.8% of the
Group'’s total revenue, compared to approximately 0.7% of last year.

In terms of the microscopes business, the Group completed the
R&D of the first ultra-wide field of view (30mm) high magnification
objective (20X and 60X) in China and commenced mass production.
The objective can observe high-resolution images with a large
field of view, which is 44.0% higher than that of the conventional
apochromatic objective. In addition, the Group completed the R&D of
a high-precision and high-speed switchable laser scanning confocal
microscope. The microscope has the functions of high-precision
scanning for fixed sections and high-speed scanning for living cells,
and its scanning field of view and speed performance are at the
domestic leading level.
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In terms of the intelligent equipment business, the Group continued to
place strong emphasis on medical and industrial fields. In the medical
field, the Group completed the R&D of immunofluorescence screening
equipment for peripheral blood and commenced mass production
and sales. The equipment adopts multi-band fluorescence imaging,
precision scanning and image analysis technology, which can be
applied to the field of immunological testing for rheumatic disease.
At the same time, in order to address the issue of shortage of expert
medical resources in county hospitals in remote areas, based on the
existing pathology scanner products, the Group developed a digital
pathology remote consultation platform, which further improved the
medical industry ecosystem and promoted the sales of scanners. In
addition, in the industrial field, the Group continued to develop online
inspection equipment for defects in precision components, constantly
improved core capabilities such as Al algorithms, ultra-depth-of-
field vision technology and high-precision laser focusing module
technology, and commenced mass sales of testing equipment in key
market areas.

As at 31 December 2020, a total of 176 granted patents have been
obtained by the Group in the Optical Instruments business segment,
including 33 invention patents, 118 utility model patents and 25

exterior design patents. In addition, 70 patents are pending approval.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB38,001.8 million, representing a slight increase
of approximately 0.4% compared to that of last year. The slight
increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the fact that in 2020,
the shipment volume of the Group’s three main products (namely
handset lens sets, vehicle lens sets and handset camera modules)
increased compared to that of 2019, and the market share increased
further. However, affected by the global pandemic, the average selling
price of handset lens sets and handset camera modules decreased
year-on-year due to the downgraded specification and configuration
across the handset camera industry, which partially offset the revenue
growth brought by the increased shipment volume.

Revenue generated from the Optical Components business segment
was approximately RMB9,181.1 million, representing a slight increase
of approximately 4.1% compared to that of last year. The slight
increase in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase in the
shipment volume of handset lens sets and vehicle lens sets, while the
average selling price of handset lens sets decreased year-on-year due
to the downgraded specification and configuration across the handset
camera industry, which partially offset the revenue growth resulting
from the increased shipment volume. Meanwhile, the infrared lens sets
performed well.

Revenue generated from the Optoelectronic Products business
segment was approximately RMB28,494.3 million, representing a
slight decrease of approximately 0.9% compared to that of last year.
The slight decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the increase
in the shipment volume of handset camera modules, while the average
selling price of handset camera modules decreased year-on-year due
to the downgraded specification and configuration across the handset
camera industry, which offset the revenue growth resulting from the
increased shipment volume.

Revenue generated from the Optical Instruments business segment
was approximately RMB326.4 million, representing an increase of
approximately 14.6% compared to that of last year. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to the increased market demand for
optical instruments for application in domestic industrial sector.
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Gross Profit and Margin

The gross profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB8,697.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 12.2% compared to that of last year. The gross profit
margin was approximately 22.9% (2019: approximately 20.5%), which
was approximately 2.4 percentage points higher compared to that of
last year. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable
to the improvement in gross profit margin of handset camera modules
under Optoelectronic Products business segment which contributed
approximately 75.0% of the Group'’s total revenue, from 9.3% in 2019
to 12.6% in 2020.

The gross profit margins of Optical Components business segment,
Optoelectronic Products business segment and Optical Instruments
business segment were approximately 42.8%, 12.6% and 39.2%,
respectively (2019: approximately 45.2%, 9.3% and 41.3%

respectively).
Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 increased by approximately RMB34.9 million
compared to that of last year to approximately RMB313.5 million.
It accounted for approximately 0.8% of the Group’s revenue during
the year, compared to approximately 0.7% of last year. The increase
in absolute amount was primarily attributable to the increase in the
headcount and remuneration of sales staff.

R&D Expenditure

The R&D expenditure of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 increased by approximately RMB289.8 million compared to that
of last year to approximately RMB2,499.1 million. It accounted for
approximately 6.6% of the Group’s revenue during the year, compared
to approximately 5.9% of last year.

expenditure was attributable to the Group’s continuous investments in

The increase in overall R&D

the upgrade of existing products and the R&D of products related to
the emerging businesses.
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Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 increased by approximately RMB68.2 million
compared to that of last year to approximately RMB718.6 million.
It accounted for approximately 1.9% of the Group’s revenue during
the year, compared to approximately 1.7% of last year. The increase
in absolute amount was primarily attributable to the increase in the
headcount and remuneration of administrative staff, the grant of
restricted shares and the construction of informatisation.

Income Tax Expense

The income tax expense of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 increased by approximately RMB171.7 million
compared to that of last year to approximately RMB702.6 million. The
increase in absolute amount was mainly attributable to the increase
in profit before tax. The Group’s effective tax rate was approximately
12.5% during the year, compared to approximately 11.7% of last year.

The tax rates applicable to the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
shown as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Type of subsidiaries
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lEmﬂftﬁzﬁﬁsﬁiiiigJJD%@/\Eﬁ%S,zoo,ooo
T EEHARKET18,600,0007T 0 RERMN
REBBAL1.9%  XFEHLH1.7% - BE
RESHENENEEZRANITHE TAERS
BHEF - REVERG D RS BLER -

RS

HE_ZT_ZTHF+_A=+—HIEHFE "
AEENASEHAIREFEMOARE
171,700,0007C - EEX AK® 702,600,000
Lo EHREHSENIENEZESHRKREA
EWAIEI e RFER - REBEBNE RH R L
12.5% » EFAIHI11.7% °

TRETAEESRENBAANEFHE

MEAREE M A RIEE
(Expected) (Expected)
(F25) (FEH)
**Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. Limited liability company
(“Sunny Zhejiang Optics’) (Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)
NI FABER AR BRETAR
([#FHIKE]) (ABREE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
“*Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. Limited liability company
(“Sunny Instruments”) (Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau joint venture)
TERRTFEEERA BREEAR
([#FESE]) (ABREE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
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Name of subsidiaries

o) PR

**Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Zhongshan Optics”)

“RTRE (FIL) BARAF
([RFRLXE])

**Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Opotech”)

CERBRTHERSARAA

([#FXE])

**Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Infrared Optics”)
CERBETAINMBRAF]
([BFAINEE])

“*Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech
Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Automotive Optech’)

“ERRTEHNERMERAT
([REEHEKLE])

“*Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Xinyang Optics”)

HEBREREERAT
(B EBAE )

“Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence
(Yuyao)’)

AR TR BRMER AR
(IRFERLE (8K)])

Type of subsidiaries
o] NGk <Eidl

(Expected)
(F2H)
Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic
joint venture)
BREFAR
(ABREZNGE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(Taiwan, Hong Kong or
Macau and domestic
joint venture)
BREFAF
(ABRERNEE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
(INERELERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
BEREERA
(INERELFEANBE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(investment by foreign
investment company)
BREFAT
(INERELERE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

Limited liability company
(legal person sole
investment)

BREMTAT
CEABE) 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%

(Expected)
(F85)

15.0%

15.0%

156.0%

156.0%

15.0%

15.0%
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Name of subsidiaries

Type of subsidiaries

(n)- NG )= NGt
(Expected) (Expected)
(F2H) (FEE)
Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision Limited liability company
Optics Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny Shanghai Optics”) investment by foreign
investment company)
FERFERAREXEERDA BREMERA
([BFLBXE]) (INEREBEENBE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny Intelligent Technology”) investment)
BRFEFEEREERAA AREERR
([RFEREREK]) CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Sunny Group Company Limited Limited liability company
(“Sunny Group’) (legal person sole
investment by foreign
investment company)
RFEEARLNA AREERA
([#F&E]) INERECREANEE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
“Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Limited liability company
Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”)
WMIRFEEAERMARAR] BREFAF
([RTEELE]) 12.5% 12.5% 12.5% 25.0%
“*Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research Limited liability company
Institute Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny Research Institute”) investment)
“RFRE NI HERER AT AREERA
([#FHER]) OEABE) 25.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
‘Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Limited partnership company
Sunxin Investment Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
(‘Ningbo Sunxin Investment’)
ERGILRTERZEREERE BREREE
AREE (BRER) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(lBRRERE]) TEA TER P AiEmA
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Name of subsidiaries

Type of subsidiaries

i) PN i) NGkl
(Expected) (Expected)
(F2H) (FEH)
Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Limited liability company
Sunyi Investment Co., Ltd.
(“‘Ningbo Sunyi Investment’)
ERBILRTEERBREETEERAT ARETAR
([ERRBRE]) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Yuyao City Sunny Huitong Microcredit  Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(‘Sunny Huitong”) investment)
Sk mRFER N EERERAR BREMELR
([#FER]) CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Ningbo Sunny OmniLight Limited liability company
Technology Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny OmniLight Technology”) investment)
ERBFRREMERRA BREMERA
([P RAHLI]) CEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo) Limited liability company
Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny Mobility”) investment)
BRBRFEITERRMAERDA BREERA
((RFETER]) OEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
*@Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead Limited liability company
Technologies Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Sunny SmartLead”) investment)
O IR FEARMAR LA BREERA
([RFPEERLI]) CEABE) 25.0% 15.0% 15.0% 15.0%
Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing Limited liability company
Technology Co., Ltd. (legal person sole
(“Shanghai Wissen”) investment)
FEAREHERRMERLDA BREMERA
(=->F3) OEABE) 25.0% 25.0% 25.0% 25.0%
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Type of subsidiaries
o] NGk <Eidl

MEQR B

BEENWED

*Ningbo Yuanheng Supply Chain Limited liability company

Management Co., Ltd. (legal person sole

(“‘Ningbo Yuanheng”) investment)
"R TEREEERERA R BREMELF
(rERnE]) OEABE)

The companies were recognised as Hi-Tech Enterprises prior to the
balance sheet date.

The companies have obtained Hi-Tech Enterprise Certification with the
expiry dates on 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021 or 31 December
2022.

The company was recognised as a Software Company prior to the balance
sheet date, and is entitled to the preferential policies of full exemption from
enterprise income tax for the first two years and 50% reduction for the
subsequent three years.

The partners of the company shall be liable for the income tax on their
own as it is a limited partnership company.

The company’s registered name has been changed from Ningbo Wissen
Intelligent Sensing Technology Co., Ltd. to Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead

Technologies Co., Ltd. during the year.

The company was established or acquired during the year.

(Expected) (Expected)
(FEH) (FEE)
25.0% 25.0% 25.0%

ZERRNEEBABRERDIRM B -

ZEARREBRFRELEER - AUHE
T A=+—A —F-—%+-A4
= -AR=F==FI=A=-A

ZARNEERIIHREREMEE TR
ST EMFRERER=FRIHENETR

v
o

ZATBARABLY  HABABTARNE
B o

RER - ZARZMEBERERARE LERK
BRAAR AR AN TIRTEARMER AR -

ZERANAEE AR -
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Profit for the Year and Net Profit Margin

The profit for the year of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB4,940.3 million,
increase of approximately 22.9% compared to that of last year. The

representing an

increase in profit for the year was mainly attributable to the increase
in gross profit. The net profit margin was approximately 13.0% (2019:
approximately 10.6%).

Profit for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company and Earnings per Share

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB4,871.8
million, representing an increase of approximately 22.1% compared to
that of last year. The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2020 was approximately RMB445.78 cents,
an increase of approximately 22.2% compared to that of last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

representing

Cash Flows

The table below summarises the Group’s cash flows for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019:

EE%/;HEE
Net cash used in investing activities ¥ & /& E TR IR & F 58
Net cash used in financing activities &t & & &) A & F58

Net cash from operating activities &% E &) FT15

FREN KRR =

HE-_T-_ZTF+-_A=+—HIFE  &&
lE@EW/ﬁﬁﬂ%@AE%4,940,300,00075 CE
EEEINA22.9% - FRFEFENEZELA B
ERHAN o FEFERAH13.0% (ZT—NEF : 4
10.6%) °

RRARREEFAREINRSREF

HEZT-_ZEF+-A=+—HILFE &2
AR R EAE F R T 49 A R #4,871,800,000
T OREFEMNO221% c HE B -FF
+TZA=Z+—HLFE  FREABIHAR
#445.78% + MEAFIEMNA22.2% °

MENE & R M BORIR
RERE

TR AKEEE_T-_ZF+_A=1—

BRZZE-—NF+ZA=+—HIEFENES
MEWME

BE+-A=t—HLEE

2020 2019

g g 222 —NEF

RMB million RMB million

AR¥®BEETR ARBEETT

7,160.0 4,661.6

(5,976.2) (3,655.8)

(222.3) (1,441.4)
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The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash on hand and
net cash from operating activities. The Board expects that the Group
will rely on net cash from operating activities, bank borrowings and
debt financing to meet the demand of working capital and other
capital expenditure requirements in the short run. In the long run, the
Group will be mainly funded by net cash from operating activities and,
if necessary, by additional bank borrowings, debt financing or equity
financing. There were no material changes in the funding and financial
policy of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB25,629.5 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB22,446.0 million), comprising bank balances
and cash of approximately RMB2,841.8 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB1,917.2 million); and current liabilities
of approximately RMB13,411.1 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB12,630.4 million). The Group’s current ratio was
1.9 times (31 December 2019: 1.8 times). The Group’s total assets
as at 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB35,438.1 million,
represented an increase by approximately 15.5% compared to that as
at 31 December 2019.

Operating Activities

Cash inflow from operating activities was mainly generated from
cash receipt from sales of the Group’s products. Cash outflow
from operating activities was mainly used for the purchases of
raw materials, staff costs, selling and distribution expenses, R&D
expenditure and administrative expenses. Net cash from operating
activities was approximately RMB7,160.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 and net cash from operating activities was
approximately RMB4,661.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase in the net cash from operating activities was
mainly attributable to the increase in profit before tax.

The trade receivables turnover days (average of the opening and
closing trade receivables balances/revenue x 365 days) increased
from approximately 65 days for the year ended 31 December 2019
to approximately 73 days for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The Group allows a credit period of average 90 days to the trade
customers. The increase in trade receivables turnover days was mainly
attributable to the revenue from those customers with longer credit
terms grew faster during the year.

BEENWED

AEEZEESTIEZRETRRS NELEED
B2 REFE - EFEBRPAKREBKRBL
LEPAFRSFRE  RITBERBEBEREN
ENEMANEEES REMEARFENR -
REME  AREXESGULL RSB 2R
THBARBINEITEER - EHRE KRER
B(WEFE)MEESKE HE_T-_FTF
TZA=T—"BLLEE AEENES KWH
BRI EEREEH) o

WZZE-ZTF+-_A=+—0  KEENRD
BEHAANRR25,629,500,000L (ZZT—H
FH-—HA=+—8: &4 AR%¥22,446,000,000
L) PEETESBEASODARE
2,841,800,000t (ZE—AE+=-_A=+—
B : HARY1,917,200,0007T) : KEEa
BEHAEARE13,411,100,0007T (ZFE—h4F
+ZA=+—H : & AR¥12,630,400,000
L) c AEBENARBLEARE1.9EF(ZE—H
F+-_A=+—H:1.8(F) - AEER_F
ZEFFT A+ HONBEENAARE
35,488,100,0007T ' ®R=ZFE—hF+=A
=+—HIEINH15.5% °

KEEBMERERAFERGAEEE MY
ERSWA - K2 EBMARSAEHEERAR
BERME - BIKRAN HEMDHEAZ - #
BERYROTBAYZ HBHE2EZTFF+=A
ST —HLEFENKEEDAERSFELY
AR#7,160,000,0007t © MEBE =T —NF
T AT —HILEFEMNKEESMERETF
A AR 4,661,600,0007T © &2 /EFFT
BIRS FELINEZSHRBRF AT AL -

Z SRR EREE B (BHYMPERE SRR
RIEFEE W AXI5H) HEBEE TN
F+ZAZ+—HILEFENNSA LAZEHE
—EZTF+ A=+ —HIEFENHTIAE -
REEBGTHES TP FHOXRNEESR - &
SENFERAERSENEIERRATAREK
IR PR A RER -
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The trade payables turnover days (average of the opening and closing
trade payable balances/cost of sales x 365 days) increased from
approximately 82 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 98 days for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase in the trade payables turnover days was mainly attributable
to the continuous strengthening of supply chain managements and
strategic stocking by the Group.

The inventory turnover days (average of the opening and closing
inventory balances/cost of sales x 365 days) increased from
approximately 50 days for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 68 days for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase in inventory turnover days was mainly attributable to the
strategic stocking by the Group.

Investing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in investing activities of
approximately RMB5,976.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was mainly attributable to purchases and release of
unlisted financial products of approximately RMB59,212.3 million
and approximately RMB56,304.0 million during the year ended 31
December 2020 respectively, and the Group’s capital expenditure
amounted to approximately RMB2,798.4 million during the year.

Financing Activities

The Group recorded a net cash used in financing activities of
approximately RMB222.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The cash inflow mainly came from proceeds from new bank
borrowings raised of approximately RMB3,810.4 million. Major
outflows were the repayment of bank borrowings of approximately
RMB2,793.7 million, dividends paid to shareholders of approximately
RMB796.5 million,
and purchase of shares under share award scheme of approximately
RMB151.4 million.

interest paid of approximately RMB224.4 million

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
expenditure amounted to approximately RMB2,798.4 million, which
was mainly used for the purchases of property, plant and equipment,

the Group’s capital

payments for leasehold lands, payment for intangible assets and
purchase of other tangible assets. All of the capital expenditure was
financed by internal resources and bank borrowings.

BHRNFERERH (MOMBKRE S RN
RIBTHRIE HEKAX365H) HEEZ-F
—NEFET A=t HLFENHNS2ALHE
Ei?t EREF_A=1T—HILFEMNLHS

c BHREMNE IEHLEI%U‘?JD?E EREBA
El?“ﬁ]ﬂ%ﬁTT tESEIE - WAETT T BRI

BE -

FEASAR (BMyYMBARTFEFHE
HEKAXx365H) ABE=T—NFT=A
T BULHFEMNHNS0OBEAZEE-_Z-F
F+ZA=T—HIEFEMNLGEAH - FTEEAH
HEUEINEZREAAAEEETT T BB EEE

RERED

AEBREBEE-_ZT-_ZEF+_A=+—H
LEFENRERHMARSFVFOARE
5,976,200,0007C ' EFXFrEEHRNAEEHE-T
ZEFF+Z A=+ —HIEFAD B &R
EMEMEROARES9,212,300,0007T &
43 AR #56,304,000,000 7T F 4 5= [E 7 F I Y
BEARZHARE2,798,400,0007T °

BMEEH

AEBREBEE T _EF+=-_A=+—H
LEFENREZDIARSFBOARE
222,300,0007T ' AR EEREFIBHIR
TEEHARYS,810,400,0007T © MEZR

HRIREEZRITEEHARK?2,793,700,000
7T MREIRN B HARE 796,500,000

T DEFBLAREE224,400,0007T RARIE
f& 1 22 ET 188 B IR 1D 499 AR ® 151,400,000

o
BEERRX

HEZZ-ZEF+-A=1+—HLEE 1%
lE’UﬁMﬁSE%@AEﬁM 798 400,0007T * E
%Hﬂ”ﬁ%%%%%& HfE - HEL
B EEMNE %H%Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁxﬁ? FiE
é%ﬁ'ﬂszifzjLxma‘ﬂéxmzﬁﬂmaﬁ}%ﬁ °
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Indebtedness
Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately RMB2,070.6 million (2019: approximately RMB1,118.6
million). No bank borrowings were secured by certain buildings and
land of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Bank facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank facilities of RMB2,777.0
million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Agricultural Bank of China Limited,
RMB1,300.0 million with Ningbo Branch of The Export-Import Bank of
China, RMB875.0 million with Yuyao Branch of Bank of China Limited,
RMB600.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Ningbo Bank Co., Ltd.,
RMB380.0 million with Yuyao Sub-branch of Bank of Communications
Co., Ltd., RMB80.0 million with Ningbo Branch of Huaxia Bank Co.,
Ltd., RMB70.0 million with Xinyang Pingzhong Street Sub-branch of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, USD90.0 million with
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch, USD30.0 million with BNP Paribas
Shanghai Branch, USD60.0 million with The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited Hong Kong Branch, USD30.0 million with
Ningbo Branch of HSBC Bank (China) Co., Ltd., USD60.0 million with
Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank Hong Kong Branch,
USD20.0 million with Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank
Shanghai Branch, USD75.0 million with Bank of China (Hong Kong)
Limited, USD50.0 million with Standard Chartered (Hong Kong)
Limited and USD20.0 million with Standard Chartered Bank.

BEENWED

BEXRER
&%
RITEE

RZZEZZTF+ZA=+—0  AEEMHRTT
BEE#H ARE2,070,600,0007T (ZZ— L6 -
Z@/\Eﬁ% 118,600,0007T) c R=ZEZTFR
T-NF+ZA=+—8  AEETRHIE
?ﬂ%iéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%?&im o

RITRIE

R-Z-_ZTFE+-_A=+—0 AEERTH
BEFITROHERABDBUIITHRITEES
AR®2,777,000,0007T + FAFR B OERTT
EREHTHIRITERE B AR1,300,000,000
7T RPBIRITRMD AR A FASBRKEKDITHR
TR1EAARES875,000,0007T © REHIRTT
BHERABBETITHRITREAARE
600,000,0007C + RERBIRITRD BIR A Al
S 1TRIERITE (S A AR 380,000,0007T -
REBRITRMHDBRATERSTTHRITRE
A AR #80,000,0007T © KA B TsRiTRR (D
BRARGERIFPFAEZITHRITRERAAR
#70,000,0007T * FVABIEBRRBITEE DT
#IIR77% {5 £90,000,0003E 7 * 1A BB 324R
171 B85 1THERTT {5 A£30,000,000% 7T * 7
BALESEZHRITERABEEDTTHIRITE
£ 560,000,000 T * EZRTT (FRE) A
PR N B % 21T R R 1T {5 /430,000,000 3
7T AR R A EBRITEESTTHRTRE
/60,000,000 7T © FAVABIR G EIRRTT )8
D1THIERITIR1E 420,000,000 7T © KA ER
71(B%) AR AFKIRITEE /75,000,000
EL 0 WBTIRT (B8) BRARMNRITRE
450,000,000 T RN EITIRITHIRTTREA
20,000,000 7T °
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Debt securities

As at 31 December 2020, debt securities of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB3,895.9 million (2019: approximately RMB4,156.1
million). For details of bonds payable, please refer to Note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s gearing ratio of approximately 16.8% refers to the ratio
of total borrowings to total capital (total capital being the sum of total
liabilities and shareholders’ equity), reflecting the Group’s financial

position at a sound level.
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees.

Financing and fiscal policies and objectives

The Group adopts prudent financing and fiscal policies. The Group
will seek bank borrowings and debt financing when its operating
demand grows, and will regularly review its bank borrowings and debt
securities to achieve a sound financial position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any pledge or charge on assets as at
31 December 2020, except for the pledged bank deposits of
approximately RMB3.4 million. For details of the pledged bank
deposits, please refer to Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the capital expenditure of the Group in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment contracted for
but not provided in the consolidated financial statements amounted
to approximately RMB355.6 million (2019: approximately RMB953.2
million).

As at 31 December 2020,
commitments save as disclosed above.

the Group had no other capital

{% “')Z‘(

RZEZTF+A=+—H AEENEL
FHHHARKE3,895,900,0007T (ZF—NLF ¢
#ANR¥4,156,100,0007T) * BRAERESZ
15 2GS BImEKMTESS -

AREBENBELRL16.8% @ HHABRIGRE
RO R (REXRSRABEBRERED M) -
f bR 7S 5= 8 BA A AR BRI AR B2 7K o

AR

R-ZF_TFT_A=1+—8 AREALET
MBEBAXABERER -

&R BIBR B F
AEBRMZENRE LM BERE - NEB#
RNELFRERFSRRITEELEHRE -
WEREEHRITEEREBEFBERIAER
— B2 R B SO

EEHRA

R-ZZ-_TFT-_A=1+—8  BREERRT

FERAARE3,400,000 05 + AREEE W EAT
B ERFRIFL - B EBRITERZF
1B - B2HGREMERERNE26 -

AIE
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FRIRHEME AR H AREE355,600,0007T (=
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R-ZF_THE+-_A=+—8"
A - AR SR BN AT E At B ARE -

B £t 7 R



FRT B (£E) ER AR « 2020 F3f @

Management Discussion and Analysis

OFF-BALANCE SHEET TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not enter into any material
off-balance sheet transactions.

PERFORMANCE OF INVESTMENTS AND
FUTURE INVESTMENTS PLAN

The Group’s investing activities primarily include the purchases and
release of unlisted financial products, placement and withdrawal
of short term fixed deposits and purchases of property, plant and
equipment. In particular, the purchase and disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include debt investments,
equity investments, fund investments and unlisted financial products.
Among them, the fund investments are managed by relevant
financial institutions, mainly investing in debt securities linked to
the performance of related senior debts; unlisted financial products
are managed by relevant banks in China, mainly investing in certain
financial assets such as bonds, trusts and cash funds, and their
investment incomes are determined based on the performance of

relevant government debt instruments and treasury bills.
Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained a portfolio of unlisted
financial products with the total carrying amount of approximately
RMB8,197.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB5,289.2
million), of which approximately RMB4,479.3 million has been released
on or before 17 March 2021. As at 31 December 2020, the size of
the unlisted financial products subscribed by the Group in aggregate
represented approximately 23.1% of the Group’s total assets (31
December 2019: approximately 17.2%). The investment costs for the
unlisted financial products subscribed as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB8,197.5 million (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB5,289.2 million). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
amount of investment income from the unlisted financial products
was approximately RMB215.0 million (2019: approximately RMB189.8
million).

BEENWED

EERERUIRS

R-E-_ZF+_A=+—8 AEEILEIT
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AEENRERDH T EEENE MERIELD
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RZZEZZTF+ZA=+—H AEEHEF—
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of the major unlisted TEXRHIAEEAR T -_ZTF+_-_A=+—H
financial products subscribed by the Group as at 31 December 2020 REHTBIE T REDLRAM (RFEES)
(in descending order):

Percentage of

fair value of the

unlisted financial

products relative to

Fair value of the | the total assets of
unlisted financial the Group as at
products as at | 31 December 2020

31 December 2020 RZEZEF
B-A—w—vﬁ +—E:+_H
+=A=t+-H FEHERERN

Name of the unlisted financial products Name of banks Investment costs | FLHERERMN AREEERE
FEHERERER RITER RERA AffE AEENEIN
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTR

“Tian Li Kuai Xian" net-asset-value type wealth Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

management product
[RMRE | FER BRI E M BRBORHERAT 1,200,000 1,200,000 3.4%
“Jin Yao Shi ¢ An Xin Kuai Xian” Tian Tian Li Gun Agricultural Bank of

Li Second Phase Open-ended RMB wealth China Limited

management product
[BLeR LRG| RRFENE2RRNAARERIER RERERTROERAT 858,960 858,960 2.4%
Bank of Ningbo NingXin fixed income Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

close-ended wealth management No.39
ERBHEMET R EHHAIRA39% ERFTRINERAT 500,000 500,000 1.4%
2020 Close-ended private net-asset-value type No. 263 Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
2020313 \AL 5 #E AL 2635% ERFIRNERAT 500,000 500,000 1.4%
2020 Close-ended private net-asset-value type No. 155 Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
202031 A\ AL B AR 1555% BERBTRNERAT 500,000 500,000 1.4%
Flexible period wealth management No.3 Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
AR EARIB A0 BERFTRNERAT 480,000 480,000 1.4%
2020 Close-ended private net-asset-value type No. 258 Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.
2020313 \AL B E R 2685% ERFTRNERAT 400,000 400,000 1.1%
Others (Note)
Aty (F5E) 3,758,515 3,758,515 10.6%

Total
st 8,197,475 8,197,475 23.1%

Note:  Other unlisted financial products included 32 unlisted financial ~ M ©  HF LM @ERBERAKTRIKR?T

products with 5 different banks to lower the concentration WSIEHMIFLTMEMER - UBEKEH
[EFR o %32 FTEMERNR_T_F
FTZA=Z+T—HNAREBETFHAROAR
#117,500,0007T °

risk. The fair value of such 32 unlisted financial products as at
31 December 2020 was approximately RMB117.5 million in
average.
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In the opinion of the Directors, the fair value change of the unlisted
financial products was insignificant during the year of 2020.

The Board considers that the terms of such unlisted financial products
are on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Such investment activities were funded primarily by the idle self-owned
funds of the Group. Going forward, the Group will continue to diversify
its investments among different banks to lower the concentration
risk and will closely monitor the performance of investments made
and future investments plan in accordance with its prudent policy
to utilise and to increase the vyield of the idle funds of the Group
while maintaining a high level of liquidity and a low level of risk. Such
investment activities were made and will be made on the premises
that it would not adversely affect the working capital of the Group or
the operation of the Group’s principal business.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s investments
amounted to approximately RMB2,798.4 million, mainly involved
in the purchases of property, plant and equipment, the initial
production settings for new products, payments for leasehold lands
and the necessary equipment configurations for new projects. These
investments enhanced the Group’s R&D and technological application
capability and production efficiency, and thus expanded the sources

of revenue.

The Group adopts prudent financial policies, having its investment
projects mostly capital-protected with fixed income, so as to strive
for a stable and healthy financial position while improving returns. The
Group will consider using financial instruments for hedging purposes if
necessary and will continue to fund its future investment from its own
financial resources.

Looking forward, the Group intends to further invest to enhance its
competitiveness.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE
DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risks arising from its bank
borrowings for working capital and capital expenditures that are
associated with the expansion of the Group and utilisation for other
purposes. The rising of interest rates increases the costs of both
existing and new debts. As at 31 December 2020, the effective
interest rate on fixed-rate bank borrowings was approximately 2.96%
per annum, while the effective interest rate of variable-rate bank
borrowings was approximately 0.85% to 1.14% per annum.

Foreign Exchange Rate Fluctuation Risk

The Group exports a portion of its products to and purchases a
considerable amount of products from international markets where
transactions are denominated in USD or other foreign currencies.
For details of the Group’s foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency options contracts, please refer to Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. Except for certain investments
which are in line with the Group’s business and are denominated in
foreign currencies, the Group does not and has no plan to make any
foreign currency investment.

Credit Risk

The Group’s financial assets include derivative financial assets, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, short term fixed deposits,
time deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, trade
and other receivables, equity instruments that are included in other
comprehensive income at fair value and debt instruments measured
at amortised cost, which represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

miZEENECMECKE
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In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to trade receivables, the
management has delegated a team responsible for the determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that appropriate follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group has also purchased insurances relating to trade
receivables.
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount

amounts. Therefore, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced. The amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position are net of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts, and are estimated by the management based on their
previous experience, assessment of the current economic environment
and the discounted cash flows to be received in the future.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk since its
trade receivables are dispersed to a large number of counterparties
and customers. The credit risk on liquidity is limited because a majority
of the counterparties of the Group are banks with high credit-ratings
given by international credit-rating agencies.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is primarily related to variable
rates applicable to short term bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and
floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable range. Therefore,
any future variations in interest rates will not have any significant
impact on the results of the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining an adequate level of
cash and cash equivalents through continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching them with the maturity profiles of
each individual financial assets and liabilities.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board proposed a
dividend of approximately RMBO0.888 (equivalent to HK$1.057)
per share, with payout ratio of approximately 20.0% of the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company. The final
dividends payable on 24 June 2021 is subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (the “AGM”) to be held on 25 May 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Directors consider sustainable returns to shareholders to be one
of the main objectives. The basic policy is to pay final dividends in
each financial year. Retained profits are effectively used by the Board
to fund the future development of the Group.

The Directors currently intend to recommend a distribution to all the
shareholders in an amount representing approximately 20% to 30% of
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company in respect
of each financial year by way of dividends. The recommendation for
dividends is subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board takes
into account the following factors when considering the declaration
and payment of dividends:

e the Company’s cash position and distributable reserves;
e the Group’s overall business condition;

e the Group’s financial results;

e the Group’s capital requirements;

e the interests of the shareholders of the Company;

e applicable laws and regulations and the Articles of Association;
and

e any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Any dividend declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to
Shares on a per share basis and the Company will pay such dividend
in Hong Kong dollars. No dividend shall be declared in excess of the
amount recommended by the Board. Any final dividend for a fiscal
year will be subject to the approval by the shareholders.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attending the AGM, which is to be held
on 25 May 2021, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from 20 May 2021 to 25 May 2021, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. All transfer of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 18 May 2021.

In order to be eligible for receiving the dividends, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 1 June 2021 to 4 June
2021,
registered. All transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant share

both days inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be

certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
31 May 2021.
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GLOBAL DEPLOYMENT
Production Bases

The Group’s production bases in China are located in Yuyao of
Zhejiang Province, Zhongshan of Guangdong Province, Shanghai and
Xinyang of Henan Province, respectively.

In order to meet the clients’ rapidly growing demand in the overseas
markets, the Group has established new production bases in India and
Vietnam respectively. During the year under review, the production
and operations of the two overseas production bases were affected
by the outbreak of COVID-19, but the overall operations was running
smoothly.

R&D Centers

In order to have a timely insight into the industry opportunities and
cater to the customers for rapid R&D, the Group has set up R&D
centers in China, the U.S.A. and South Korea to provide technical
support and reserves for the R&D of optical and optical-related
products.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group had 24,374 full-time employees as at 31 December
2020.
performance of individual employees, the Group has established

In line with the overall operation of the Company and the

a fair and competitive salary and welfare system to recruit new
talents and to reward and retain existing talents, in which the salary
package including annual basic salary, year-end bonus and the
economic-value-added bonus, while the welfare package including
social insurance, housing provident fund, employee holidays and
emergency relief fund, thereby representing the Group’s efforts to
achieve the goals of “consistency in responsibilities and interests,
abilities and values, risks and returns, performance and income” in

remuneration distribution.

The Group has particularly adopted the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Restricted Share Award Scheme”) since 2010, with
a view to provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants
to recognise their contribution to the Group and to enhance their
ownership spirits. For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,458,591
shares were granted by the Group to eligible participants in
accordance with the Restricted Share Award Scheme.
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AWARDS AND HONORS

During the year, the Group received numerous honors from customers,
industrial associations and institutions, local governments and the
capital market. These awards and honors were recorded as follows:

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Best Quality Award”
and “Pandemic ‘War’ Delivery Partner Award” by Weifang Goertek
Electronics Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “Best Delivery Award” by Vivo
Mobile Communication Co., Ltd.

Sunny Zhejiang Optics was awarded the “2020 Strategic Partner
Award” by Q Technology Limited

Sunny Automotive Optech was awarded the “2019 Quality Operation
Award” by Huizhou Desay SV Automotive Co., Ltd.

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Excellent Supplier Award in the
third quarter” by OPPO MOBILES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

The subsidiary in India of Sunny Opotech was awarded the “2020
Best Delivery Award” by OPPO MOBILES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Sunny Opotech was awarded the “Strategic Partner Award” by
Shenzhen ZTE Kangxun Telecom Company Limited and Nubia
Technology Co., Ltd.

Sunny Optical Intelligence was awarded the “Excellent Supplier Award”
by Ecovacs Robotics Co., Ltd.

Sunny Optical Intelligence was awarded the “Best Delivery Award” by
Dreame Technology (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
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The Group was included in “Fortune China Top 500 list” for the sixth
consecutive years, ranked 259", rising 70 places compared to 2019

The Company’s MSCI ESG ranking moved up from “BB” to “BBB”

The Company was awarded the “The Most Remarkable Investor
Relations Recognition (Hang Seng Index Category)” at “Quam IR
Awards 2019”

The Company ranked 1%t in the “Best Investor Relations Program”
for the fifth consecutive year, ranked top three in the “Best CEOQ”,
“Best CFO”, “Best IR Professional”, “Best IR Team” and “Best ESG”
and awarded the title of “Most Honored Company” among all-Asia
Technology/Hardware companies by the US magazine, Institutional
Investor.

The Company was included in “Hang Seng China Enterprises Index”

and “Hang Seng Corporate Sustainability Benchmark Index”

The Company was awarded the “Best TMT Company” at the 5™
“Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards”
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE STRATEGIES

Looking forward to 2021, the global economic environment is still
complex and severe, and companies are still under heavy pressure.
However, the smartphone and vehicle industries will regain growth,
and cutting-edge technologies such as machine vision and Al will
flourish. As such, the Directors are of the view that 2021 will continue
to be a year of challenges and opportunities. The management of
the Group will closely monitor the changes in development of the
industry and market, to seize opportunities brought by technological
innovations. Leveraging on the transformation and upgrade of the
business, the Group aims to continue to take its advantages of scale,
technology, resources as well as talents, and implement all formulated
development strategies thoroughly, in order to achieve the continuous
and stable growth of the Group.

1. Further enhance the market competitiveness,
strengthen and expand the existing advantageous
businesses

— Devote in the R&D and usage of new technologies and new
materials, speed up the iteration in development of new
products and new specifications, challenge and take over the
“vantage point” of the industry;

— Commit to enhancing technological skills and their applications
in manufacturing process; improving the first pass yield and
product quality, realise speedy delivery with high quality; and

— Strive for lowering the product costs continuously, pay
attention to the composition of cost and cost control in every
step from product design to delivery.

2. Enhance refined management and continue to
improve the quality of operation

Refined management is required to organise activities such as
development and design, engineering technology, manufacturing,
material procurement and delivery. Through enhancing refined
management, the Company can realise distinct division of duties
and clear workflow under a common goal,
achieve high operating efficiency, cost-effective products and
continuous improvement of operating quality.

and will eventually
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3. Strengthen R&D investment and accelerate the

cultivation and growth of new businesses

The development of digitalised and intelligentised industry has
brought unprecedented market opportunities to the optoelectronic
sensing industry. Sunny Research Institute will coordinate with
each subsidiary for determination of possible future market
goals, application scenarios, integration of internal and external
resources, enhancement of R&D investment, development of
new technology and new products layouts, new points of growth
creation of the Company. Meanwhile, the Group will further
deepen the cultivation mechanism for new businesses and
encourage strivers with entrepreneurship and the ability to devote
themselves to new business development in order to accomplish
their goals.

Enhance the internal incentive mechanism
and further practise the core value of “Create
Together”

The core value of the Group is “Create Together”. Since its
founding, the Group has been practising this core value in
its system and practice. With the changes of the times, the
incentive mechanism will also keep pace with the times, and
will be continuously reformed and enhanced. The Group will
continue to strengthen the competitive edges of the internal
incentive mechanism, attract more outstanding talents to join the
Company, and provide key incentives to innovators and strivers
who have made great and significant contributions. Therefore, the
participants in “Create Together” can share the achievements of
creation.

In the coming years, leveraging the edge of being industry leaders
as an optical professional, the Group will continue to benefit
from the bright future prospect of the optoelectronic industry
and continue to create greater returns for the shareholders
by responding to the market demand, focusing on R&D and
innovation, pursuing the quality of products and continuously
improving our own comprehensive competitiveness in order to
provide more high-quality products and services for world-class
high-tech enterprises. It turns out to promote the growth and
value enhancement of those enterprises.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year of 2020, the Board consisted of 7 Directors comprising
3 executive Directors,1 non-executive Director and 3 independent
non-executive Directors. The information on the Directors is set forth
below.

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning (¥3&%), aged 55, is one of the founders of the
Group, and currently is an executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee
of the Company. He is responsible for formulating the Group’s
policies and making decisions. Mr. Ye joined Yuyao County Chengbei
Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 and became its deputy general
manager since 1995. Mr. Ye has obtained a qualification of senior
economist issued by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior
economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally
granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations and
has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Ye obtained
a diploma from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in 1999. Mr. Ye has
been an executive Director since May 2007 and is currently a director
of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Ye was awarded the title
of “Outstanding Entrepreneurs” (£tH B ) and the title of “Zhejiang
Province Outstanding Builder of Socialism with Chinese characteristics
(Non-public Economic Person) (HIT&AIEREHLEEALTHRES
PESGEHEEHEEEERE) in the “40" Anniversary of Reform and
Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (EREFR40FEFeBFERE)" by the
Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Ye was awarded
“National May-First Labor Medal” (2Bl —%#)8#€E) and acquired
the title of “Zhejiang Province Model Worker” (HTL%& &4 EhE#5) in
April 2019. Mr. Ye was awarded the title of “National Model Worker”
(E 4 EHEE) in November 2020. Mr. Ye has senior professional
knowledge and experience in optical industry, as well as extensive
experience in financial management, company operations, capital
markets, risk management and strategic planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.
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Mr. Sun Yang (#£#&), aged 48, currently is an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall operation and management of the Group. Mr. Sun graduated
from Ningbo University in 1995 with a bachelor’s degree in economics.
He then obtained a master's degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics in 2005. He joined the Group as
a chief officer of investment management centre in 2002. Mr. Sun has
obtained a qualification of senior economist issued by the Personnel
Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008 and awarded a qualification of chief
senior economist issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department in December 2018. Currently, chief senior
economist is the highest economics professional and technical title in
the PRC, which is only granted to very few people who have passed
strict examinations and acquired substantial management experience
with major achievements. Mr. Sun has been an executive Director
since May 2009 and is currently a director of various subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. Sun has senior professional knowledge and experience
in optical industry, as well as extensive experience in financial
management, company operations, capital markets, risk management
and strategic planning.

Mr. Wang Wenijie (£ 7R), aged 53, currently is an executive Director
and executive vice president of the Company. He is responsible for the
strategic planning and information management of the Group, as well
as the management of Sunny Research Institute. Mr. Wang graduated
from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering in
1989 and joined the Group after his graduation. Mr. Wang obtained a
qualification of senior economist by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang
in 2008. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC
and is generally granted to a person who has passed necessary
examinations and has acquired substantial management experience.
He has been an executive Director since December 2013. He was
elected as the vice chairman of the Chinese Optical Society in 2017,
responsible for advancing the development of optical industry in China.
Mr. Wang has senior professional knowledge and experience in optical
industry, as well as extensive experience in financial management,
company operations, capital markets, risk management and strategic
planning.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Wang Wenjian (E X E2£),
Board, executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, is one of the

aged 783, former Chairman of the

founders of the Group, and currently is a non-executive Director and
the Honorary Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wang joined the Yuyao
County Chengbei Optical Instruments Factory in 1984 as factory
manager and became its general manager since 1994 when it was
transformed to a joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Wang
(BFBELER)

by Ningbo Entrepreneurs Association and Ningbo Enterprise Unite

obtained the title of “Outstanding Entrepreneur”

League in 2006 and was granted the “Ningbo Excellent Entrepreneur
Award” (B H 2K %) by the Personnel Office under Ningbo
Municipal Party Committee in 2015. Mr. Wang was awarded the title
of “Excellent Entrepreneurs (£ )" in the “40™ Anniversary of
Reform and Opening, Entrepreneurs of Time (EXEFIMA40/E ST
)" by the Ningbo City Government in November 2018. Mr. Wang
acted as the Honorary President of Yuyao Charity Federation in 2003
and was appointed as a guest professor of the College of Information
Science and Engineering, Zhejiang University in 2005. He obtained a
qualification of senior economist by Ningbo Municipal Government in
1996. Senior economist is a recognised qualification in the PRC and is
generally granted to a person who has passed necessary examinations
and has acquired substantial management experience. Mr. Wang was
redesignated as a non-executive Director in March 2012. Mr. Wang
has senior professional knowledge and experience in optical industry,
as well as extensive experience in financial management, company
operations, risk management and strategic planning, and has years of
leadership experience in board committee.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging (SRR ), aged 73, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Audit Committee. Mr. Zhang has worked
in MBCloud (Shenzhen) Information Technology Co., Ltd. (fRiRE
Al CFYI) B MBRAT) as finance-in-charge from May 2017 to
March 2020. Mr. Zhang worked in Shanghai Port Bureau as heads
of the financial division as well as the auditing division. He was also
appointed as a director of Shanghai Worldbest Industry Development
Co., Ltd.(EBERPEZERERHERAFA) from 2001 to 2003 and
acted as its chief financial officer. Mr. Zhang worked in Shandong
(LREBXEDRBEBROHBERAR) as
chief financial officer from 2014 to 2017. Mr. Zhang graduated from

Sito Bio-technology Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Maritime University in 1982 with a bachelor’s degree in
economics and is a senior accountant and a non-practicing member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since May 2007.
Mr. Zhang has professional knowledge in optical industry, as well as
extensive experience in financial management, company operations,
capital market, risk management and strategic planning, and has years
of leadership experience in board committee.

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (J523), aged 57, is an independent non-executive
Director and the chairman of Nomination Committee. Mr. Feng has
been teaching in the Zhejiang University since August 1986 and been
promoted to his current positions of professor and doctoral supervisor
in July 1998, mainly responsible for works involving teaching and
scientific research. Mr. Feng was the director for the Institute of
Optical Engineering, the director for the Institute of Optical Imaging
Engineering and the head of Department of Optoelectronic Information
Engineering of Zhejiang University. Mr. Feng obtained a bachelor’s
degree in July 1983 from Zhejiang University in optical instrument
engineering, and also obtained a master’'s degree in July 1986 in
optical instrument engineering from the same university. Mr. Feng has
currently been an independent non-executive Director of Hangzhou
Everfine Photo-E-Info Co., Ltd. (FTM3iET HEE BN AR A F) (stock
code: 300306) since May 2016, and an independent non-executive
Director of Telephone World Group Co., Ltd. (;&F#tt RiBEEERNE
fR 72 A]) (code of National Equities Exchange and Quotations: 831354)
since October 2017. He has been an independent non-executive
Director of the Company since April 2016. Mr. Feng has extremely
senior professional knowledge in optical industry, as well as extensive
experience in risk management and strategic planning, and has years

of leadership experience in board committee.
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Mr. Shao Yang Dong (BF{PE), aged 51, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Shao currently is the managing partner of Yuantai Investment
Partners Evergreen Fund, L.P.. Mr. Shao was a director of each of
Sunny Zhejiang Optics and Sunny Instruments from May 2005 to
September 2010, Sunny Zhongshan from October 2005 to September
2010, Sunny Opotech from November 2005 to September 2010 and
Sunny Infrared Optics from March 2006 to September 2010. Mr. Shao
is a member of Environmental Defense Fund China Advisory Board.
Mr. Shao previously worked as a financial analyst at the investment
banking division of Salomon Brothers Inc.. Mr. Shao obtained a
bachelor’s degree in economics in May 1993 from Columbia University.
Mr. Shao also attended the Graduate School of Business at Stanford
University and earned a master’'s degree in business administration
in June 2000. He has been an independent non-executive Director
of the Company since April 2016. Mr. Shao has senior professional
knowledge related to global smartphone and automobile industry
chains, as well as extensive experience in company strategy and
operations, financial and risk management, and capital market, and
has years of leadership experience in board committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Dong Kewu (E®%®), aged 52, is the Vice President of the
Company. He is responsible for human resource management of
the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from Xidian University in 1990 with
a bachelor’'s degree in computer and application and from Fudan
University in 2004 with a master’s degree in business administration.
Prior to joining the Group in February 2012, Mr. Dong worked as a
partner and consulting director in a renowned consulting firm. Mr.
Dong also obtained qualifications of economist and engineer issued by
the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC and the Planning Committee of
Shandong Province.

Mr. Ma Jianfeng (553£1§), aged 48, is the Vice President and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ma graduated from Xiamen
University in July 1995 with a bachelor’'s degree in economics. Mr.
Ma is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a qualified senior accountant in the PRC.
Prior to joining the Group in December 2010, Mr. Ma served as a chief
financial officer for Ningbo Bird Co., Ltd. (B K ER KD AR A 7).
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Mr. Zhang Guoxian (5kEI &), aged 55, is the assistant of the President
of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Yuyao Huancheng
School in 1983 and joined the Group since his graduation. Mr. Zhang
attended the seminar of EMBA in Zhejiang University from July 2004
to July 2005 and obtained the relevant completion certificate. Prior
to being appointed as the assistant of the President, Mr. Zhang held
positions including deputy general manager, executive deputy general
manager and general manager of Sunny Zhejiang Optics.

Ms. Wong Pui Ling (&E1fl}%), aged 39, is the Joint Company Secretary,
senior investor relations director, authorised representative and agent
of the Company. Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for company
secretarial matters and investor relations’ matters. Ms. Wong joined
the Group in July 2007. Ms. Wong has more than 10 years of
experience in financial reporting, accounting, auditing and investor
relations. Ms. Wong is a qualified accountant and is a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong holds a bachelor’s
degree in business administration from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong and a postgraduate diploma in finance and law from the
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Wu Jun ((21&), aged 55, is a general manager of Sunny Zhejiang
Optics, Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmniLight Technology.
He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny Zhejiang
Optics, Sunny Shanghai Optics and Sunny OmniLight Technology.
Mr. Wu graduated with a bachelor’s degree in optical instruments
from Shanghai Institute of Mechanism in 1986. He later obtained a
qualification as a senior engineer by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang
in 1999. Prior to joining the Group in March 1997, Mr. Wu worked in
Jiangxi Optics Instrument General Factory ((I7EJ¢22{%224E/) for 10
years as research officer and chief of quality control.

Mr. Zhang Zhiping (58 & F
Zhongshan Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of

), aged 52, is a general manager of Sunny

Sunny Zhongshan Optics. Mr. Zhang graduated from Hunan Radio
and Television University in 1992. Prior to joining the Group in April
2006, Mr. Zhang acted as the deputy factory manager in Sintai Optical
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (&=} E ORI AR A 7).
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Mr. Chen Huiguang (FRERJE), aged 57, is a general manager of Sunny
Infrared Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Infrared Optics. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in optical
instruments from Zhejiang University in 1983. He also obtained a
master’s degree in engineering from Zhejiang University in 1992. Prior
to joining the Group in January 1999, Mr. Chen worked in Xintian
Precision and Optical Instrument Company Limited (¥ R#&%% ¢ &
g5~ \)). In 2015, he was granted the title of “Elite offing City — Award
for Expert with Outstanding Contribution to Ningbo City” (5
E-EHFmAREEERER ) by Ningbo Municipal Party Committee,
and was appointed as an executive director of Chinese Society for
Optical Engineering. Mr. Chen was awarded the qualification for senior
engineer of professor level in 2016. At the same time, Mr. Chen was
entitled to the special government allowance of the State Council in
2016. Mr. Chen was awarded the title of 2013-2017 Yuyao Top 10
Technological Researchers in December 2017.

Mr. Guo Jingchao (285 %), aged 58, is a general manager of Sunny
Xinyang Optics. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Xinyang Optics. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor’'s degree from
Changchun University of Science and Technology in 1986, and a
master’s degree in engineering management from Nanjing University
of Science and Technology in 2002. Prior to joining the Group in
February 2001, Mr. Guo worked in Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. (7
N BEEBR QA
both Henan Costar Group Co., Ltd. and Lida Optical and Electronic
Co., Ltd. (AEFEXERMDAERAT). In 1997, Mr. Guo obtained a
qualification of senior engineer issued by China North Industries Group

He served as a deputy general manager in

Corporation.

Mr. Qiu Wenwei (£301&), aged 44, is a general manager of Sunny
Automotive Optech. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Automotive Optech. Mr. Qiu joined the Group in November
1997. He engaged in activities relating to R&D from 1997 to 2007 and
served as the head of R&D department in 2006. Mr. Qiu served as the
head of vehicle lens sets business in 2008, responsible for preparing
for setting up vehicle lens sets business and as the general manager
of Sunny Automotive Optech in 2012. Mr. Qiu obtained a master’s
degree in optical engineering from Changchun University of Science
and Technology in July 2014.
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Ms. Wang Mingzhu (EFA¥%k), aged 43, is a general manager of Sunny
Opotech. She is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Opotech. Ms. Wang obtained a master’'s degree in electronics and
communication engineering from Fudan University in 2007. She
joined the Group in April 2014 and held positions including manager
of product development department, associate director of R&D
centre and executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech.
She has been the general manager of Sunny Opotech since 2020.
Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and manufacturing of semiconductors and optics in
BREERK

) and Konica Minolta. Ms. Wang was selected into the

Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (A7 B
EREEBRA
Ningbo Leading and Top Talents Training Project, and was granted
the “Yuyao City Outstanding Contribution Expert Award” (&r#km2e
HEEEX ) in 2017. Ms. Wang was awarded the “Yuyao City May
(BREET H—MIERE) in 2018. Ms.

Wang has served as the vice chairman of Ningbo Electronics Industry

Day Women’s Commendation”
Association since April 2020.

Mr. Wang Zhongwei (£ £1&), aged 42, is a general manager of Sunny
Optical Intelligence. He is responsible for the daily administration of
Sunny Optical Intelligence. Mr. Wang obtained a master’'s degree
in optical engineering from Changchun University of Science and
Technology in 2010. He joined the Group in September 2001. He
held positions including manager of marketing department, deputy
general manager and general manager of Sunny Opotech. Mr. Wang
was awarded the titles of “National Electronic Information Industry
(EBEEFERITE —FEHNAY) by China
Electronics Enterprises Association and “2016 Top 10 Yong Shang of
Ningbo City” (B M2016 T AREEE) in 2016. Mr. Wang served
as the vice-president of the Institute of Yongshang Development (F8
PRI E) since April 2017 and as the vice-president of Ningbo
Science & Technology Innovation Association since May 2017.
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ESNGHREEE

Mr. Zhang Baozhong (FRE &), aged 52, is a general manager of
Sunny Mobility. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Mobility. Mr.
manufacture technique and instrument in 1990 and a master’s degree

Zhang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical

in business administration in 2013 from Zhejiang University. He joined
the Group in September 1999 and was engaged in the activities
relating to R&D and administration for many years. He held positions
including executive deputy general manager of Sunny Opotech
and general manager of intelligent equipment business of Sunny
Instruments. In 2014, Mr. Zhang obtained a qualification of senior
engineer issued by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and Social

Security Department.

Mr. Lou Guojun (ZEIE), aged 56, is a general manager of Sunny
Instruments. He is responsible for the daily administration of Sunny
Instruments. Mr. Lou obtained a diploma in business enterprise
operation management from Zhejiang Radio & TV University in
1999. Mr.

by the Personnel Bureau of Zhejiang in 2008. Senior economist is

Lou obtained a qualification of senior economist issued

a recognised qualification in the PRC and is generally granted to a
person who has passed necessary examinations and has acquired
substantial management experience. Mr. Lou joined the Group in June
1984.

L2), aged 50, is a general manager of Sunny
Intelligent Technology. He is responsible for the daily administration

Mr. Weng Jiuxing (5

of Sunny Intelligent Technology. Mr. Weng graduated from Zhejiang
Normal University in 1995 and obtained a postgraduate diploma in
digital strategy and business transformation from the University of
Hong Kong in 2013. Mr. Weng joined the Group in July 1995 and
served various positions, including workshop supervisor, deputy head
of corporate governance department, deputy head of manufacturing
department and head of quality control department. Prior to his
appointment as the general manager of Sunny Intelligent Technology in
July 2015, Mr. Weng served as the director of information technology
department of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors are convinced that the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group must have excellent corporate
governance elements so as to promote effective accountability and
deliver maximum benefits to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company complied with
all of the code provisions of and adopted most of the recommended
best practices of the Corporate Governance Code (the “Corporate
Governance Code”, applicable to financial reports for the periods
subsequent to 1 April 2012) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Corporate governance structure and practices of the Company

are summarised as follows.

THE BOARD
Board Functions

Being accountable to the shareholders, the Board is responsible for
facilitating the further development of the Company’s business by
directing and guiding the business developments and operations in a
responsible and effective manner. Board members have a duty to act
in good faith, with due diligence and care and in the best interests of
the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

While the Company’s business operations are supervised by the
executive Directors and managed by the qualified members of
management, the decisions which are to be taken by the Board

include:

1. Setting the Company’s missions and values;

2. Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategies;

4, Setting performance objectives and monitoring implementation

and corporate performance;
5. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest between
the management and Board members;
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AN Y- A e

TEERHRSE

6. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial 6. MERARBISHHYBRALRAHN TE
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and those M BEEBUEZ  UAKBRIZEGEER
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems BRE LHERERER - MBEEERST
for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law; EREREF K&
and

il
]S

7. Performing the corporate governance function, being responsible 7. BB XE AR  BEARRILE
for the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance MECR REBARFEHPEE GRS -
and reviewing the corporate governance report.

Board Composition BEESHEK

The Board should have a balance of skills and experience appropriate EE©/EFEREIT ALK ENRERES
for the business of the issuer to ensure that the changes to its WHEREEEKENEE NG ERTIHNENE
composition can be managed without undue disruption. The Company  SHE - "R FIRE - EESNHITHEIEHTT
is committed to the view that the Board should maintain a balanced B = (BEBYIIFHITES) ARELE © 1§
composition of executive and non-executive Directors (including REZ=E€HEEB LM UELBIEEHOH
independent non-executive Directors) so that the Board has a strong i - EE @R H7RESHEK © B
independence to make the independent and objective judgment. The

Board currently comprises 7 Directors, including:

Name of Director

ESHAR

Executive Directors Hi1TEF
Mr. Ye Liaoning

ERERE

Mr. Sun Yang

Homf &

Mr. Wang Wenijie

EXNRELE

Non-executive Director £ {TEE
Mr. Wang Wenijian
EXELLE

Independent non-executive Directors BV & 1TEE
Mr. Zhang Yuqing

RARELE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun

TSEE S E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong

ABIPER e
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Each of the Directors has entered into a continuous service contract
with the Company for a term of three years commencing from the
date of appointment or re-appointment. The Company is committed
to the view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient calibre and number to warrant that their views
are acknowledged. Biographical details of the independent non-
executive Directors are set out in the section “Directors and Senior
Management” in this Annual Report. The independent non-executive
Directors are in absence of any business or other relationships with the
Group which could interfere in any material manner with the exercise
of their independent judgment. The composition of the Board as at
the date of this Annual Report is set out in the section “Directors and
Senior Management” in this Annual Report. None of the Directors has
any financial, business, family relationships or relationships in other
material aspects with each other. Each of independent non-executive
Directors has given a written confirmation to the Company confirming
that he has met the criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
regarding the guidelines for the assessment of independence of
Directors respectively. The Company believes that the all independent
non-executive Directors have complied with the relevant guidelines as
stipulated in such rule and are still considered as independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The Company has implemented a set of formal, prudent and
transparent procedures for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. The Company has also put in place plans for orderly
succession of the Board. All Directors are subject to re-election
regularly in accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board
must explain the reasons for the resignation, re-designation or removal
of any Director.

Responsibilities of Directors

Every Director is aware that he should devote sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company.

The Directors are kept informed from time to time on the latest
development of any changes to the regulatory requirements and the
progress of compliance with applicable rules and regulations by the
Company. The Directors are also updated from time to time on the
latest business development and operation plans of the Company.

TEERRE

BREFCHEARANUFERBAHN  BZME
S EHMRERHEF /H=F - AQFEE -
BIUFRTEENS BEABAZHEERE
EEBERAFEN - BUIFATEENEESR
RAFHRIEZTREREERE | REALE
BRAEMNABEZEETER L HENAEE
EBHEMBER - EFERNAFRAHANKE
HEHFNAFREENSRERE] —H - %
EEHEMBTAME X5 KEBERIEMD
BEXRBR - BBIFATEZE D RAARRA
ERXEMER  MREESTA LTRAIFE3.13
GAEBAZESBLIEESINBEERE - A2
ARG 2BEFATESFH EETHZMR
AIprEmERES - BDARRA/REE LS

{/\ °

- EERER

ARABEER—ELER  BEARBHENZ
FREEFEEHES » MO L8 BRE
ZENARERF 2REFARBSEMARE
HBE EFQAMBEAEENEIE  #AE
HERHREA -

EERE

BEREANT  FEREARREHRINE SN
R IR 7D ©

EERTHERUEBEERETARDNR
59 R RARA T8 AR B R I R 1
R - EENRTHEREAR BRI OEHE
BREE S -



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

In compliance with code provision A.6.5 of Corporate Governance
Code, the Company arranges and provides fund for all the Directors
to participate in continuous professional development organised in
the form of in-house training, seminars or other appropriate courses
to keep them refresh of their knowledge, skill and understanding of
the Group and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on
the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing
Rules and Corporate Governance Code and corporate governance
practices. Newly appointed Director would receive an induction
training covering the statutory regulatory obligations of a director of a
listed company. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors
and senior management by the Company, where appropriate, to
ensure the awareness of Corporate Governance Code and best
practices.

All Directors participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During
the year of 2020, all Directors received a total of over 180 hours of
trainings, including internally-facilitated sessions as well as external
seminars/programmes on topics relevant to their duties as Directors.

To summarise, the Directors have received the below trainings to
enhance their skills and knowledge during the year:

aF
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Training area
L

Production and
operation
management in
manufacturing
industry
BUEXHEE
EeEE

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Ye Liaoning FEELE v
Mr. Sun Yang Bk v
Mr. Wang Wenjie FXREE v
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Wang Wenjian IXERE v
Independent non-executive BYFHITES

Directors
Mr. Zhang Yuging RRERE "
Mr. Feng Hua Jun BEEFE v
Mr. Shao Yang Dong AN A v/

governance

Risk
management

Craft/
technology

Corporate

I8 /K

v/ v/ v/
v/ 4 v/
v/ 4 v/
4 4 4
v/ 4 v/
4 v/ 4
v/ v/ 4
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Regarding the Listing Rules’ requirements for Directors to obtain
a general understanding of an issuer’s business and to follow up
anything that comes to their attention, it is considered that the
current arrangements for keeping the Board informed timely of the
Company’s business performance through regular presentations and/
or reports by the management at Board meetings, providing Directors
with complete, sufficient and adequate information, and providing
the Board with timely reports on urgent key events at special Board
meetings are effective, and have satisfied the requirements. A monthly
management report, covering key business issues and the financial
performance of the Company, has been made available to Directors
on a monthly basis throughout the year. All Directors can contact the
management of the Company individually and independently.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Ye Liaoning, being the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for
formulating the Group’s policies and making decisions. Mr. Sun Yang,
being the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is responsible
for the overall daily operation and management of the Group. This
segregation of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company aligns with the requirement under the code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

There are 3 independent non-executive Directors in the Board, all
of whom possess adequate independence. Therefore, the Board
considers that the current structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of
business of the Group.
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THE ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD

Regular meetings of the Board were held. During the year, the Board
convened 4 meetings having considered the business developments
and the needs of the Company. In addition, special meetings of the
Board would be held when necessary. Details of each of the Director’s
attendance record in full meetings of the Board are as follows:

Name of Director

EEpng

Mr. Wang Weniian (Honorary Chairman) — EX 254 (58T /E)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HEERENE (LE)

Mr. Sun Yang kst

Mr. Wang Wenijie FXREAE

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARELE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun IHEE T E

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRIP4

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

Directors are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda
for regular Board meetings. Dates of regular Board meetings are
scheduled at least 14 days in advance to provide sufficient notices to
all Directors, ensuring that they are given an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notices will be given. Minutes
of all Board meetings and meetings of committees are kept by the
Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are sent to
all Directors for their comments and record respectively, in both cases

within a reasonable time after the meetings.

During the year of 2020, as part of the commitment to best practices,
all Directors attended electronic correspondences in respect of certain
business development of the Group. Such arrangement ensured fast
and timely provision of information to Directors, to supplement the
formal Board meetings.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established and delegated authorities and
responsibilities to four specific committees with written terms of
reference to assist the Board to perform its functions effectively,
namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Strategy and Development Committee. The terms of
reference for Board committees have been published on the Group’s
website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the website of the
HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.
hk) for shareholders to review.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference. The Nomination Committee comprises 3 members,
namely Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr. Shao Yang Dong (both are
independent non-executive Directors) and Mr. Wang Wenjian (non-
executive Director).

The principal roles and functions performed by the Nomination
Committee during the year include:

a) Reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and making recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

b) Identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship according to the
stipulated nomination procedures;

c) Assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors according to the requirements under the Listing Rules;
and

d) Making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters related
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
plan for Directors.

TEERRE

EEEEE

EExeCKUNEETZER  SIEREAH
MEESARBTHRENENRETHNEDH
HEE EFZELREEFZZES  FMHZE
BE REZESURKEBREREZE® -
EZZECNBREED I EASER I
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com) & & i B 3 i
W 5E 5 2 Bk (http://www.hkexnews.hk) » A

HEREH -

REEES

ARRABEKIZIREEZES U ASEHBEDS
B RRLEem3BKEMEN  BREUIF
MITESHEF T EEBIIREELRIEARTT
EEIXERLE-

RERN REZEGIZRT 2 TIERBRES
¥

a) MAEFEZIRE  AH - -HXRKEZS
Tt - WBER BB AN R AR X R
M EES LR BN HERE

b) MEEEREREFTENE AL XX
EEMRBEFIERZBEBALHEE
FERMAEFTERHEE

c) MREFELMMAIZIRE -
EENME R

AHZIBI FFITE

d RECHNERESURERECTHECHE
MEERESSROES -



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Meeting of the Nomination Committee is held at least once a year.
2 meetings were held in 2020. The attendance of each member at
Nomination Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

BEEHE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun (Chairman) BEB S E (/)
Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELAE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BMPER SEA

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following policy for the nomination of
directors (the “Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

In determining the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination Committee
and the Board shall consider the potential contributions a candidate
can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity. The Nomination Committee and
the Board shall consider the following selection criteria, which are not
meant to be exhaustive:

e the candidate’s personal ethics, reputation, character and
integrity;

e the candidate’s qualifications, skills, knowledge, business
judgment and experience that are relevant to the operations of the
Group;

e the diversity perspectives set out in the Board Diversity Policy of
the Company (as amended from time to time);

Nomination Committee
No. of attendance (Note)/

No. of meetings
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e the candidate’s availability including time commitment to discharge
his or her responsibility as a Director, including being able to
devote sufficient time to attend Board meetings, participate in
induction, trainings and other Board and Company associated
activities (In the case of a candidate who will be nominated as
an independent non-executive Director will be holding his or her
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the Nomination
Committee should consider the reasons given by the candidate
for being able to devote sufficient time to discharge his or her
responsibility as an independent non-executive Director);

e the candidate for the position of an independent non-executive
Director must comply with the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules (as amended from time to time);

e the current size and composition of the Board, the needs of the
Board and the respective committees of the Company;

e the succession planning of members of the Board to ensure the
leadership continuity and smooth functioning of the Group; and

e any other factors that the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee and the Board shall ensure that the
composition of the Board is in conformity with the laws of the Cayman
Islands, the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

Nomination Procedures

The recruitment, identification, evaluation, recommendation,
nomination, selection and new appointment or re-appointment of
each proposed Director shall be assessed and considered by the
Nomination Committee and the Board against the Selection Criteria as
set out in this Nomination Policy.
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In the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board:

e the Nomination Committee may take such measures that it
considers appropriate in connection with its identification and
evaluation of candidates, including but not limited to considering
referrals from the Directors, shareholders, management and
advisors of the Company;

e the Nomination Committee shall identify and ascertain the
character, qualification, knowledge and experience of the
candidate and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
such candidate; and

e the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations by
submitting the candidate’s personal profile to the Board for its
consideration.

In the context of re-appointment of any existing member of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
for its consideration and recommendation for the candidate to stand
for re-election at a general meeting.

For each proposed new appointment or re-appointment of a Director,
the Nomination Committee shall obtain all applicable declarations and
undertaking as required under the laws of the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time).

In the case of a nomination for the position of an independent non-
executive Director, the Nomination Committee shall ensure that the
concerned candidate meets the independence criteria as prescribed
under the Listing Rules.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of candidates to stand for election (and re-election)
at a general meeting.

The ultimate responsibility for the selection and appointment of
Directors rests with the entire Board.

REEEAEEFSHEREAME

s REAZEBEGARINERSBENEIEAY
eRFHEEEA  BREFMRREBEAR
AEE RE - EEERERAHERE

. REZBEHBTHREREANGS &
B OAMBAGH - THRZBRARTESD
HERES R

s RAZBSANABEBRKEREANBEA
BNRTEZGEE -

N
VI

REHZETMRBAEFEREMS @ BRZ
BeARXEZHEFTGERNEBREAR
BRERAG L2HEEE -

IEBUBAZRERERNZETEEMNE  BEZ
BEeRRERSEEEME EMARA (EAE
{ERT) BUS P A 38 R 2 M ARE o

ERZBUFATEBONRT  REEAR
ARERZAAMIRR A LRI 8 2 B
PR -

HHEBREANBRAS L2E (REE) WA
BEH EXSHARKRTERE -

WRREEEENBAECHEESSRAT -



T HERH (RE) ARAF ¢ 2020 4 @

Corporate Governance Report

Review and Monitoring

The Nomination Committee will from time to time review the
Nomination Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance with the regulatory requirements at the
relevant time and good corporate governance practice.

The Nomination Committee shall, when necessary, recommend
revisions to the Nomination Policy to the Board for its consideration
and approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”).

Background and Vision

People-oriented and diversity is one of the Company’s core value. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

Policy Statement

The Company believes that board diversity can enhance
decision-making capability and a diverse board is more effective in
dealing with organisational changes and less likely to suffer from
group thinking. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a wide range of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, business perspectives, skills, knowledge and
length of service, and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed
on ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience for the
Board members in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenges that enable the Board to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectively, support good decision making in view of
the core business and strategy of the Group, and support succession
planning and development of the Board.
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Board Diversity EEgRESZ T

The current Board’s composition under diversified perspectives is %ot BHE FRBEESSHEBMRAOT ¢
summarized as below:

Shao Yang

Ye Liaoning SunYang ~ Wang Wenjie  Wang Wenjian ~ Zhang Yuging ~ Feng Hua Jun Dong
#E gz 9 S R IxE RRE HEE BRI
Gender Male Male Male Male Male Male Male
(3] 3 5 E 5 5 3 =
Age
iR 55 48 53 73 73 57 51
Skills/knowledge/

professional experience:
Financial management
HHER v/ / v/ v/
Operation management
EEEE v/ v/ v v/ v/ v/
Capital market
e v/ v/ / v/
Risk management
RRER v/ v/ v/ v/ / v/ v/
Strategic planning
L5 | v/ / v/ v/ / v/ /
Board committee leadership
experience

ESZZRO9ELR / / v/ / v/

Optical industry and other

related industries
experience

KBTRREMERTRER v/ / v/ v/ v/ v/ /
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Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s Nomination
Policy and will take into account of the Board Diversity Policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merits and contributions that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board, considering the benefits
of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board without
focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Board would ensure that appropriate balance of board diversity
is achieved with reference to stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Board also
aspires to having an appropriate proportion of directors who have
direct experience in the Group’s core markets, with different ethnic
backgrounds, and reflecting the Group’s strategy.

Continuous Monitoring

The Board reviews regularly and assesses annually on the Group’s
diversity profile including gender balance of the Directors, senior
management and employees, and its progress in achieving its diversity
objectives. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions on
the Board Diversity Policy that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for its consideration and approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The members of the Remuneration
Committee included Mr. Shao Yang Dong, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr.
Zhang Yuging (all are independent non-executive Directors).

The principal roles and functions performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the year included:

(@) Making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and senior

management;

(b) Assessing the performance of the executive Directors;
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(c) Approving the terms of Directors’ service contracts, determining
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
senior management and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration of the non-executive Directors;

(d) Reviewing and approving remuneration by reference to corporate
goals resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(e) Reviewing and approving the compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management in connection with resignation
or termination of their positions or appointments.

The meeting of the Remuneration Committee is held at least
once a year and when required. 2 meetings were held in 2020.
The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
remunerations and bonus payable to executive Directors and senior
management for the financial year. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee has reported to the Board on the proceedings of the
meeting. Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments of 2020
are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. The
attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee meetings is
as follows:

Name of Director

EEHA

Mr. Shao Yang Dong (Chairman) BRPR S (£/E)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun BEESE
Mr. Zhang Yuging SRRBE

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference. The Group’s audited final results for the year ended
31 December 2020 were reviewed by all the members of the Audit
Committee, namely Mr. Zhang Yuging, Mr. Feng Hua Jun and Mr.
Shao Yang Dong (all are independent non-executive Directors).
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All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by the
management. The work done and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, the issues which
were brought to the attention of the management and the Board were
not material and therefore no discussion and disclosure are required in
this Annual Report. Full minutes of Audit Committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Drafts and final versions of minutes are
sent to all members of the Audit Committee for their comments and
record respectively, in both cases within a reasonable time after the
meeting. Sufficient resources (including the advice of external auditor)
will be allocated to the Audit Committee to discharge its duties.

The principal roles and functions performed by the Audit Committee
include:

(a) Considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors,
and approving their remuneration, and addressing any question of

their resignation and dismissal,

(b) Reviewing and monitoring the integrity of the financial statements
of the Group together with the Company’s interim and annual
reports;

(c) Maintaining an appropriate relationship with the Group’s external
auditors;

(d) Reviewing the continuing connected transactions; and

(e) Overseeing the Group’s financial control and internal control.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 2 Audit Committee meetings
were held. The Audit Committee has reviewed the annual report for
the year ended 31 December 2019, external auditor’'s remuneration,
internal control system and interim report for the period ended 30
June 2020 at the relevant meetings and reached unanimous consent
to recommend the aforesaid be approved by the Board. The chairman
of the Audit Committee reported to the Board on the proceedings of
these meetings. The Board has not taken any view that deviated from
that of the Audit Committee.
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Furthermore, another meeting was held on 17 March 2021 to review,
inter alia, the annual report and financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020, the report from external auditor
on the audit of the Group’s financial statements, the continued non-
exempt connected transactions, internal control system review and the
re-appointment of external auditor.

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings is as
follows:

Name of Director

BEEHE

Mr. Zhang Yugqing (Chairman) RRELE (EHE)
Mr. Feng Hua Jun REFLE

Mr. Shao Yang Dong AP ER S A

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.

STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE

The Company’s Strategy and Development Committee comprises
5 members, namely Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang
Wenjie (all are executive Directors), Mr. Wang Wenjian (a non-
executive Director) and Mr. Feng Hua Jun (an independent non-
executive Director). The primary duty of the Strategy and Development
Committee is to advise the Board on the Group’s strategy for business
development and future prospects in the international market for
optical related products. It is intended that members of this committee
shall consist of local and international experts in the optical industry
and other related industries. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
4 meetings were held by the Strategy and Development Committee.
During the year, the Strategy and Development Committee handled
matters in relation to the development strategy of the Group and the

new development plan of the Group and their implementation.
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The attendance of each member at Strategy and Development
Committee meetings is as follows:

Name of Director

EEgE

Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) BEELYE (F/F)
Mr. Sun Yang Rkt

Mr. Wang Wenjie EXARELE

Mr. Wang Wenjian FXELRE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun IHEE S E

Note: All of the meetings were attended by the Directors themselves, and not

by an alternate.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the terms of reference for the corporate
governance functions on 22 December 2011 in compliance with the
code provision D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code which was
adopted on 1 April 2012. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the
corporate governance function, the Board shall be responsible for
developing, reviewing and/or monitoring the policies and practices
on corporate governance of the Company; carrying out training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; and reviewing and monitoring compliance with policies
and practices in legal and regulatory requirements of the Company.
The Board has performed the above-mentioned corporate governance
functions and this corporate governance report has been reviewed by
the Board in discharge of its corporate governance functions.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. After having made specific
enquiry with regard to securities transactions by the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Model Code regarding Directors’ securities transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Board agrees with the Audit Committee’s approval of appointment
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (the “Deloitte”) as the Company’s
external auditors for 2020. Its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report of this
Annual Report on pages 117 to 122. Details of the amount of auditor’s
remuneration in 2020 are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has also paid fees amounting to
HK$3,650,000 to the auditor for audit service and review service as
a reporting accountant during the year. Besides these, Deloitte also
provided tax filing services and consulting services to the Company
and charged a service fee of approximately RMB568,254. Other than
as disclosed above, Deloitte did not provide any other services to the
Group.

Deloitte will retire and offer themselves for re-appointment at AGM
of the Company to be held on 25 May 2021. The re-appointment of
Deloitte as the external auditors of the Group has been recommended
by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board, subject to the
shareholders’ approval in the forthcoming AGM.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are responsible for keeping formal accounting records
and preparing the financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020, the Directors have made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis.

Management has provided such explanation and information to the
Board as it would enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of the financial and other information during the Board’s approval.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in this Annual Report.
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The Board’s responsibility is to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment extended to annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, and reports to regulators as
well as information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s internal control
system and reviewing its effectiveness annually. The Board, the
Group’s internal audit department and the management review the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Audit Committee reviews the findings and opinions
of the Group’s internal audit department and the management on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, and reports to
the Board on such reviews. In respect of the year ended 31 December
2020, the Board considered the internal control system is adequate
and effective. No significant areas of concern which might affect the
shareholders were identified.

The internal audit department of the Group should ensure that the
Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
the shareholders’ investment interests and the Group’s assets safety.
The main functions of the internal audit department are to audit the
operating efficiencies of each subsidiary of the Company, to audit
upon resignation of key management personnel, to assist the Board
in reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group, to review internal control of business processes, to audit
the implementation of overall risk management, to promote the
construction of anti-malpractice and to audit individual projects (such
as compliance of related party transactions and audit report of goods
in transit). Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls covering financial,
operational compliance controls and risk management functions will
be conducted annually by the Board.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the risk management
and has authorized the Audit Committee to act as the professional
committee to professionally review the risk management reports
submitted by the management, ensuring that the management has
fulfilled its responsibilities to establish effective risk management and
internal control systems, and review them annually. Systems and
procedures have been established by the Group to identify, assess,
manage and monitor various risks including strategy, financing,
market, operation and compliance that may have impacts on the
Group and each major department. In respect of the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board considered that the risk management is
adequate and effective.

The Company has built an enterprise risk management (‘ERM”)
system with a view to enhancing the risk management and corporate
governance practice, and improving the effectiveness and efficiency of
internal control systems across the whole Group.

The Group has organised and established a risk management
group (‘Risk Management Group”) headed by the Chief Executive
Officer, responsible for daily management related to risks of the
Group. All of the Group’s subsidiaries have also established their risk
management teams, responsible for risk management of their own. At
the same time, the Group has engaged a world-renowned consultant
institution as the risk management consultant to assist the Group
in building effective risk management overall framework so as to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
staff training programmes and relevant budget of the Group’s risk
management, internal audit and reporting function.

The Board believes that a heightened focus on risk and compliance is
beneficial for the ongoing development and growth of the Company
as well as its staff. In establishing the ERM system, all key functions of
the Company were carried out by the Risk Management Group of the
Group to undertake the following exercises:

1. Enterprise risk assessment — to identify and prioritise the Group’s
key business risks;

2. Enterprise risk response — to assess the related internal controls
and risk mitigating measures;
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Risk management implementation monitoring — to review the
inspection report on implementation of risk management and
follow up with the response situation monthly;

Build the library of key risk indicators — to recognise existing
risk monitoring indicators, monitor the running conditions of the
indicators and timely make risk warning;

Improve the risk checklist — to identify and build a risk checklist
which is suitable to the actual situation of the Company;

Risk management is included in the performance evaluation of the
Company; and

Risk management digitalization construction — timely present risk
management dashboard of the Company.

Summary of Work in 2020

During the year, the Risk Management Group of the Group reported

to the Audit Committee on the annual risk assessment and internal
control reviews. Its work in 2020 included:

Optimized the risk management system framework

Optimized the Group’s risk management objectives, principles and
the forms of organization;

Formulated the three-year plan of risk management and the risk
management work plan for the coming year;

Improved the Group’s risk management policy, issued policies
including the risk management procedures and risk management
performance appraisal;

Established three lines of defense of risk management, and
improved the function of each line of defense of ERM;

Formulated the procedures of identifying and regulating key risk
indicators (“KRI"); and

Optimized the basic procedures of ERM and formed the six-steps
method in risk management.

TEERRE

3. RRERZERREE - ***J—LIZAE.EE
BEREhEmE e ARERYE

?“E‘ ? " BE I?ET?%E'\]L

— #BAIRAR mm?
1TIEM I R B

5, TERMBERE - BRILEINTEARTE

ERBERNERBER

6. RREEMARNRBEREZ Rk

7. BEHETER  HRETIAAFRA
Eﬁaﬁ{ﬁiﬁf’

—ECEFTHESE

RER  NEBRREEIENERFERR

FEEASERERTMEZEZETEIT T R

HoZETFHTIERSA -

ELE e & RE ZHELE

e EBAEERRERAE - RAINAKS
BV

e HITRREB=FHRIIL T —FERRE
BT {ERTE

s EEARERREEBR
B RERERERERS

: ?*EWEH&AR%E%

s BYERREE=-BHR ATELEXER
B EEARBAE

o HIERBER
2R

2 6 1% (TKRIL) @50 M EEE R

e BERBEREARRE ERERE
BRHVE o



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Corporate Governance Report

AN Y- A e
TEERHRSE
Self-assessment on risk management [ EHE A

e Organized risk management training and self-assessment .
coaching for each business segment and department;

e Organized risk identification and assessment in each business °
segment and department to formulate specific contingency plan
for key risks and generate risk management self-assessment
report; and

e |ssued the risk management self-assessment report of the Group °
and submitted to the Audit Committee for review.

481 ﬁk’z%%"%&*ﬁ?? £ 17 B B
SRR !

MRS EE S EME PR R XA
HHHEMRARG EAEEENEE - AR
HEIE AR ERE - &

HEAXASERREEAFRE  BRXEX
ZEgEH -

Optimized and expanded the database of risk management Bt ExEREEE

e Optimized the risk management checklist and unified the language  *
of risk management;

e Expanded the KRI identification work for each business segment e
and department; and

e (Conducted pilot project on the establishment of key risk event °
database.

Eﬂzﬂ ERFEEYR -—AREEA

E H

WA EEDEMEBPIKRINEZRITIE : &

AHEHRREFERR -

Raised risk awareness and talent development AR EFHRA S EE

e Empowered personnel of every level with risk management °
capabilities; and

e Established a team of professional talents for risk management in
each business segment and department;

Normalized risk management SR

e Reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk °
management system, and reviewed significant and emerging risks
with department heads;

e Monitored the operating results of the KRI every month and gave °
a timely warning on the indicator results;

EEXDAMAFRREREEEREAS

GRS ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%éi%’ﬁﬂﬁ%{

ﬁﬁéﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂ Ry B KR B K ¥ B
FHEEKRIETER - YHERERET
KETRE ;
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e Monitored the implementation of the risk response measures every
month and revised the response plan in a timely manner;

e Conducted internal control review of key business processes of
each business segment and department;

e The internal audit department independently reviewed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management system
framework and submitted the review results and recommendations
on improvement to the Audit Committee;

e Collected the major risk events from each business segment and
department every month and formed a risk event database;

e Risk management review meetings were held regularly by each
business segment and department; and

e The Group held the annual conclusion meeting of risk management
and initiated the self-assessment of risk management for 2021.

Risk Management Policy Framework

Effective risk management and internal control systems are critical
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives. The Group has
established a risk management policy framework, which is approved
by the Board and the Audit Committee, and executed by the Risk
Management Group. It authorizes the Group to mandates a consistent
and effective approach applied across the Group to fully manage the
risks associated with strategies, financing, operations, market and
compliance.

The following key processes are adopted under the Group’s ERM
framework:

TEERRE
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To consolidate the framework and establish the model for the three RIBERMFFERELHEE SN BMEBE
lines of defense of risk management according to The Committee of E& ([COSO]) BAIELR B2y AKEE=128
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (‘COSQ”) : [ i gAY

The Board/ Audit Committee is the top

L CNELE TR ITEEY  Gecision-making body of risk management
EEe ERZEES of the Company

EExg ' EREE8ERANF

[E\Bg B FR ) B R SRS

Second line of defense . Third line of defense
=oEpe Internal Audit EEEEFEGF-)

The second line of defense is mainly Dep;a%rgfggt The third line of defense is
responsible for coordinating the planning, AEBE AT mainly responsible for examin-

construction, maintenance and
enhancement of the risk management
and internal control system.
FEWRTZEEERREEK
NENE S B RN BFARERRE -

o HEERIEF

ing, auditing and monitoring
the overall risk management
works of the first and second
lines of defense.
FoERTIZREHE N
FENSNETHRARERIE

EITREZ - BANER -

First line of defense
Department E—EhE

3 IR P The first line of defense mainly
conducts the collection of initial risk
information and risk identification,
proactively implements risk
response plans and participate
in the construction of risk manage-
ment culture.
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First line of defense: Operational department of each company and
functional departments of the Group

The first line of defense mainly conducts collection of initial risk
information and risk identification, proactively implements risk
response plans and participate in the construction of risk management
culture.

Second line of defense: Risk Management Group

The second line of defense is mainly responsible for coordinating the
planning, construction, maintenance and enhancement of the risk
management and internal control system.

Third line of defense: Internal audit department

The third line of defense is mainly responsible for examining, auditing
and monitoring the overall risk management works of the first line and
second line of defense.

According to the COSO Integrated Framework, the risk management
work follows the six steps of basic procedures as below:

6.Monitoring
3

Continuous Processes

FENBER

4.Risk Response
[ B FE 3§

TEERRE

AIZE & EBFT R 7K 55 B B B

F7
F—EMREBETRRYIGESKEMER
Bh - BEERARESSE  2HRRER
bz -

#F= @ﬁﬁfﬁ B BT E/
£ %?EEE,\HK?EIE&W%M
E’JT%" HREIMRE C HEREANIRTT -

il 68 %

FE=BR - AEEFFE
F-EBhRTEABUHE—NE_EHENSD
HEMREIETEEITRE - %aﬁﬂ%ﬁ% °

RIECOSOEAIELR
/\ﬁ%ﬁX%zﬁumaﬁ: .

CRBRERIEEREAT

1.Goal Setting
BIRERE

&3]

3.Risk Assessment
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TEERRE

Phase 1

Goal Setting

The Board establishes common risk assessment criteria and sets up
risk reference tables for the Group. Meanwhile, Risk Management
Group of the Group and Risk Management Group of each business
segment discuss and formulate overall risk management objectives,
management requirements and organization methods.

Phase 2

Risk Identification

Each business segment and department collects risk information
related to the Group and identifies the risks that potentially impact
the key processes of the operations. The Group also identifies
opportunities for improvement.

Phase 3

Risk Assessment

Each business segment and department uses uniform and quantitative
criteria to assess the identified risks along with their impacts on the
business and the possibility of their occurrence to determine the risk
level.

Phase 4

Risk Response

Each business segment and department determines the overall
response strategy and corresponding response plan for the assessed
risks as well as the implementation measures such as risk taking, risk
avoidance, risk transfer and risk reduction to deal with the risks.

Phase 5

Control Activity

Each business segment and department establishes or modifies
relevant systems and control activity procedures to ensure that
necessary risk responses and action plans are implemented and the
risk management response plan is executed, in order to control and
manage potential risks.

Phase 6

Monitoring

Each business segment and department continues to follow up the
operation situation of KRI, implementation and effectiveness of the risk
response plan, makes timely risk warning, adjusts response plan and
reports risks regularly to the relevant management within the Group.
The internal audit department independently reviews the adequacy and
effectiveness of the framework of risk management system per annum,
and submits the review results and recommendations on improvement
to the Audit Committee.
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TEERRE

With this practical and effective framework, risk management has been EfZBERAMKBBIESRE @ BABREEE2AS
integrated into each functional department. — 158 aE FRFT -

Group’s Risk Report SEERE

The Group faces various risks and uncertainties. The relevant key risks ZKE EEHsERR kI EEEE ﬁ@@fﬁ
are the risks that the Group must take in order to achieve its strategic BRI AEEAEREHBKIZMH VN AEART
objectives. If they are not handled properly, it might bring adverse E@EL w o WS AEERE T@EQ%TZK%@
impact to the operations of the Group. Thus, a comprehensive risk  H)E &SRR FZ - 2EHERTE N AR
assessment and risk mitigation measures help ensure these key risks JHEE AR TIERAGEIEEEENLE
are properly managed and effectively controlled. The followings are  ZiZ#l e LN ESFEHE T -_TF+ -4
the principal potential risks that the Board has identified for the year =+—BItFEED#NTEEERER

ended 31 December 2020.

Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend
rEEFERR FTEEHRERLR AERRER
Business and Business and Strategic Risks:
Strategic Risk
ERRBRER ERRERAR:

- The uncertainty in regulatory, political environment - Proactively monitoring the industry trends, competitors
and trading environment in the region where the and innovative products;
Group operates and COVID-19 may result in — BBREZ{TEBY  HFHUTFRAFER
significant adverse impact to the Group’s business
performance, prospects for development and/or the - Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and
ability to implement its strategy the Group. local changes in regulations that may affect the Group;
- FEEREMAHEEE BARSENESRENT - EREENEERHAEYEREENIRINFEE
BERRCOVID-19 - MREASENRBRE &R  ANED:
AR/ JEBNERTIEATHYE -
- Increasing investments in new businesses and
cultivating new growth points;

- WAHMEZRA  HEHOERHE

- Dynamically updating the development strategies of
the Company and regularly adjusting the means and
methods of promoting strategic objectives according
to the situations; and

- PEFHALTEREE REVETHRLHEER

BROAAAFE R

- Implementing corresponding projects of monitoring,
increasing strategic flexibility and specially reserving
resources for strategy.

- EmHEARER  ENEREIMRAERKEER -
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Group’s principal risks

AEETERR

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend
BRERER

Operational Risk
EERk

Safe Production Risks:

ZREERR

Material accidents affecting safe production
of equipment and facilities, property safety,
occupational disease hazards of employees and
enterprise’s continuous operations may occur as a
result of the enterprise’s internal and other factors.

ROEABEREFMT TRELRYERE Rk

RrEE MERE BIBXRRENRFELR -

RELENBARESNE -

Enhancing employees’ safe production training,
organizing safety training and drills irregularly,
enhancing employees’ safety awareness;
MEETIRZ2HER  TEREAL2HIIREE
RABIZ2ES:

Strengthening the daily monitoring and timely
maintenance of various equipment, and carrying out
safety and fool-proof transformation of equipment;
MERBRENAEERARERE - THRBENR
RIRYE

Timely monitoring the operations of the KRI, carrying
out regular inspections on hidden hazards, controlling
safe risks from their sources and thoroughly
remediating hidden safety hazards;
EREZKRIETER THRREBHE - 25IRE
RrER HZEREETHRRS:

Optimizing emergent contingency plan system and
immediately activating the emergency response
procedures in case of black swan events; and
BrEZERHE WEERBEHVARDEZER
BF R

Participating in property insurance and purchasing
insurance for the employees.

SMBERBREAEIBERR -
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IRRHREERR BEERERN

Public Safety Emergency Risks:
RENMAR2SHER

- Subject to external factors such as natural disasters - Proactively monitoring the external development of
and pandemic, public safety emergency may affect public safety emergencies;
the enterprise as a going concern. Prevalence of — BRERRHNATRHHNDEEBS
COVID-19 may occur in India, Vietnam and  China,
and the instability of the pandemic may cause the - Establishing emergent contingency plans for public
disruption of the Group’s business. safety emergencies and defining the management
- TNBERLE  RESAZME RELLL2E responsibility of each business segment and
k57 %m%ﬁ@ > COVID-19ENE ~ #  department;
ARPESTRLERERERR  REERNOSE - BURELARIFMERER BREEXIND
T SR AR B R KR - HEREE

- Establishing emergency management teams for public
safety emergencies and holding regular emergency
meetings;

- RURBAARZEMNESER M EHERRES
fESEeE

- Implementing grid management and emergency
management work to all grid leaders, and carrying out
publicity and management to all employees; and

- ﬁﬁﬂﬁm B RUSHESERTERENEER

Rk EERERREISMET R

- Basing on the local national and governmental
pandemic prevention work arrangements, timely
adjusting the pandemic prevention work of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

- REEERREAOHRIERSE  ERERERT
RMBRAIMHRIIE
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Group’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETEAR BEEREM

Human Resource Risks:

ADERER

The demand of the Group’s development cannot -

be fulfiled if there is insufficient human resource
reserve, which thereby affects the Group's

production plan and operation. It might render —

the Group’s products or production methods
uncompetitive;

AERREIR  REASENRRFLEESE -

ANRELFEREEANEEBRNT TRER

ARENERREETEREREN -

Failure in the optimization of human resource -

allocation and insufficient incentive mechanism may —

lead to loss of talents, work stoppages and other
labour related issues, which may adversely affect the -
Group's operation; and
ANERAEMBCRETARABDEHN TR - B

RESIFATRE  BIREMSTIRE HA%E -

MEEERTHZE : &

As overseas investment increase, the difference in -

employment overseas and within China may lead to —

risks in overseas employment.
BEEMANEN  BHIRIRERFEZRN -
AERFEENEIRAR -

Carrying out organization diagnosis, formulating talent
plan that matches the Company’s strategies to reserve
talents in advance;

FRASIE HITEARAEREENAT RS R
HIREAT

Expanding recruitment channels and recruiting
management team;

BERERE BRAARETRENK:

Proactively promoting the production line automation;

BERELESEDL:

Carrying out evaluation and assessment of talents
regularly, hiring and retaining talents with attractive
incentive program;
THYATETRE RV - TAEFRS| N0 R
HERRBEANT

Optimizing the human resources management system;
TEANERERZL

Carrying out multilevel talent development programs to
improve employees’ business standard;

RRZERNHATERNE RRETHEHAY

Strengthening the construction of corporate culture
to enhance employees’ satisfaction and engagement;
and

MBLEXMRRIIE  RABTREEEHEE : &

Improving the systematized management mechanism
of overseas employment recruitment, remuneration
and personnel.

TEBMAIHE  FHRAZSRRICHERHA -
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Group'’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IRRHREERR BEERERN

Product Quality Risks:
EREERK:

- The Company’s products may have product quality - Promoting the consciousness of quality first activities
issues that affect customer satisfaction, damage the and enhancing the awareness and capability of quality

Company’s image and increase cost of operations. among all employees of the Group;
- RAREMRFHENEERE YEXFPRE - AREANBRERESZLNED RE2EmEER
[E - BRAVERBUEMEENE « Y

- Optimising the system for each phase of the entire
life cycle of product management and the Standard
Operating Procedure (‘SOP");

- BlRAnARERERERENERREFLRRR
(fsop)) :

- Enhancing on-site trainings for operators and the
operators shall strictly follow the SOP in processing;

- MERGREAREI - BIFERRZRSOPETM
I:

- Proactively promoting the production line automation
and enhancing investment in informatization of
inspection instruments; and

- BREELESEDL  MAESLRARBRA : R

- Implementing and applying the informatization system,
realizing data tracking throughout the entire process.
- BREERAESLEN  BRANIEEBER -
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IRRHREERR BEEREM

Information System and Information
Security Management Risks:

ERARARER2EEAR

- The operation of the Group is highly dependent - Establishing an information security management
on the informatization system. The system and system, continuously improving the management
information security may be hacked or attacked system of information system and enhancing the
that may lead to the leakage of the Company’s information security control measures on an ongoing
confidential information and affect the normal basis;
operation of the Company. - BURBRREEBZ BERSGERHERNE

- FREEESERBESLEN  RENERRER  UFEREEIRRRHENER:

ABRYE  ARENATREERRE  FELRT

ERES - Strengthening the physical security of enterprise
data centres, developing information system/data
backup and information system disaster recovery
plans, standardizing personnel operations to ensure
continuity in the information system business; and

- MECEBERONMERS  HTEERE/ UBE

PRESZHNEREHE  ABASRE BRES
FRRBEEL R

- Strengthening protective measures on internal and
external network security and abilities to prevent
viruses, the Group has passed the 1S027000
certification to ensure the protection of information
security and business system security of the Company.

- MEANBBEZEHEERRRENERN  T5E
EBiBIS0270002% - REARAEER 2 EEBZA
£% o
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TEERRE

Group'’s principal risks

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Target risk trend

AEETERR BEERERN

Overseas Investment Risks:

BHRERR -

- Differences in the politics, laws, technologies,
societies, cultures in international operations and
the impact of COVID-19 may result in low efficiency
in overseas investment management and failure in
investment to the Company.

- BERCESTIR AR BB ie WEEE
RCOVID-19M%/2 - Al @ ERARTGIMREE
BEETRREXE -

n

Foreign Exchange and Interest Rate Risks:

HERFIZER :

- International exchange rate fluctuations may result
in significant foreign currency losses. Significant
floating interest rate liabilities may result in higher
finance costs if current interest rates increase.

- BREXRYALEHEANEEE « WRITMEL
Tt RARFEMNRABTEHRENRAEN -

Consolidating the level of international operations;

FEARLEZRT

Optimizing systematization and standardization in
overseas investments in order to continuously lower
the overseas investment risks; and

BOBMA R RRBLER  RERESINRE
Rk &

Strengthening the analysis of international situations
and investment environment and warning management
in order to continuously improve abilities in overseas
investment management.
MEERKERRERESTERTER
MEEEREN

RERTE

Maximising natural hedging position by setting up
offshore factories or currency pairings in sales and
procurements contracts; and
ERERNRBIHERREA NN EREY  RER
RERHAHR R

Implementing centralised management of foreign
exchange funds of onshore companies, coordinating
the foreign exchange funds of various subsidiaries to
implement centralised foreign exchange payments,
while operations such as conducting exchange rate
lock-in and purchasing financial instruments for foreign
exchange hedging to reduce exchange rate exposure
and lower the exchange rate risk.
ERRRANER ST ER  REXMBLRINE
B BITMNEERIRN  VETERHE BESR
TEETEXERSRENISEXRHRO  BEEXE
gk -
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Group’s principal risks Key controls and treatment plan(s) Target risk trend

AEETERR IRRHREERR BEEREM

Market Competition Risks:
TERTAR

- The Group is operating in a highly competitive - Expanding the layout of global industrial bases, such
industry, the uncertainty of the global trading as setting up overseas factories in India, Vietnam and
environment, the instability of the pandemic, the other places;
changes in market demands and peers’ conditions, — MAZRILEZENGS - WOE - HEEHENE
the incapability in identifying and analysing the B
demands in the industry and market amid intensified
market competition might result in the risks of lower - Focusing on industrial and terminal development
eamings for the Company. trends in real time, increasing spending on the R&D

- REEMRERRTETAL  2REARAMIE  of products, laying out product lines in advance, and
Bl REORE  mEERAREOREEE) enhancing product value in respond to the changes in
HATERTETLEANENHDTENTRART  market demand at any time;

EREHNE - ARAEEBERE TRMOER o ERBITEREGEREY  MAERRERAX
it RAGEERSR  RAERBE JERELTS
FROBIL

- Keeping close eyes on the market dynamics,
continuously exploring new markets or new customers,
and maintaining good relationships with customers;
and

- BNRETSDE  BERENTSANER  YEE
PRERFNAEERE: R

- Continuously tracing customers’ demands and
developing capacity plan to ensure product supply and
keep inventory within the safety standards.

- THRREPEL  HRERRE NREERMRE
TREFEHER 2 RER -



Group'’s principal risks

AEETERR

Customer Credit Risks:

EEERRR

- Failure to timely detect the changes in global trading
environment, the credit issues that customers may
face and customers’ credit changes in time may
lead to issues such as failure to collect payments for
goods and for stocked up goods.

- ARBERIZRESREE  RPURERKER
FRREFERE  MRERSTEEDY - 25
BEERENFERE -
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Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Improving the credit management system, regularly
reviewing the credit assessment of customers, and
adjusting the credit limit;
TERPERERNE  UEHHEFETER
BEEREE

SR

Conducting risk customer screening management
when choosing new customers, and tightening
management on business terms and conditions for
high-risk customers in the early stage;
MEPERRENARTFHFEER BRARETFAE
ETEB R EIMEER ;

Implementing customer classification management;
EIRFHEER

Participating in account receivable insurance to reduce
bad debt losses; and

SMERERRR - BOERER : R

Strengthening the supervision and management of risk

indicators, making early warnings on the trend in credit

changes and analysing the reasons for trend ohanges

MARRESEREEE - RABLEAZDED
ATBEZEBREA -

BERAWE

Target risk trend
BRERER
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Legal Risk
EERR

Group’s principal risks

FEETERR

Risks of Laws and Regulations:

ERERER

- The uncertainty of international trading environment, -

or non-compliance with applicable laws, local
regulations and compliance responsibilities where
the Groups has legal entities, such as trade control,
anti-monapoly, anti-unfair competition, labour usage,
intellectual property rights, may cause the Group to
suffer from severe penalties or even subject to legal
proceedings, causing adverse impact on the public
image of the Group.

- ERESRENIREY I TETEREE B8
RN TRANSREE MESHEH RE
B RAERE SHBAI DHERS #UE
KASEREREAT  HERREESD  HA%

Key controls and treatment plan(s)

IREHREERR

Organising internal audit team and legal team, and
also hiring external legal and compliance advisors for
consultation in order to seek legal advice and review
the conditions for compliance;
BRNIERERREREY  AREENDERRA
RER - ARHEEEE  SYEMEEER RS
RER

Strengthening the management of all types of business
information of the Company, relying on informatization
for screening all types of messages;
MARARERRERER  RHEEHEEERE
188

Target risk trend

BRRVEBRIHFE -
- Strengthening the patent management team and
conducting the layout of patents in advance;

- BEENEREN - RAETENGR

- Improving the whistleblowing platform and
strengthening the compliance publication;

- ZERRTRUMBAREE:

- Reviewing the Company external affairs by
professionals; and

- RAMNEEERERAREN R

- Proactively monitoring and preparing for global and
local changes in regulations that may affect the Group.

- ERERNERRUILYEIRENIRRANEE
CLECE

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has carried out EHE-_T-_ZTF+_-_A=Z+—HBIFE X%
a review of, and the Board has received a confirmation from the EEZEMEEZeCEEEREEBHAEZENME
management on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal BREEMANTEILZZGHRIENER - BES
control system of the Group. No significant matters of concern were EWHEBIREMEZEINEZEE - A5E
identified by the Board. The Group has not identified any emerging R-ZE-_ZTFWRERTMHEEREATE
risks that had significant impacts on the operations during 2020. B 3 S LB o
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Major Initiatives for 2021

In 2021, the Group’s main focuses will continue to be on:

(i)

(ii)

enhancing internal control and strategy management system
and monitoring the key risks in each business segment and
department in order to manage the strategic risks of the Group;

further promoting and expanding the coverage of KRI by each
business segment and department, and carrying out daily

follow-up and risk warning on the operation results;

dynamically identifying the risks that are faced by each business
segment and department, continuing to carry out in-depth
normalized management on risk management, and continuously

promoting the implementation of the risk response plans;

incorporating risk management into performance evaluation by
each business segment and department;

preliminarily establishing an intelligent risk management system;
and

continuously empowering the risk management to enhance the
awareness and sense of commitment in risk management of the
Group.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES

The Group deeply knows that enterprise is not an organization only for

maximising its own interests, but also an important driver to facilitate

wealth accumulation of the whole society, advance social civilisation

and promote the sustainable development of the environment. The

management of the Group pays high attention to corporate social

responsibilities. The management strictly monitors the development,

implementation and results of various departments of the Group, in

which the environmental, social and governance standards have been

integrated into their daily operating activities. Details are set out in the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be published
before the end of June 2021.
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CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING
PRICE SENSITIVE AND/OR
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has developed a system with established policies,
processes and procedures across all relevant segments and
departments for complying with the disclosure obligations regarding
price sensitive and/or inside information. The system continues to be
effective. The Company will continue to further enhance its effects
on the business operations, development of the Company and new
regulations and laws with great effort.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company is committed to creating two-way channels of
communication between senior management and investors, maintaining
close relationships with all its shareholders through a variety of channels
and promoting the communication with investors. The Company has
adopted a shareholders’ communication policy to formalise and facilitate
an effective and healthy communication between the Company and the
shareholders and other stakeholders, which is available on the website
of the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com). The main communication
channels with the shareholders include:

Investors’ Meetings

Investor presentations are held by the Group in respect of its
annual results and interim results. In addition, the Group’s senior
management and personnel from investor relations management
department hold meetings with investors. Investors are provided with
the latest information of the Group, in compliance with applicable laws

and regulations. The Group keeps close contact with the investors.

During the year of 2020, given by the travel restrictions of COVID-19,
the Company held an audio investor meeting in relation to the
publication of 2019 annual results, and held a virtual investor meeting
in relation to the publication of 2020 interim results. Meanwhile,
the Company attended numerous virtual investor meetings,
including an investor day, 30 non-deal roadshows and other types
of communication activities, so as to keep close contact with the
investors.
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Annual General Meeting

The AGM is an important platform for shareholders to participate in
discussions, facilitating the communications between the management
of the Group and the shareholders. The AGM is held once a year,
being publicly accessible to all shareholders. The Group’s senior
management answers any questions that shareholders have in the
meeting and the external auditors and legal adviser attend the AGM as
well.

The attendance of each Director at the AGM held in 2020 is as
follows:

Name of Director

Mr. Wang Wenjian (Honorary Chairman) EXELRE (EEFE)
Mr. Ye Liaoning (Chairman) HEBELA(FE)

Mr. Sun Yang BRSHE

Mr. Wang Wenijie FEXAREE

Mr. Feng Hua Jun TER T

Mr. Shao Yang Dong BRANER S A

Mr. Zhang Yuging RARESE

Note: The meeting was attended by the Directors themselves, and not by an

alternate.

Apart from AGM, any one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. No EGM was held in 2020.

There is no provision allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at general meetings under the Cayman lIslands Companies Law
or the Articles of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene an EGM following the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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All matters proposed to shareholders for approval shall be submitted
in separate resolutions and resolved by way of poll at the general
meeting. The procedures of conducting a poll are explained in
details to shareholders by the Group prior to the voting, to ensure
the shareholders are familiar with such arrangement. Poll results
will be published on the websites of HKEXnews of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Group
(http://www.sunnyoptical.com).

The Group has also maintained the procedures for director nomination
by the shareholders, which has been published on the Group’s
website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com), to ensure the interests of
shareholders.

Annual Reports, Interim Reports, Announcements
and Circulars

The Group issues its annual reports and interim reports after publishing
the annual results and the interim results in March and August every
year respectively, so as to periodically review the development of the
Group as well as to update its shareholders with its latest business
information and market trends. In addition, the Group explains to the
shareholders through announcements regarding any major events or
price-sensitive information. For any matters requiring the approval of
the shareholders, the Group holds an extraordinary general meeting
according to the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and issues a circular prior to the specific date of the meeting,
allowing the shareholders to have sufficient time to learn more about
the matters for making voting decisions. All annual reports, interim
reports, announcements and circulars are uploaded to the websites of
HKEXnews of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com).
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CHANGES OF ARTICLES OF THE
ASSOCIATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there were no changes
in the Company’s Articles of Association. The latest version of the
Company’s Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Group (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) and the HKEXnews of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk). Shareholders can
also obtain the details of their rights with reference to the Company’s
Articles of Association.

The Group’s Website

The Group’s website (http://www.sunnyoptical.com) offers timely
access to the Group’s press releases and other business information.
Meanwhile, it provides shareholders with the electronic version of
the financial reports, the presentation materials for investors, as well
as the latest news about the Group’s businesses, announcements
and general information, etc. To make contributions to environmental
protection and maintain effective communication with shareholders,
the Group encourages all shareholders to browse the Group’s
information on the website.

Investor Contact and Inquiries

The Group has a dedicated team to maintain contact with investors
and handle shareholders’ inquiries. Should have any inquiries, please
contact the Group’s investor relations management department (Tel:
+86-574-6253 4996; +852-3568 7038; email: ir@sunnyoptical.com).

On behalf of the Board
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

17 March 2021
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The Directors are pleased to present the 2020 Annual Report,
including the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Review

Under multifaceted pressure arising from the worldwide spread of
COVID-19, the intensification of Sino-U.S. trade frictions and the
fierce market competition, the Group responded positively to and
surmounted the challenges. Leveraging on the leading technological
advantages, precise market deployment, diversified customer
structure and product mix, consolidated the advantageous businesses
continuously and promoted the building of talent team, the overall
performance of the Group recorded a decent growth. Details of the
core business are set out in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis”.

Outlook and Future Strategies

Looking ahead to 2021, the Group will further enhance its market
competitiveness, strengthen and expand its existing advantageous
businesses; improve its refined management to continuously enhance
operating quality; increase R&D investment to accelerate the cultivation
and growth of new businesses; and accelerate the global deployment
of industrial bases in order to consolidate the level of international
operations.
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Major Financial and Business Performance
Indicators

Major financial and business performance indicators of the Group
include revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of operating expenses,
profit for the year, return on equity, trade receivable turnover days,
trade payable turnover days, inventory turnover days and gearing
ratio, etc. Details of the Group’s revenue, gross profit margin, ratio of
operating expenses, profit for the year, trade receivable turnover days,
trade payable turnover days, inventory turnover days and gearing ratio
are set out in the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this Annual Report. Details of other major performance indicators are
discussed below.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s return on equity
decreased by approximately 2.2 percentage points to approximately
29.4% compared to that of last year. The Group will aim at continuing
to increase the return on equity by increasing the profit margins and
earnings per share, etc.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group has formulated some policies in accordance with
environmental regulations, such as conducting environmental
impact assessment for various types of materials or machines prior
to making any purchasing decision during the stage of design and
R&D; enhancing awareness of environmental protection among
all employees by organising environmental protection activities,
training programmes and promotions; and leading a core role by top
management of the Group to establish a well-defined structure and
system for environmental management by outlining corresponding
responsibility, scope and policy.

During the daily operations, the Group has paid a close attention to
the latest development of domestic and international environmental
protection laws and regulations to ensure that the environmental
policies are in line with domestic and international standards, as well
as global peers.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations. Any failure to comply
with such requirements may result in termination of the operation
permit. The Group has allocated systems and human resources
to ensure continuing compliance with rules and regulations and
sound working relationships with regulators through effective
communications. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
has complied with the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, the Companies Ordinance, the Restriction of Hazardous
Substances Directive (the “RoHS”) of the European Union, the
Regulation on Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction
of Chemicals (the “REACH”) of the European Union, the Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Contract Law and the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant rules and
regulations.

Main Risks and Uncertainties

The main business activities of the Group include the production
and sale of relevant products. It is exposed to a variety of main risks
including interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate fluctuation risk, credit
risk, cash flow interest rate risk and liquidity risk. Details of the above
main risks and measures for risk reduction are set out in the section
“Management Discussion and Analysis”.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s business and
profitability growth were affected by the fluctuations and uncertainties
of macroeconomic situations of mainland China and other countries
around the world. Discrepancies of the monetary policies among
major developed economies are expected to continue to affect the
capital and trade flows as well as the asset price of mainland China.
In addition, as the main business activities of the Group involve such
fields as smartphones, vehicle imaging and sensing systems, security
surveillance systems and optical instruments, they are also subject to
relevant market environments. The long-term business and profitability
growth of the Group are expected to be continuously impacted by
variables of the Chinese macro-economy (including but not limited
to consumer and asset price indices, credit demand and total output
value growth) and qualitative factors (such as the development of
political and economic policies of various countries in the world).
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Relationships with Major Stakeholders

The Group’s success also relies on the support of major stakeholders
including employees, customers, suppliers, regulators and
shareholders.

Employees

Employees are considered to be the most important and valuable
assets of the Group. The purpose of human resource management
of the Group is to reward and praise the staff with excellent
performances through the provision of generous remuneration
package, the implementation of the comprehensive performance
evaluation plan and the Restricted Share Award Scheme. Besides,
the Group formulates an appropriate training plan based on various
positions, duties and titles and provides certain opportunities and
platforms to assist the employees in developing and getting promoted
within the Group.

Customers

The major customers of the Group are handset terminal manufacturers,
handset camera module manufacturers, vehicle equipment integrators
and so on. The Group is committed to providing its customers with
superior products and services so as to strive for sustainable growth
in respect of revenue and profitability. The Group has adopted various
means to strengthen the communication with its customers, and
expanded different businesses to provide customers with superior
products and services so as to increase market shares and improve
market competitiveness.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with the suppliers is essential to the
Group in respect of the supply chain and when facing business
challenges and regulatory requirements. It can achieve cost efficiency
and promote long-term commercial benefits. Major suppliers include
raw material suppliers, system and equipment suppliers, external
consultants providing professional services, suppliers of office supplies
or commodities and other business partners providing the Group with
value-added services.
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Regulators

The Company is subject to the regulation of the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Ministry
of Emergency Management of the PRC, State Administration for
Market Regulation and other relevant regulators. The Group expects
to ensure compliance with new rules and regulations as updated from
time to time.

Shareholders

The Group distributes certain dividends to its shareholders in order
to reward their support after boosting its business development to
achieve the sustainable profit growth and taking into account the
capital adequacy level, the liquidity and the business expansion needs.

DIVIDENDS DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 123.

The Directors recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
approximately RMB0.888 (equivalent to HK$1.057) per share payable
on 24 June 2021 to all persons registered as holders of shares on 31
May 2021.

In order to be qualified for receiving the dividend, the Register of
Members will be closed from 1 June 2021 to 4 June 2021, both days
inclusive. Shareholders should submit share certificates together
with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at
Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m. on 31 May 2021.

In order to be qualified for attending the AGM to be held on 25 May
2021, the Register of Members will be closed from 20 May 2021 to
25 May 2021, both days inclusive. Shareholders should submit share
certificates together with transfer documents to the Company’s Hong
Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17" Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong at or before 4:30 p.m.
on 18 May 2021.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Details of the Group’s transactions with its major customers and
suppliers during the year are set out below:

In 2020,
approximately 26.5% of the Group’s total revenue compared to
approximately 38.7% of last year. In 2020,
five largest customers accounted for approximately 67.7% (2019:
approximately 68.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

revenue from the largest customer accounted for

revenue from the top

In 2020, the purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for approximately 19.2% (2019: approximately 27.2%) and the
aggregate purchases attributable to the top five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 51.3% (2019: approximately 53.5%) of
the total purchases of the Group.

At no time for the year ended 31 December 2020 did any of the
Directors, their close associates or any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) have any interest in any of
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes during the year in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2020,
calculated under the Cayman Islands Companies Law amounted
to approximately RMB16,076.1 million (2019: approximately
RMB11,989.4 million).
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DONATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB794,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Liaoning
Mr. Sun Yang
Mr. Wang Wenijie

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wenjian
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Yuging
Mr. Feng Hua Jun
Mr. Shao Yang Dong

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association, at least one-third of the Directors will retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company. A circular containing the explanatory statement
on repurchase by the Company of its shares, the biographical details
of the director candidates and the notice of AGM will be sent to
shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than
normal statutory compensation.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment or re-appointment.
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HHEZER AR

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES

RZF-_TFT_A=1+—8  REARXFR
B LBRE G (RS RBEMRP ) E3521(F
FEMNECMACHE - SARBEZRETRREM
AHEARANBERIANESE N T EITR
ANEBBREARBREEMABEE (EEEE
Z REIEGRPIEXVED) i - HERG RE
FEVEEIORRIAT

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or of any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows:

Approximate

Name of Long/short Number of percentage of
corporation position Type of interest shares shareholding
8 EEERE %,/ KR Rz ER ROHE | SRENBESL
Mr. Wang Wenijian The Company Long position Trustee and beneficiary of a 389,091,927 35.47%
trust (Note 1)
INERE PN e EAXFARTHA (1)
The Company Long position Beneficiary and founder of a 33,364,133 3.04%
trust (Note 2)
PN ) ERER @M ARBCLA (H5E2)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 3) 149,468 0.01%
PAYNG] ) BaEE A (M3E3)
Mr. Ye Liaoning The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4) 389,091,927 35.47%
REBLE RAT] e EEXmA (Mid)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 5) 2,280,148 0.21%
PN ) BREAA (Ki5Es5)
Mr. Sun Yang The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 6) 389,091,927 35.47%
Bk PAYNG] e FaEXm A (Hize)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 7) 120,148 0.01%
/NG e EnmEAA (M527)
Mr. Wang Wenijie The Company Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 8) 389,091,927 35.47%
FUREE PN ) FEXam A (MiFE8)
The Company Long position Beneficial owner (Note 9) 1,663,290 0.14%

LN

30

ExnfEAA (M)
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Notes:

M

Mr. Wang Wenjian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.79% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji Limited (“Sun Ji”), which owns 100.00%
equity interest in Sun Xu Limited (“Sun Xu”), which in turn owns 35.47% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian
is deemed to be interested in 389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under
the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenijian is the beneficiary and founder of Sun Guang Trust*. Sun
Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun Guang
Limited (“Sun Guang”), which owns 3.04% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested
in 33,364,133 shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 149,468
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.24% of the beneficial
interest. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all
the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. Accordingly, as a controlling
shareholder, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun
Xu owns under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be
interested in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,280,148 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.56% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

GEX

©6)

FXELEBERERELRSE (BB BRAQ
ﬁﬁﬁ?%@éi%%%{%ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬂxﬁqﬂ
— RBREAZEAZ— BXBEBET
1. 79%*@.&/\ c RFEREEREEFIMZTRRERR
ARl ([RE]) 2HBHITRANET - MeEE
FEZBEAERLR ([538])100.00% &% - M
IBEA AR EITIRAS5.47% - At » 1R
B(EHRBEEG)  IXELEWR AN
JEFT#£389,001,927 I ik {n R R HERS ©

EXERERBRBH WERARRIA «
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T XEREERER AR BIRZER SR
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BREBEETS.24% M - RIB(ESRPEK
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RARRRG - Bt - BIBECEHFRBAERGL)
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SR S R AR AR B R R SRR (5
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Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 120,148 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 5.01% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all
the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijie is deemed to be interested
in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,563,290

shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (‘3% 5%E") is for identification
purpose only.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives

had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as at 31 December 2020.
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RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 22 March 2010 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board has adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme. According to the Restricted Share

PR &I I £ SR B =T &

NR-E—FE=A-+-H([HKHBH))  E=
AR SRR D SBE T o IRIRER HI1ER

Award Scheme, the Directors, all employees, senior staff, agents 1D#EENIF S ARABRNMENBARZES - &
and consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitted #EE SHBE - RIENEBEEHAEE2HE
to participate in this scheme. The purpose of the Restricted Share IEzt2E| - R BB EI 2 B B A BIA

Award Scheme is to assist the Company in attracting new staff as
well as motivating and retaining its current talents. The Restricted
Share Award Scheme shall be effective from the Adoption Date and
shall continue in full force and effect for a term of 10 years and be
managed by its administrative committee and the trustee. On 16
March 2020, the Board resolved to extend the Restricted Share Award
Scheme period for ten years. As a result, the Restricted Share Awards
Scheme, which shall originally terminate on 21 March 2020, shall now,
unless terminated earlier by a resolution of the Board, terminate on 21
March 2030. Details of the Restricted Share Award Scheme could be
found in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, details of movements of the
shares issued under the Restricted Share Award Scheme were as
follows:

NERRFA BB MIRBIRA AT - &aTE
AR B IR AR WA+ F - Ba%ar
B EBZEEREAAERE RIT_2F
ZATRB - EEEREKREIERD EENE
SIMHRERTF - Bt - AER T _FTF
= A=+ — BRIEWRSER ) 2R A 8130 A
RIZ=ZFF=A-+—HB&I BRIFELESF
SIRBRIBAR U - RHIMER D REFH S 2 7F
BFEN AR A M MARMT42 -

PR I Iiﬂxﬁ ﬁ%ﬁaﬁ%ﬂ §§TTHx1ﬁ E’JZE)J 15 ZZD
T~

Number of shares (Note 2)

RH%E (Wit2)

Vested
during

Granted
during

As at
during | 31 December
the year 2020
R=B-%fF
+ZA=1+-H

Fair value of Lapsed

each share As at

(Note 1) [1 January 2020

ghRfiz | R=B=%F

NARE (W) -B-H
HKS$

Date of grant

the year the year Vesting period

RTAH REARH RENER REAXN BRS

7 May 2010 1.64 - - - - - From 6 May 2014 to
6 May 2015
“E-ZERALH “Z-MERAAAE
“T-RERARR
14 March 2011 2.67 - - - - - From 13 March 2014 to
13 March 2015
B ] “Z-ME=-A+=HZ

“Z-1%=f1=H
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Number of shares (Note 2)
RO#E (Hi2)

Date of grant

&FAH

Fair value of
each share
(Note 1)
shkfHZ
NAE (W)
HK$

Granted
during
the year

REARH

Vested
during
the year

RERER

Lapsed
during
the year

RERKR

As at

31 December
2020
RZB-BE
+ZA=1+-H

Vesting period

BRS

18 August 2011 1.64 - - - - From 17 August 2014 to
17 August 2015
“E——%NATNH “E-NENATLER
ZE-RE\ATLR
14 March 2012 2.70 - - - - 13 March 2016
“Z--#zRfEA S =
17 August 2012 3.08 - - - - From 16 August 2015 to
16 August 2017
“E2-ZE\RttA “Z-1E\ATRE
ZE-tE\ATiE
21 December 2012 512 - - - - 20 December 2016
“E-—#+-f-+-H ZE-RETZAZTH
9 March 2013 8.10 - - - - 8March 2017
“F-Z5ZANA “T-tF=A)\R
13 August 2013 8.69 - - - - From 12 August 2016 to
2August 2017
“E-ZFN\ATZH - ENATZREZ
ZET-tF\ATZH
22 October 2013 7.79 - - - - 21 October 2017
L ) = 2 tETAZT-H
11 March 2014 7.19 - - - - 10 March 2018
“Z-mE=A+-H “T-)\§=A1H
15 August 2014 9.74 - - - - From 14 August 2017 to
14 August 2018
“E-NENATRA ZE-tF\ATOER
ZE-N\§N\RTHA
21 October 2014 12.46 - - - - 20 October 2018
“E-NMETAZT-H “Z-\§TAZTH
9 March 2015 14.30 - - - - 8March 2019
“Z-n%=ANA ZZ-hE=ANR
26 May 2015 17.28 - - - - 25May 2017
“E-RFRA-15H “F-+FRA-1EA
24 August 2015 12.26 - - - - 23 August 2019
ZE-RENAZTNA ZE-nENAZT=H



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

Number of shares (Note 2)

RA#E (Hi2)
Fair value of Granted Vested Lapsed As at
each share As at during during during | 31 December
Date of grant (Note 1) [1 January 2020 the year the year the year 2020 | Vesting period
BRRfiz | R-2=%fF R-B-BF
RTAH DR (Brat1) -A-H RERRHT REABE RERXN | T=A=1-B | GRH
HK$
BT
15 November 2015 17.76 - - - - - From 14 November 2017 to
14 November 2018
“T-RET-ATER “E-tET-ATREE
ZE-\§t-ATmAE
15 April 2016 24.25 - - - - - 14 Apri 2018
“5-AENATRA ZZ-\¥EATHA
15 November 2016 37.45 - - - - - From 14 November 2018 to
14 November 2019
I i il “E-\FT-ATHAE
ZE-NEt-RATmA
18 April 2017 55.20 - - - - - 17 Apri 2019
“E2-+EMATNA “E-NEBAT+E
30 June 2017 70.00 61,867 - (58,586) (3,281) - 29 June 2020
“E-tE5A=TH ZECEERAZTNA
15 November 2017 140.10 106 - - - 105 From 14 April 2019 to
14 November 2020
ZE—tE+-ATHA ZE-NFNATHER
ZECRET-ATOA
16 April 2018 156.00 242,920 - (240,840) (2,080) - 15 Apri 2020
- \EmATAA ZE-FEMATHA
3 July 2018 144.30 111,046 - (55,569) (3,829) 51,648 From 2 July 2020 to
2 July 2021
“2-\¥tA=H “ETEYACAZE
“E--E+ACH
15 November 2018 75.8 173911 - (165,585) (7,805) 521 From 14 April 2020 to
14 November 2020
“2-N\Et+-AThA “Z-ZEMATHAR
ZEC-BET-A1MA
15 April 2019 100.90 1,694,709 - (707,643) (25,338) 961,728 From 14 April 2021 to
14 April 2022
“E-NEBATHA “E--£MATWAZ

“E-_FMATMA
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Number of shares (Note 2)

Lapsed As at
during | 31 December

the year 2020 | Vesting period
HA 7 - 7 ¢
RER%Y | T=A=T-H | BEH

(10,021) 208,171 From 1 July 2021 to
1 July 2022
ZTC-FtA-BE
“ECCEYA-R
(21,847) 140,317 14 November 2021
ZEZ-%+t—RA1MA
(30,814) 815133 14 Apn|2022

(5,678) 255,785 From 1 July 2022
TJMyZOQS

“3-=F+R-H

RO#E (Hi2)
Fair value of Granted Vested
each share during during
Date of grant (Note 1) the year the year
shkfHZ
RFAH AR (Brat1) RERRH RENEE
HK$
BT
2 July 2019 88.20 336,735 - (118,543)
“E-NFEAZA
15 November 2019 123.40 303,549 - (141,385)
ZE-NET-ATHA
15 May 2020 122.50 - 845,947 -
“SCEERATHA
2 July 2020 126.80 - 261,463 -
“TCTELACA
16 November 2020 153.40 - 351,181 -

ZEIEET-ATAA

(1,759) 349,422 15 November 2022

2,924,842 1,458,591 (1,488,151)

(112,452) 2782830

Notes:

(1) The fair value of the shares was calculated based on the closing price per
share on the date of grant.

(2) According to the Group’s internal policy, the shares which have been
granted to the employees (to be promoted later) but not yet vested, will
remain unvested during the promotion year and be carried forward to the
next year after promotion.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or any of their spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other corporation.

i

(1) BROWRARETRENE T B SR BT
BtE -

(2 BEARENAILHE CRTEE (HRES
THERAREBORD - BRE T FERRH AR
BB UHEREEEETENT —FE -

B EXFBEEIN  ARRHEMBRRRNF
AIA BRI AEM L FEFRRFS AN
BRI 18R H) T 2 A B B WA R B S E
H oA B e By sk (B 25 M B2 -
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S SHARES

The Company is empowered by the applicable Cayman lIslands
Companies Law and the Company’s Articles of the Association to
repurchase its own shares subject to certain restrictions and the
Board may only exercise this power on behalf of the Company subject
to any applicable regulations imposed from time to time by the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. There was no purchase, sale, redemption or
writing-off by the Company, with the exception of the trustee of the
Restricted Share Award Scheme, of the Company’s listed shares
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected transactions” of this
report below, no significant contract, to which the Company, its
holding company, its controlling shareholder, fellow subsidiaries
or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No management contract in force during the year for the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Group’s
business subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DISCLOSURE OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITIES

As at 31 December 2020, so far as the Directors are aware of, the
following persons or institutions have beneficial interests or short
positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:
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Il
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REEBRNRASHERRDEMALRREIZA
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EEEH
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Long position/

Approximate

short position/ Number of | percentage of
lending pool Type of interest share shareholding
AL YR £ R R ROBE | FREBAEIL
Sun Xu Long position Beneficial owner 389,091,927 35.47%
5%18 e ERBEAA
Sun Ji Long position Interest in a controlled corporation 389,091,927 35.47%
(Note 1)
SR e RYEEER (M)
Mr. Wang Wenjian Long position Beneficial owner (Note 2) 149,468 0.01%
IxXELRSE e EnfEA A (FI:E2)
Long position Beneficiary and founder of a trust 33,364,133 3.04%
(Note 3)
e Bt am ARASLA (FiFE3)
Long position Trustee and beneficiary of a trust 389,091,927 35.47%
(Note 4)
e EREXFEAFRE M A (Fi5E4)
TMF Trust (HK) Limited Long position Trustee of a trust (Note 5) 389,091,927 35.47%
ERERERSE (58) Sy} EEXEEA (K55)
BRAR]
Mr. Ye Liaoning Long position Beneficial owner (Note 6) 2,280,148 0.21%
ERERE e BEmEA A (Kizke)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 7) 389,091,927 35.47%
e it am A (FEE7)
Mr. Sun Yang Long position Beneficial owner (Note 8) 120,148 0.01%
Y it e EnfEA A (FI:Es)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 9) 389,091,927 35.47%
Sy} ErEX@m A (MiE9)
Mr. Wang Wenijie Long position Beneficial owner (Note 10) 1,563,290 0.14%
FXREE HE EnEA A (FiFE10)
Long position Beneficiary of a trust (Note 11) 389,091,927 35.47%
e ErEXam A (BiFE11)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Long position Interest of controlled corporation, 63,867,856 5.82%
investment manager and person
having a security interest
in shares (Note 12)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. HE REEEE 2% REAKERSE
M R ERE A A (FiIFE12)
Short position Interest of controlled corporation 7,777,205 0.70%
(Note 12)
KR MREE z #Em (M5E12)
Lending pool Approved lending agent (Note 12) 15,227,692 1.38%

A8 AR D

ZEBHRIEA (MEE12)
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Notes:

M

As Sun Ji owns more than one-third of the voting power of general
meetings of Sun Xu, Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927
shares held by Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is taken to be interested as a grantee of 149,468
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is the beneficiary and founder of Sun Guang Trust*.
Sun Guang Trust* is the trust of the entire issued share capital of Sun
Guang, which owns 3.04% of the issued share capital of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjian is deemed to be interested in 33,364,133
shares held by Sun Guang under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjian is one of the two trustees (together with TMF Trust
(HK) Limited) and one of the beneficiaries of the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.79% of the beneficial
interest. The Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust is a trust on the entire
issued share capital of Sun Ji, which owned 100.00% equity interest in
Sun Xu, which in turn owns 35.47% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenijian is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares held by Sun Xu under the SFO.

As TMF Trust (HK) Limited is one of the two trustees (together with Mr.
Wang Wenjian) of the Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust, TMF Trust
(HK) Limited is deemed to be interested in the 389,091,927 shares held by
Sun Xu under the provisions of SFO.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is taken to be interested as a grantee of 2,280,148 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Ye Liaoning is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 8.24% of the beneficial interest. As
a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the equity
interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under the
SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn owns
389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder, Sun
Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns under
the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Ye Liaoning is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Sun Yang is taken to be interested as a grantee of 120,148 shares
granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.
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Mr. Sun Yang is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee Offshore
Trust, under which he is entitled to 1.56% of the beneficial interests.
As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all the
equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Sun Yang is deemed to be interested in
389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

Mr. Wang Wenjie is taken to be interested as a grantee of 1,563,290
shares granted under the Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Mr. Wang Wenijie is a beneficiary under the Sunny Group Employee
Offshore Trust, under which he is entitled to 5.01% of the beneficial
interests. As a beneficiary of the trust, he is deemed to be interested in all
the equity interest that Sunny Group Employee Offshore Trust owns under
the SFO. Sun Ji owns 100.00% equity interest in Sun Xu, which in turn
owns 389,091,927 shares of the Company. As a controlling shareholder,
Sun Ji is deemed to be interested in all the shares that Sun Xu owns
under the SFO. Accordingly, Mr. Wang Wenjie is deemed to be interested
in 389,091,927 shares under the SFO.

JPMorgan Chase & Co., through various subsidiaries, is indirectly
interested in (a) 63,867,856 shares of the Company (long position), of
which (i) 9,408,906 shares (long position) were held in the capacity as
interest of controlled corporation; (i) 38,193,526 shares (long position)
were held in the capacity as investment manager; (i) 1,037,832 shares
(long position) were held in the capacity as person having a security
interest in shares; and (iv) 15,227,592 shares (long position) in the
lending pool as described in the SFO in the capacity as approved lending
agent; and (b) 7,777,205 shares of the Company (short position) held in
the capacity as interest of controlled corporation. Among them include
(i) physically settled listed derivatives in respect of 931,000 underlying
shares (long position) and 1,985,000 underlying shares (short position); (i)
cash settled listed derivatives in respect of 8,100 underlying shares (long
position) and 101,800 underlying shares (short position); (iii) physically
settled unlisted derivatives in respect of 77,636 underlying shares (long
position) and 2,956,318 underlying shares (short position); and (iv) cash
settled unlisted derivatives in respect of 1,238,112 underlying shares (long
position) and 835,177 underlying shares (short position).

The Chinese translation of Sun Guang Trust (‘B ¥ {55E”) is for identification
purpose only.
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Save as disclosed herein, the Company has not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or a short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares (in respect of positions pursuant to equity
derivatives) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December
2020.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
of the independent non-executive Directors independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has established connected transaction policy to
strengthen internal control, protect the legitimate interests of
shareholders and improve the corporate governance structure. This
policy has defined the scopes of connected parties and connected
transactions. It also requires the Company to disclose the related
information of connected transactions, conduct the annual audit of
continuing connected transactions and follow the principles of the

connected transactions decision-making and abstaining rules.

The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with its roles and functions,
review whether the arrangements for connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are fair and reasonable. The Audit
Committee judges whether the connected transaction is beneficial to
the Company according to objective criteria, and if necessary, it will
hire professional appraisers or independent financial advisers to give
or provide advice. A director who has any interest in the connected
parties shall abstain when the Board votes on the matter. If necessary,
an independent board committee shall be established to evaluate and
approve the conflict transactions, and the members of the committee
shall not have any independent non-executive Director who has
significant interests in the relevant transactions or arrangements.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company review the
Group’s continuing connected transactions every year and confirm
that such transactions meet the following requirements: 1. concluded
in the Group’s daily businesses; 2. conducted in accordance with
normal or better commercial terms; and 3. conducted in accordance
with the agreement on relevant transactions, with fair and reasonable
terms and in line with the overall interests of shareholders of the
Company. The Company has also hired an external auditor to review
the Group’s continuing connected transactions. As disclosed under
Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the related
party transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020 constituted a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction under the Listing Rules. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company has not entered into any connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS

No Director or chief executive of the Company holds any interests in
entities which compete with the Group in any aspects of its business.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policy is designed to attract, retain and
motivate talented individuals to contribute to the success of its
business. The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee on the basis
of their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regards to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged
to consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of
the MPF scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in the future years as at 31 December 2020.
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The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with the applicable
regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the local government. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of their payroll
costs to the retirement benefits scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total amounts contributed
by the Group to the schemes and costs charged to the consolidated
income statement represent contribution payable to the schemes by
the Group at designated rates according to the rules of the schemes.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within knowledge of its Directors at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be proposed at the AGM to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
Ye Liaoning
Chairman and Executive Director

China
17 March 2021
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUNNY OPTICAL TECHNOLOGY (GROUP) COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sunny
Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
123 to 286, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

HRERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BREMMEEEREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables & 5 & Ug =z 18 ) el (B 515

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
loss (‘ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of
the reporting period.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net trade
receivables amounting to RMB6,792,243,000, which
represented approximately 19% of total assets of the
Group. Details of trade receivables are set out in Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As disclosed in Note 36(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables based on
provision matrix through grouping of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. Estimated loss rates are based
on historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

BAEE S RKSRRBEN ERERERDT

e Understanding the internal controls related to
providing allowance under ECL model;

s BRERHEEEBREATHBERBNREIET

e Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at 31
December 2020, on a sample basis, by comparing
individual items in the analysis with supporting
documents;
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e Challenging management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020, including their
identification of credit impaired trade receivables,
the reasonableness of management’s grouping of
the remaining trade debtors into different categories
in the provision matrix, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical default rates and
forward-looking information); and
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e FEvaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment

assessment of trade receivables in Notes 25 and
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Jacky Wong Suk Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

17 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meEsakAMEZEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

2020 2019
—EB-EF —Z—NEF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T ARBTT
Revenue YA 5,6 38,001,765 37,848,704
Cost of sales $HE& KA (29,303,890)  (30,098,050)
Gross profit 7| 8,697,875 7,750,654
Other income H bz 7(a) 510,390 405,502
Other gains and losses HE bzt & 518 7(b) 187,257 (200,615)
Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
REREEEBRREAGEMRERE - NRED 12,218 (10,899)
Selling and distribution expenses 5% & 7 #5F > (313,478) (278,616)
Research and development expenditure iff25 5 52 (2,499,090) (2,209,337)
Administrative expenses 1TH 5% (718,568) (650,410)
Share of results of associates 7 {hE & A &) 48 18 20 (5,501)
Finance costs @& A 8 (233,740) (250,438)
Profit before tax B 51 s £ 5,642,884 4,550,340
Income tax expense FT5#%: 5 % 9 (702,630) (530,965)
Profit for the year F A& F| 10 4,940,254 4,019,375

Other comprehensive income (expense) Hth 2 Wz (BI )
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or l0ss:
TEEN D HEZEmAEA -
Fair value gain on investments in equity instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI")
BAnBEsrAEMEEKR ((RAAREFAHMBE2ERE]) &
EETARENAAERS 18,977 -

Item that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or l0ss:
REn B 7 BEERHAEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation from foreign operations

HME G INETS T EE £ ROIE 5 =58 (41,606) (1,512)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FRE M2 X (22,629) (1,512)
Total comprehensive income for the year F A Z H 4% 4,917,625 4,017,863
Profit for the year attributable to: {54 R F|

Owners of the Company 4SA A]f& & 4,871,793 3,991,298

Non-controlling interests JE# i %5 68,461 28,077

4,940,254 4,019,375

Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE(L & E 544758 -
Owners of the Company ZA~A BIR% R 4,849,009 3,989,331
Non-controlling interests JE# i %5 68,616 28,532
4,917,625 4,017,863
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) &% 2 F| — EAX (AR¥ES) 12 445.78 364.81

— Diluted (RMB cents) —HE(ARESD) 12 445.14 364.19
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 R=—F —ZF#F+—H=+—H

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—g=%F | T

—_—

+=A=+-8 [t=A=t-§

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥k RE&E

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - #23 & :& 5 14 7,513,193 6,566,745
Right-of-use assets {# A& &= 15 480,005 402,743
Investment properties & #)3 16 40,907 45,298
Intangible assets & & = 17 363,137 419,163
Interests in associates B & A Bl AR 18 1,953 683
Deferred tax assets iEIEFIIHE E 19 207,332 131,178
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
HUEEYE  BERRBEXMNES 20 359,086 315,395
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use right
MU B EAEE X MRS 20 - 24,831
Equity instruments at FVTOCI #&2A Bt AR M2 E W a)fEm THE 21 134,609 112,183
Debt instruments at amortised cost ZEE K ANt ERNER T E 22 - 27,962
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”)
rAanEAABRR ((RAREFABRD NEREE 23 206,236 185,147
Derivative financial assets $T4 4 @& & 27 - 13,654
Time deposits J& #f1F 5K 26 500,000 =
Goodwill Fg2 2,119 2,119
9,808,577 8,247,101

CURRENT ASSETS #B&E

Inventories 7 & 24 5,783,071 5,145,962
Trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 K& H At JE WO IR R A FRIE 25 8,212,025 9,629,684
Derivative financial assets $74 & @& &= 27 21,307 13,415
Financial assets at FVTPL 2 AR BT AR /A E 23 8,480,186 5,662,808
Debt instruments at amortised cost 1&Z# ANzt EHEKE T A 22 52,823 55,749
Pledged bank deposits & iR 1T1F R 26 3,438 6,113
Short term fixed deposits %2 HiF Ei7F 26 234,917 15,000
Bank balances and cash $E1745 &k KIRE 26 2,841,771 1,917,239

25,629,538 22,445,970
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 R=—ZF —ZFF+—H=+—H

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—F=%F | T

—_—

+=A=+-R8 [t=A=t—§

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBET T ARETT

CURRENT LIABILITIES B & &

Trade and other payables & 5 & £ fth f& < 718 28 10,733,364 11,321,586
Amounts due to related parties FE1<EdiE A+ 7B 41(c) 6,996 7,498
Derivative financial liabilities $74 &gt & (& 27 101,888 1,430
Lease liabilities — current portion A& & & — ENEER(H 31 43,580 38,140
Tax payable FE{IFiIE 314,804 49,881
Bank borrowings $R1TEE 30 2,070,611 1,118,572
Contract liabilities & 48 & 29 131,191 83,202
Deferred income — current portion #EIEW A — BIEFER(D 32 8,695 10,106

13,411,129 12,630,415

NET CURRENT ASSETS HRE/&&EFE 12,218,409 9,815,555
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & ERABEE 22,026,986 18,062,656
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥R 8& &
Deferred tax liabilities #EEFTIE & & 19 888,809 684,836
Derivative financial liabilities T4 £ B & & 27 4,782 =
Lease liabilities — non-current portion F & & & — FEENEAER S 31 96,899 122,466
Long term payables & 8fE {78 28 245,636 299,209
Deferred income — non-current portion IEIEUT A — FEENEAER D 32 68,855 73,894
Bonds payable [Eff &5 33 3,895,888 4,156,074
5,200,869 5,336,479
NET ASSETS BEFH 16,826,117 12,726,177
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B A& &
Share capital A&7 34 105,163 105,163
Reserves f& & 16,492,061 12,447,724
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2N 2 ] A% 5 FE (5 #E 25 16,597,224 12,552,887
Non-controlling interests JF#Z i 4 #5 228,893 173,290
TOTAL EQUITY #4458 16,826,117 12,726,177

The consolidated financial statements on pages 123 to 286 were #RE123FF 286 B VA MERERLEES
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 R=-ZT = —F=H++ Bt /EREZETE I

March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: ATIEEREREE
Mr. YE Liaoning Mr. SUN Yang
CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR

Y EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARRREL

At 1 January 2019

RZ2-N5-A-R 105,163 2,680 149,800 31,003 916 410716 (182,097) 54,892 (18,847) 5307 8621545 9,231,168 54,047 9,285,215
Profit for the year /7] - = - - - - - - - - 3991298 3991208 B077 4019375
Qther comprehensive (expense) income for the

year EMEMEE (F%) fiE - - - - - - - - - (1,967) - (1,967) 485 (1512)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the

year EMEE (FX) Y lE - - - - - - - - - (1,967) 3,991,298 3,989,331 28032 4,017,863
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERNZDiEEERD - - - - - - (170,255) - - - - (170,255) - [170,255)
Recognition of equity-sef ﬂed share-based

payments BN EREE RN T MRZE - - = = - = - 123808 = = - 123808 - 123808
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERNZB: ABRORA - - - - - - 84745 (96,463 - - 11,718 - - -
Dividends paid E & - (2,680) - - - - - - - - (620331)  (623,011) - [623,011)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RERAEETHNRORE - 1,846 - - - - - - - - - 1846 - 1,846
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (‘NCI')
A FHEERER (FEkER)) nke - - - - - - - - - - - - (490) (490)
Capital contribution from NCI JE2RR BT & - - - - - - - - - - - - 18,847 18,847
Acqisition of a subsiciary WEE —FHBAR - - - - - - - - - - - - 7234 72354
Appropriation & - - - - - 1669 - - - - (16,69) - - -
At 31 December 2019
R=F-NE+=A=1-A 105,163 1,846 149,800 31,008 916 427412 (217,607) 82,231 (18,847) 3430 11987534 12,562,887 173290 12,726,177
Profitfor the year A&7 - = - - - - - - - - 4871793 4871793 68,461 4,940,254
Qther comprehensive income (expense) for the

year FREM2ENE (BR) - - - - - - - - 18977 (41,761) - (2784 155 (22,629)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for the

year FRZANG (%) 68 - - - - - - - - 18977 (41,761) 4,871,798 4,849,009 68,616 4917625
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
RERN REEBERD - - - - - - (151397) - - - - (151,897) - (151,397)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments BN EREERNZMRZE - - - - - - - 151811 - - - 151811 - 151811
Shares vested under share award scheme
RERHZETHSBORN - - - - - - 111380 (137,417) - - 26097 - - -
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary

from NCI
WFERERNE-FHBAR  ENER - - (8629 = - - - - = = - (8628 (13013 (21641)
Dividends paid (Note 11) B8 (11 - (1,846) - - - - - - - - (196,661)  (798,507) - (798,507)
Dividends received under share award scheme
RIER D RETEMRIRS - - - - - - - - - - 2,049 2,049 - 2,049
Appropriation £ - - - - - 14807 - - - - (14,607) = = =

At 31 December 2020
RZSZFF+ZA=1-H 105,163 - 31,008 916 442,019 (257,624) 96,631 130 (38,331) 16,076,145 16,597,224 228,893 16,826,117
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

Notes:

(@)

The statutory surplus reserve and discretionary surplus reserve are
non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves is determined by the
board of directors of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the subsidiaries. Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up
for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Company. Discretionary surplus reserve can be used to
expand the existing operations of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund.
These reserves are non-distributable and the transfer to these reserves
are determined by the board of directors of the PRC subsidiaries in
accordance with the Articles of Association. Other reserves can be used to
make up for previous year’s losses or convert into additional capital of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries.

The Group irrevocably elected to designate certain investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI and the FVTOCI reserve is related to the gains
or losses arising from the changes in fair value of the designated equity
investments recognised in other comprehensive income.

GEX

(@)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

2020 2019
—EC-FF —TNF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBTT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES &% 558

Profit before tax Bk 51 s £ 5,642,884 4,550,340

Adjustments for: FE% :
Share of results of associates 7 5Bk ‘& A 7] 24 (20) 5,501
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2 - #22 KR EITE 1,513,407 1,171,430
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & L ETE 54,285 46,499
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥4 &E 4,391 4,391
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net
TESRITARREZINERFHE 111,002 17,723
Gain on fair value changes of financial assets at FVTPL
BARBEGFABRNEREEA R B KE (55,019) (49,357)
Amortisation of intangible assets & 2= & £ 56,202 55,558
Allowance for inventories 17 & # & 245,674 155,488
Impairment loss under expected credit loss model, net of reversal
REHREEEBREXAEMREREE - NRELD (12,218) 10,899
Impairment loss of interest in associate PB4 A &#E & B R E 18 - 62,866
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
HEME - HBERREBER 11,156 44,972
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & —XKEBR /I EE 1,673 =
Loss on deemed disposal of interests in an associate
RIEH & — M & D B M E £ 8 E 1R - 5,691
Expense recognised in respect of share award scheme
BLAR 12 B2 BT & i FERR A 2 151,811 123,808
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits and bank balances
EHATERR ~ 22 HATE BT SR R TT AR BRI B (47,204) (28,058)
Interest income from pledged bank deposits & &R 1777 7% K 2 UA (26) (458)
Interest income from debt instruments &% T A K| 28U A (9,335) (10,138)
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL
RERAABEFABRZNFE ITERERNRERA (215,042) (189,831)
Finance costs g & A 233,740 250,438
Net foreign exchange (gain) loss JME (Y25 ) E518% 58 (297,945) 96,602
(Gain) loss on disposal of debt investments and fund instruments at FVTPL
HERAABAABRNEBTARESKRE (k) B8 (31,224) 856

Gain on lease termination T8 & 4% |FIizs (54) (732)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

2020 2019
= = —TNEF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBTTT

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

LEEEPINLLETR RS 7,358,138 6,324,488
Increase in inventories F &1 N (882,783) (2,207,554)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables and prepayment

B 5 N Hoh e W R IA R AR IR A (35 0) 1,453,392 (3,389,748)
Decrease in amount due from a related party & B A £ FIE R - 3,032
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & 5 & b & {28 (4> ) 3 0 (496,536) 4,143,616
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & #) & &% 10 (i 4) 47,989 (27,079)
(Decrease) increase in deferred income EIEW A (Ei4>) 12 N (6,450) 2,712
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE{~BEsE A £ 735 2 (502) (1,480)
Cash generated from operations & & BB TSR & 7,473,248 4,847,987
Income taxes paid B 15 FT{S 3 E (313,237) (186,365)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES && ;EB TSR & FH 7,160,011 4,661,622
INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ;55

Placement of short term fixed deposits 172 2 F HAfE 3¢ (958,277) (3,442,918)
Placement of time deposits 77/ E Hi7F 3K (500,000) =
Withdrawal of short term fixed deposits $2H 2 8 & 8875 50 738,360 3,447,918
Purchases of property, plant and equipment B & ¥ % « #2E N5 (2,332,864) (2,770,095)
Payments for leasehold lands 8 & £ i< 5k (81,655) (30,892)
Payment for intangible assets /& E N (89,738) (39,120)
Placement of pledged bank deposits 77 & IR 17172 (3,375) (9,328)
Release of pledged bank deposits fi# 4 B IR T1F 6,050 217,923
Purchases of unlisted financial products Y8 3F & &l ZE @ (59,212,284)  (51,248,850)
Release of unlisted financial products #Z JE -4 BE @ 56,303,979 50,391,750
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment

HUEEYE  BERRBOXMNES (344,093) (302,987)
Deposits paid for acquisition of land use right FtUEE L H(FER#EE M HEE - (24,831)
Purchase of debt instruments at FVTPL &% A 7 EzF ABFHEFS I A (77,617) =
Purchase of fund instruments at FVTPL WWEEZ A R Bt ABZNESKRE (619,227) -
Purchase of debt instruments at amortised cost W EEiRE# K ANzt B8R EF LA (29,262) (27,738)
Purchase of equity investments at FVTPL WESIZ A 7t Bt AR AR E - (15,750)
Purchase of equity instruments at FVTOCI Wiz A R BT AR M2 AW EE T A (100) (5,600)
Interest and investment income received B W F & & ER A 247,968 235,997
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - HEE NREBAFHIA 62,108 10,258
Proceeds from disposal of debt instruments at FVTPL

HERAREF ABRNER TAMGRIE 81,668 75,719
Proceeds from disposal of fund instruments at FVTPL

REHK AT EBNERS T AERNKE 729,226 -
Repayment from debt instruments at amortised cost

REHK AT ENER T AR ERNKIE 54,200 55,798
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary Y8 — Kk B A 7838 & i F - (5,176)
Investment in an associate R — & QA 2% E (1,250) (67,842)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&EFEFTABE S E5E (5,976,183) (3,555,764)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& EE

2020
—g-%%F

—_—

RMB’ 000
AREF T

2019
—ET-nF
RMB’ 000
ARETFIT

Interest paid 21~ Fl & (224,439) (239,531)
Dividends paid 2 1M & (796,458) (621,165)
Dividends paid to NCI B 3E#E e s I AR B - (490)
New bank borrowings raised ¥71&R1T{EE 3,810,422 3,071,539
Repayment of bank borrowings E&R1TEE (2,793,677) (3,453,315)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERE&E (45,065) (46,988)
Purchase of shares under share award scheme RiEA% {7 12 E) =1 2185 B IZ (D (151,397) (170,255)
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary Y& —R B A &) 2 F8IMERS (21,641) =
Capital contribution from non-controlling interest of a subsidiary
R—KWE AR EREGHEE - 18,847
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES
REEEFTARESTE (222,255) (1,441,358)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBRESEEBEMORL) FHE 961,573 (335,500)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
R—A—HWEERESEHEER 1,917,239 2,254,299
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E 2R % &) fy £/ & (37,041) (1,560)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
R+t-A=+—BAWEBEeRRLEHEIER -

represented by bank balances and cash MAR1T& 82 MR G 271 2,841,771 1,917,239
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
September 2006 as an exempted company under the Companies
Law Chapter 21 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares have been listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange with effect from 15 June 2007. Its ultimate
holding and parent company is Sun Xu Limited, a private limited
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Wang Wenjian, also a director of the
Company. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of designing, researching and developing,
manufacturing and selling of optical and optical related products
and scientific instruments.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB?”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8  Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effect

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and
the related Amendments

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions *

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework ?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2 °

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture ?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)

Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before
Intended Use ?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020°

2.

o
W
ﬂli

FH AR

R BB WERE

Al ([HEUHHREEA])
(%)

C AT E R ER 2 H 7] RAEIERT

BERMBREER

AEBWERFRAUNTEBMAERRE
MHVFR] RAIERT BB SR E LR -

BB RS &R B R RIGH
17 EETA

BB RS 2019w &R
F165% (BF14) 1682 % B

BB RE &R BEAAEZEZ S22
EREACHEN)

BRMBRERAER - FIEEENE -
EBSERE30% - FoEEC
BRMBRELRETR
BRMBEREEAEIR
RE B RELER
£16% (BFTA)

BRUBRERAEI0R HKEEZREHE
REBGERFE 285 NTE7-5-31= 3
(83T 7) HERFAEE

BRI EREIR BESERTE
(B3TA) LIETEREE

PEESH
(ZE=F%F)
IR

BREIERE16% E BERRE

(1BETA) — BT
A2 T 558

BREIEREITR EREIEAH — BT
(1BETA) BRI AR

BB RE &R BBH R ER
CHES) ZF-)1EZ

—ECFFEZF

B



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effect (Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS
16, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &r

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and
a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be used
to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the results
of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

e |Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

* has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liguidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between () the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of
the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of
the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below);

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

e |ease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as defined
in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were new leases
at the acquisition date, except for leases for which (a) the
lease term ends within 12 months of the acquisition date;
or (b) the underlying asset is of low value. Right-of-use
assets are recognised and measured at the same
amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect
favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising from
interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under HKFRS 9 would be accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had disposed
directly of the previously held equity interest.

Gooawill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or group of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest level
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes and not larger than an operating segment.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Gooawill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
When the Group disposes of an operation within the
cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a group
of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill disposed of
is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &7
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 2]

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes
in ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When any
objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. FEMBHRE2MAUEER
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EESTTEE (&)

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICK ()
Investments in associates (Continued) RBERNFZRE (&)
When the Group ceases to have significant influence over MAEEHBEERARAREEATE
an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire 7 HEARIELREWHIEEFTNE I
interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being Hm o MEENEZRNEZER &
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an REBERBRATEE R AR 2= - B
interest in the former associate and the retained interest is REEZ RSB BYBEHRELENFEIFT
a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group ﬁmﬁ’]ipﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ  AEEREBZ
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and ARBEFEREBER  MARER®K
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. REEBXEREZANE - BE QA
The difference between the carrying amount of the associate FEHEEAANREEZ A ERD
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds T & N Rl R FTS TR FTS K
from disposing the relevant interest in the associate is HBMERE Dt ABEELEHE
included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of NAIZHER o o NEBEF LT
the associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts HEMe2mEWmph e R aER
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in BoBAR  EEHRMZBEE QAR
relation to that associate on the same basis as would be EHERBEEERBAENEEMER -
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related H bt - Wz & A R SERTE R M
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously F2EMEER  AIgREEHEBEE
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate EXBEREFOIHAEER 8
or would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of EARIHE BHLEER  AEE
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the B R EEREaEN Y EEER
gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification (EREHHEAE) -
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associate.
The Group continues to use the equity method when an ERBEARINKESENREEDLE
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint MITER  ASBESFRAESZE -
venture. There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such EZEMBEE=ESHE  WEHND

changes in ownership interests. RENEFTE -
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of the
following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract costs
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer
that it would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (sales commissions) as
an asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset so
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of some temporary staff dormitories that have a
lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets include:
e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

3.2 EEEREE (&)

HE (&)

REBEREEA

HHERIEEEEEHE

HRAHBRE AR S12EA K
MARBRTEE S BEREZENID R
HRETEEHE  AKEEMAEHE
ERRHe AKETHEBEEE
HERMERME - RHHENEE
BEEHEMNHEENRZEREEY
F R EENEMAERRFAX

ERAEEE

EREEENKRAREE

o HERBEWIMRAESE

o RFMAHSKZAELMERES
M5k REMEREEESR

o AEEELMNEATRERKA
54

o AKERFHLBEHEBEE B
R EEE S ERERE
B ETHE MRS R AT AR TE RO
MMEERMMRAEE - FRIFZFK
ANDHAEEFEMES °



T HERHR (RE) ARAA ¢ 2020 5K @

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fa = by E T e ES:

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continueqd)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
when the lease term has changed, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use asset. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Classification and measurement of leases (Continueqd)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting
any amount already paid.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Shares granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

For shares of the Company granted under The Sunny Optical
Technology (Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Restricted Shares”), the fair value of the employee
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of the Restricted Shares granted at the grant date and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share award scheme
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of Restricted Shares that
are expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant
non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of
the estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share award scheme reserve.

When the Restricted Shares are vested, the difference of the
amount previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve and the cost of the related Restricted Shares
previously acquired by the Group will be transferred to
retained profits. When the Restricted Shares are lapsed before
the vesting date or are still not vested at the expiry date, the
amount of previously recognised in the share award scheme
reserve will continue to be held in the share award scheme
reserve.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #; %2 —

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax of leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirement to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary difference arising from
subsequent revision to carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not
subject to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the
date of remeasurement or modification.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, other than construction in
progress, stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. When the consideration cannot
be allocated reliably between non-lease building element and
undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 202082 —FE = F 41+ - H=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

32 EEEHBE ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued) HEREE (18)

ABELEBFLEE - RMAX

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures
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in the period in which it is incurred. X o

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
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An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets - research and
development expenditures (Continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooadwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of
the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment on tangible, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets other than gooawill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, expect for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset
is no longer credit-impaired.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. %8 Y
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEEEITEE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

32 EEEHBE ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cREE (H)

EHEENSENRETE (E)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) HEERRA B AEMEE K w5
R Em LA

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/
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Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVTOCI
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit
or loss on disposal of the equity investments, and will be
transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments EREEERWBERER - %5
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to =

receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends 2 BRIEZERE AW E S5 R

clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continueqd)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss exclude any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
on financial assets (including debt instruments at amortised
cost, trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
times deposits, short term fixed deposits and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors credit-impaired and/or collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICK ()
Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)
Financial assets (Continued) cREE (H)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREERE (&)
() Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () 1EEERAIE LA (E)
e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the s EBEHRANERNTEHLERXS
operating results of the debtor; or A8 TR sk
e an actual or expected significant adverse change e BEBAERLE  &B LS FEM
in the regulatory, economic, or technological IRE W ER TR E R A
environment of the debtor that results in a significant B EHEBABTERRE
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt HIRE DA MR TNBE o
obligations.
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, N LA F AR - B & A
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased @ 30K « AEBREE
significantly since initial recognition when contractual ER B 9P HER AR AR EF
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the BRIEAEBEBEEIERBAEERE
Group has reasonable and supportable information that AR & BB NS R FE a0t o

demonstrates otherwise.
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STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EEEREE (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) THTA (&)
Financial assets (Continued) cRMEE (F)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

() 1ZEmBEAE LI (&)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Definition of default

(1)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iif) Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 EEREUR ()

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

THMEE (H)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) RS ERERA B RAER

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability AEEAEEEERN  2REeZE
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the EAT LN - BRBEARE (BNEAE
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. EARRIBERREE) &E LR

7

The assessment of the probability of default and loss ¥& o BAIRI B KB AVIB R R HET
TETh B S T RE R 2 B4R R R HE 1
BE o BEEEEBENGEENALE

given default is based on historical data adjusted and
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects

an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables using a provision
matrix taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables is considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

e Past-due status;

e Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issued
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in
a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. &4 Wk
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BEESTTHE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued) 32 EERGICK ()

Financial instruments (Continued) THTA(E)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) cRBERER (&)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued) R EGA B HEE (&)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if: MEHBRETIER  BemaEis

HEARBIEEE

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e BAZEFEZEEMARTABKE
repurchasing it in the near term; or 1=

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified o RYUFLHERE  HAAKEBESE
financial instruments that the Group manages together BrEdfem T AHAEG 2 —
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; - A ER R R BN
or = 3k

e it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial o HANMATH(EAERMEREY
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging SIEERBEREHPTAZITAETA
instrument. BRAI) ©

Financial liabilities at amortised cost AT B2 A E

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including trade and other LEEK A ENeREE (BEE

payables, amounts due to related parties, bank borrowings, SR EMERN I - BIBEEALTR

long term payables and bonds payable, are subsequently H - RTEE  REBMRERES

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest &%) AR A B AR A AR

method. = o

Derecognition of financial liabilities AR A E

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only REBER (RER) NEBHE TER

when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or B EERRRILIERERE

have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of B -RIERNeRBEREERED

the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid HREMREZ ZER BT R o

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Assessment of the finite useful lives of intangible
assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of intangible assets based
on the expected lifespan of those patents. The intangible assets
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives after taking into account the estimated residual value, if any.
The Group determines the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets on initial recognition in order to determine the amount of
amortisation expense to be recorded during any reporting period.
The useful lives are determined taking into the factors including the
prevailing industry condition and the practice of intangible assets.
The amortisation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates. As at 31 December
2020, the carrying amount of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is RMB363,137,000 (31 December 2019: RMB419,163,000)
as disclosed in Note 17.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s financial assets,
including unlisted equity instruments, fund investments, unlisted
financial products, derivatives financial assets amounting to
RMB8,769,454,000 (2019: RMB5,902,639,000) and financial
liabilities, including derivatives financial liabilities amounting
to RMB106,670,000 (2019: RMB1,430,000) are measured
at fair values. In estimating the fair value, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. When market
observable data are not available, the Group uses valuation
techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable
market data to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial
instruments. Note 36(c) provides detailed information about the
valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables which are not credit-impaired. The provision matrix
are based on debtor’s aging as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision rate is based on the
Group’s historical observed default rates taking into consideration
the forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In addition,
trade receivables with credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 36(b) and Note 25 respectively.

Estimated impairment of associates

As at 31 December 2020, in view of impairment indicators,
the Group performed impairment assessment on an associate.
Determining whether impairment loss should be recognised
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the relevant
associate which is the higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires the
management of the Group to estimate the present value of the
estimated cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be
received from the associate and the proceeds from the ultimate
disposal of the investment taking into account factors including
discount rate, dividend payout rate, etc. In cases where the actual
cash flows are less or more than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future cash flows
estimation, a material reversal or further recognition of impairment
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or further recognition takes place.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the impairment
loss of interest recognised in profit or loss was nil (2019:
RMB62,866,000).
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5. REVENUE 5. KA

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts (i) EFEHARANAD
with customers

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_E-ZF+-A=t—HLEE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments
KB *BER HBEE
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T AR®T T

Types of goods & #EE
Sales of optical and related components

KERBETHHEE 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Total &% 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
Geographical markets it &5

China & 5,441,334 25,899,773 237,073
Asia (except China) 22l (FREIRR M) 2,177,165 2,492,908 25,418
Europe BN 939,207 12,873 14,014
North America 1t 603,906 60,718 48,518
Others E At 19,485 27,988 1,385
Total %8 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408

Timing of revenue recognition T2 A #85 &
At a point in time B 24 #E2 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408
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5. A (88)

() EFEHBANHAD (F)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019
E_T—NE+_A=+—HLFE

Optical
Components
FHET
RMB’ 000
ARBTTT

Optoelectronic Optical
Instruments
HBES
RMB’ 000
ARMEF T

Products
HEEm
RMB’ 000
AR¥EFTTT

1 O

Types of goods & R &
Sales of optical and related components

HEREETHIEE 8,815,380 28,748,410 284,914
Total #%8 8,815,380 28,748,410 284,914
Geographical markets i E 15

China 4,459,952 26,482,734 187,297
Asia (except China) 2z (B ER4N) 2,852,153 2,069,709 34,445
Europe BUM 889,351 20,365 16,881
North America 1t i 607,435 113,995 41,626
Others EAth 6,489 61,607 4,665
Total 4% 8,815,380 28,748,410 284,914
Timing of revenue recognition 2T A #Y B

At a point in time B ZH#ER 8,815,380 28,748,410 284,914

(i) EFEXNNBEHER

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

AEEERATFPHE LB RSN
FAEMm > SLABZEM - XAEEMML
BEFNVHEEMS - WARE MR
HEBRR  RGRPEXKRE
B AREPRAZEFHNERNERARE
BHF U FE a0 P A TR A 2 10 B
B - 8 TEPHEERTFHR/0X

The Group sells optical and optical-related products directly
to customers. For sales of optical components, optoelectronic
products and optical instruments, revenue is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when customer
acceptance has been obtained, which is the point of time
when the customer has the ability to direct the use of these
products and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits
of these products. The credit term granted to customer is
average 90 days.
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5. REVENUE (Continued)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

The Group’s contracts have an original expected duration
of one year or less, as permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations is not disclosed.

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance focuses on types
of goods delivered because the management has chosen to
organise the Group among different major products. No operating
segments identified by chief operating decision maker have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are as follows:

1. Optical Components
2. Optoelectronic Products

3. Optical Instruments

5.

WA (%)

()P EREEFEARBRENER
MR 3 ERE

AEBESONNBEMHRS —FHX
B MEBMBREENEASHA
RFF - THRESETRSBENEEN

2 S8 -
EEDH

RARSERH BEAFEAEE Y (FE
BREARE) 2RO AR BERZ(E
QYA AAEEECEBHETALE
EREMAEE - RERARENHTRE
e - EBHERFEMBLOHEES
BRI AH -

pa

D

ok

ABTE - REBEH GRS LN FSHH
ER - AEBEES B THR
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Segment revenues and results

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

6.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

operating and reportable segments.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Fa = by E T e ES:

—FFES—A=1—HIFE

lll\

El B(nﬁ)

a5

D H UL A K2

BE_Z-EHFET-A=1+-HLFE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Segment
Components Products Instruments Total Eliminations Total
*B2H *EER KBRS AEHAE bk g
RMB’000 RMB'’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETTR
REVENUE A
External sales MFSA%E 9,181,097 28,494,260 326,408 38,001,765 - 38,001,765
Inter-segment sales 2 &EHE 2,324,546 23,202 115,272 2,463,020 (2,463,020) -
Total &% 11,505,643 28,517,462 441,680 40,464,785 (2,463,020) 38,001,765
Segment profit 7 &7 3,086,783 2,598,882 65,856 5,751,521 - 5,751,521
Share of results of associates
MEBENRIEE 20
Unallocated income KA EMA 29,772
Unallocated expenses AAEH (138,429)
Profit before tax BB AT 5,642,884
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZT—NE+-_RA=1t—BIt5E

Optical |  Optoelectronic Optical Segment
Components Products Instruments Total Eliminations Total
KEDH rEER HEER PEEE iR ke
RMB'’ 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'’ 000 RMB'’ 000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
REVENUE A

External sales SMFSAE 8,815,380 28,748,410 284,914 37,848,704 - 37,848,704
Inter-segment sales 7 hEIEE 2,078,213 21,338 115,654 2,215,205 (2,215,205) -
Total 4% 10,893,593 28,769,748 400,568 40,063,909 (2,215,205) 37,848,704
Segment profit 7-25& 7 3,454,535 1,316,318 41,762 4,812,615 - 4,812,615

Share of results of associates
AEBERREE (5,501)
Unallocated income &2 Ft A 22,211
Unallocated expenses & 2RI (278,985)
Profit before tax Fr AT &7 4,550,340
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued)

—FFEf_A=1—HIEFE

Segment revenues and results (Continued)
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segment without
allocation of central administration costs including directors’
salaries, other income, other gains and losses, share of results of
associates and finance costs. There were asymmetrical allocations
to operating segments because the Group allocates interest
income, government grants, depreciation and amortisation and
gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment to each
segment without allocating the related bank balances, deferred
income, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to
those segments. This is the measure reported to the Board of
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

6. &

EEDER (&)

2 EBRAREE (&)

DEFEHELRITTEAR -
LB D B E ST BUR M ST M AN R E
SRR o 2 & A8 B & D AR
EEET - B3 EE S P RITHA (B3
i% e HEflias - Hblas REE
DIEBERTREERBEKAR) - 2ED
BEFETHBEOE SEERAEEE
DEMBYA - RFM@EIE - #TE R #H
AEHEME  HEhRBUEHEEE
BE0BE - WARME D EORBRRITE

f7BELWA - MR EERREASE
WEE - WHRAEETERENEERDE

KRB FHEEEZE
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EE 5 H0 (&)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by SBEZREERARESHEIMNEER
operating and reportable segments: BT :
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF+-A=+—H
Optical | Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments Total
KEBZH HEEM H RS W
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
Assets £&E
Trade receivables & 5 fE Wz TE 2,367,013 4,368,886 56,344 6,792,243
Bill receivables IR =% 658,226 88,041 10,263 756,530
Inventories 17 & 1,559,605 4,155,765 67,701 5,783,071
Total segment assets 7 &0 & E B E 4,584,844 8,612,692 134,308 13,331,844
Unallocated assets K5 B & & 22,106,271
Consolidated assets #2%& &= 35,438,115
Liabilities B &
Trade payables & 5 fEff 58 2,318,329 4,752,353 88,693 7,159,375
Note payables f& i 2% 135,048 1,177,220 23,708 1,335,976
Total segment liabilities 7 28 & (& 4258 2,453,377 5,929,573 112,401 8,495,351
Unallocated liabilities &2 B & (& 10,116,647

Consolidated liabilities 428 & 18,611,998
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIP (F)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHEEREE (E)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+ZA=+—H
Optical Optoelectronic Optical
Components Products Instruments
HET HEEm p L PR
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AREFT AREET T ARETTT AREFTT

Assets &

Trade receivables & 2 fEUFKIE 2,386,069 5,934,133 38,101 8,358,303

Bill receivables B IE 512,442 242,141 3,728 758,311

Inventories & 1,048,014 4,028,794 69,154 5,145,962

Total segment assets 7 &8 & & {258 3,946,525 10,205,068 110,983 14,262,576

Unallocated assets K9 Bl & &= 16,430,495

Consolidated assets #2%& & 30,693,071

Liabilities & &

Trade payables & 5 & 58 1,858,677 6,572,271 73,568 8,504,516

Note payables & #& 171,024 938,789 12,223 1,122,036

Total segment liabilities %3 5 & (& 4258 2,029,701 7,511,060 85,791 9,626,552

Unallocated liabilities 79 Bt & & 8,340,342

Consolidated liabilities 2 & (& 17,966,894

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSHRBARESBESEEIR :

allocating resources between segments:

e Trade receivables, bill receivables and inventories are allocated e BHREWFIE- - EREBREKFEHS
to the respective operating and reportable segments. All IEEEENEERAREDEL - FTA
other assets are unallocated assets, which are not regularly EmEEHBEEITERARESTSME
reported to the Board of Directors. BWARDELEE °

e Trade payables and note payables are allocated to the e BHRENFNBERENERSEZMEE
respective operating and reportable segments. All other MEBERAHREDE - FIEEMARE
liabilities are unallocated liabilities, which are not regularly MEEBIEHRNEESRENRDE

reported to the Board of Directors. BfE -
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EEE (&)
Other segment information Hth 7 5 & #
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_Z-_ZTF+-A=+—HLEE

Optical | Optoelectronic Optical Consolidated

Components Products Instruments | Unallocated total
XEBH KEEM KBER AOE menE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR | AR®TR [ AR®T:R

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: st 22 HERETANRE
Depreciation and amortisation #78 J & 792,709 812,377 20,682 2,517 1,628,285
Impairment losses on trade receivables reversed

in profit or loss
REEFEENE 5 RN RERE (6,320) (4,658) (1,240) = (12,218)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and

equipment and land use right

HEMSE  MBERFHR T ERRER (W) 2,408 8,755 W) - 11,156
Share award scheme expense #1752 E)51 21 77,369 54,874 14,747 4,821 151,811
Interest income from bank and financial instruments

BAREMIAFSKA (19,672) (233,447) (5,876) (12,612) (271,607
Allowance for inventories 7 & & & 22,657 218,367 4,650 - 245,674

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEH R EEERRERMERT A
PRHEEFENTE
Addition to property, plant and equipment
ERE =P E 1,597,434 930,988 9,229 64 2,537,715
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. ¥E 7 I (&)
Other segment information (Continued) Hith o IBE R (K)
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_ZT-NFT-_A=+—HLFE
Optical | Optoelectronic Optical

Components Products Instruments Unallocated
KEZH KEEM et AOE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT ARBTTT ARBFTT ARBFTT ARBFTT

Amounts included in the measure of segment

profit or loss: st 22 BERETANRE
Depreciation and amortisation #7% K 34 576,549 683,623 16,586 1,120 1,277,878
Impairment losses on trade receivables

recognised in profit or loss
RERTRANE ZEWFIERESR 8,790 1,212 897 - 10,899
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment and land use right

HEME  Has R kL E AR (k) BB (945) 45,724 14 179 44,972
Share award scheme expense #7352 E) =121 64,973 41,887 12,453 4,495 123,808
Interest income from bank and financial instruments

BIREBMIAFSHRA (16,197) (194,004) (1,030) (17,254) (228,485)
Allowance for inventories 175 %/ 69,648 84,922 918 - 155,488

Amounts regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker but not included
in the measure of segment assets:
EEH BT EEERRERMEERT A
PRHEEFENTE :
Addition to property, plant and equipment
ERE: P E 1,763,577 1,466,416 11,722 187 3,241,902
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. BEDIM (&)

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

FEEMBA

AT AAREENRE EEEROBRADH :

2020
—g-%%F

—_—

RMB’ 000
ARBTR

2019
—E—NF
RMB’ 000
ARET T

Mobile phone related products # &) 5% 18 2= 5 32,119,027 32,773,687
Other lens sets H1th§5 58 2,709,419 2,314,477
Digital camera related products £u55 48 # 48 B &= & 592,186 744,788
Optical instruments 3t 2 {%zs 204,974 192,682
Other spherical lens and plane products Hfth Bk $5 F K F & 164,946 182,883
Digital video lens EXi5 R S85% 28 29,423 98,846
Other products E A E fh 2,181,790 1,541,341

38,001,765 37,848,704
Geographical information i EE R

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the PRC, Vietnam,
Korea, Japan, India and the United States.

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from external
customers is presented based on the locations of goods physically
delivered and information about the Group’s non-current assets by
the geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

AEBNEBTEMNDE - BiE - 8
AR HEREE -

REBRRXNEMM A RA K BINDE P
MAREEZ FHELERARIREEMIRA
BEOMNASEIERDEENE R a0
T
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6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Continued) 6. EE 5 (&)

Geographical information (Continued) wEER (&)

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
FERBEE
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EF —ET-NF
+=-—B=+—H |[+=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARETTT AR¥ET T ARETTT
China /1 31,578,180 31,129,983 8,516,376 7,696,674
Asia (except China) T2 M (R EIBR M) 4,695,491 4,956,307 238,324 77,251
Europe BUM 966,094 926,597 179 227
North America dtZEiM 713,142 763,056 1,449 23
Others Hfth 48,858 72,761 - -
38,001,765 37,848,704 8,756,328 7,774,175
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates, deferred tax Mzt : FERBEETEIERBE QAN ER
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, equity instruments at FVTOCI, BEREEE BARBETABENG
debt instruments at amortised cost, derivative financial assets, time FEE RARBEFAHEMEEKZEL
deposits and goodwill. EmTH REEKAFENEBT

A TESREE  THERREE -

Information about major customers FEEFEH
Revenues from the following customers contributed over 10% of KEUATEFHBRAEAREHERE L
the total sales of the Group: LEEHEE10% :

2020 2019
__‘,__‘,ﬂi igiﬂfﬁ

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARETTT

Customer A, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products
ARFE  F2REXERIEBERBKRA 10,064,270 14,647,914
Customer B, revenue mainly from Optoelectronic and related Products
BEF  TE2XEABRBAERNEA 8,881,539 4,243,617
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7(a). OTHER INCOME 7(a). Hfttlii sz

2020 2019
—z-%5 e

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBTT

Government grants (Note 32) B fF#Bh& (Fi=£32) 141,810 113,148
Interest income from time deposits, short term fixed deposits,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances

EHER BHEHFHR  BEERBRITTERRRITESRTZWA 47,230 28,516
Interest income from debt instruments & T &5 208 A 9,335 10,138
Investment income from unlisted financial products at FVTPL

BAAREBEAABSENFLTERERRERA 215,042 189,831
Interest income from small loan services /)Ng8 & F AR 75 F1 2 Y A 7,049 6,575
Income from sales of moulds £ & AU A 24,148 11,211
Income from sales of scrap materials $ %6 B2 A 24,344 16,462
Rental income & WA 15,665 10,131
Others EAth 25,767 19,490

Total 4258 510,390 405,502
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7(b). OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7(b). sz & E518

2020 2019
—z-%5 —F-nEF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARMF T ARBTT

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

HEWE - #BELRENER (11,156) (44,972)
Loss on deemed disposal of interest in an associate

RAEH & — [l S R B i E £ e E S - (5,691)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary H&HE A 78 EE (1,673) -
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) SMNEUW S (E518) JF 58 225,506 (118,707)
Loss on changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments, net

MESHMTIAAARBEHELENBEESE (111,002) (17,723)
Gain on changes in fair value of equity instruments at FVTPL

BRAREFABSNER TAAABEEHEEN KRS 32,773 6,949

Gain on changes in fair value of debt instruments and
fund investments at FVTPL

BARBEFABRNEBLARESREAARBEEHELENKE 53,470 41,552

Impairment loss of interest in an associate 7 — B & A B #E 28 B R E B 18 - (62,866)

Others Hth (661) 843

Total 48%8 187,257 (200,615)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BiE A

2020 2019

—EC%F —TNF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T ARETFIT

Interests on bank borrowings fR1TEEF| & 54,737 71,451

Interests on bonds payable FE{F &% T &8 164,282 163,938
Interest on long term payables related to intangible assets

BRI 8 B A B A R B R T RIA R R 7,158 8,095

Interest on lease liabilities & & &7 & 7,563 6,954

Total #2458 233,740 250,438
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FNBMHAX

2020
—EoBE

—=—=

2019
—ET-NF
RMB’ 000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT

Current tax: BNERFLIE :

PRC Enterprise Income Tax 1 Bl 1> % FriS 7 540,600 328,747
Withholding tax expense J84§%i 5 sz 24,000 41,695
Other jurisdictions Hfth & & [& 18,075 5,393
582,675 375,835
Over provision in prior years: 8 FEEREE B ¢
PRC Enterprises Income Tax & B> 2155 (4,515) (24,135)
Deferred tax (Note 19): IEFERIAE (Fi3E19)
Current year NEE 124,470 179,265
702,630 530,965

Under the Law of the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the

PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards, except as
described below:

(i)

Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Infrared
Optics”) and Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Sunny Optical Intelligence (Yuyao)”), domestic limited
liability companies, were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprise and
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% with the expiry date
on 31 December 2021.

Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Opotech”), Ningbo
Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Automotive
Optech”), Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. (“Sunny
Zhongshan Optics”), Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd.
(“Sunny Instruments”), Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research
Institute Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Research Institute”) and Zhejiang
Sunny SmartlLead Technologies Co.,Ltd. (‘Sunny SmartlLead”),
domestic limited liability companies, were approved as
Hi-Tech Enterprises and entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2022.

RIBHECEMRFIE ([REMRFHE]D
REEMBRZABRGES - PENEQF
BEROREE —_ZETNF-A—HER
25% -+ HE T E RSN -

0)

)

ERRFAIIEMARA A ([32F4A
ONRE]) Rk RFEEABRME
RAF([Z2FEEENEB (k) 1)
BNEBREMAR  WERWTAS
MR BEEZX15%HMESRR
X -RIE—F+-HA=+—HE
o

EREFHAEEEARAE ([RFX
Bl BERETFEHXASRMERA
Al([RFEHALE])  BFALE(FP
W) BERAR ([FFFHRILLE]) - B
HFERBRAA ([FEFERS]) - 37
FRECHI) HERERAF ([532F
skt ]) BRI FEERMERA
A ([RFEERMD HAARNEERE
AT - WERA Am ki ds
ERZZISRHERNRE  RZF
&+ -A=t+—HEm -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“‘Sunny Zhejiang Optics”)
and Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. (“Sunny Xinyang Optics”),
domestic limited liability companies, were approved as
Hi-Tech Enterprise and entitled to a preferential tax rate of

15% with the expiry date on 31 December 2020.

Ltd.
a domestic limited liability

Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology Co.,
(“Sunny Optical Intelligence”),
company, was recognised as Software Enterprise and entitled
preferential policies of exemption from enterprise income
taxation for the first two years till 31 December 2018 and
reduction half for the subsequent three years till 31 December
2021.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

9. BB ()

(il

(iv)

TR TIHRBRRAR ([FFHITH
B REGETAERR A ([5#
FEEALE]) RREEREEAF

WERABESMBEMEE  AEEX
15%MEBHE  RZTE_TF+=
A=+—REm-
WMIRFERABEMER QR (5
FEEXB]) RNEBREERAA
WERABEHLE  AIREMFERE
EE-N\FF+A=+—RH=ZXH
PLEMEBRMNEREER AERRE
B=—FHE-_ZT-_—F+=—A=1—

AZELEHEES -

HiE @ ENRARAREERNEITE
R EFE
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FRIEFipE XX (&)

FANRAL HEGABER MEMBEEK
SRR ADE A RRAT

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
—2-%F —FNF

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTT

Profit before tax B Al 7 5,642,884 4,550,340
Tax at the PRC EIT tax rate of 25% &+ Bl 1> 5 FTiS Bl i & 25% EHi 1,410,721 1,137,585
Tax effect of share of results of associates 214 A RIS 2 RS2 (5) 1,375
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
ORI PR 7% 5,793 17,825
Tax effect of allowance granted under share award scheme in the PRC
RER G KB B EREROOREZE (14,437) (24,447)
Tax effect of preferential tax rates for certain subsidiaries (Note a)
ETHBARAREEE KT E (Kta) (372,942) (308,517)
Tax effect of additional tax deduction of research and

development expenses (Note b)
e R BIMIBHR . B2 (Hb) (385,378) (333,245)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR BBE 2 s £ 28,315 34,781
Utilisation of tax losses not previously recognised
A AAARERHBEE (8,991) (52,867)
Deferred tax provided for withholding tax on income derived in the PRC
iy NELLET T ONEE Gk f) R 1258 49,205 81,368
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions
REMEERLCENHBARMNTRARE L HBTE (5,136) 1,242
Over provision in prior years B & [ BZE A (4,515) (24,135)
Income tax expense for the year £ RFT1EH I 702,630 530,965

Details of deferred taxation and unrecognised temporary difference EIER A M AR TR Iy = BRI B A BT =

are disclosed in Note 19. 1995 57 -
Notes: BdaE -
(@) For the PRC subsidiaries which were approved as Hi-Tech Enterprises (@) MERA ASHEMOEREHL LT

or Software Enterprise, they are entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% or preferential policies of exemption from or half reduction of
enterprise income tax.

BBARME  HRAEFZ16%HER
BERFARRIRF ERAEHOEBERE -

(b) In August 2018, a new notice with the name of Caishui [2018] No. 99 b) R=F—NFNA  —BERHH[2018]99
“Notice on Increasing the Pre-tax Deduction Ratio of Research and EXHFBACEARNESMEAEEATA

Development Expenses” was released, according to which certain HNEHFI E 5] BB AN ) 34 - AR IR R A -
PRC subsidiaries are entitled to an additional 75% tax deduction on EThEHBATREE S —TER—

eligible research and development expenses incurred by them for the
9 " P Y - NE+-A=t+-BUrMEFEEE

both years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. N y
MRS RO ER S ZHBREINTE% M
BRI -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

\\¥
10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. F A=A

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: FAENE R ATRIE :
2020 2019
e —TNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) == (Fi:E13) 16,169 14,508
Other staff's salaries and allowances £ 8 T 8% & K& 2 Eh 1,963,313 1,683,196
Other staff’s discretionary bonuses E-ft 8 T #BII5IEAT 474,763 455,846

Other staff’'s contribution to retirement benefit scheme

HAth 8 THYR R4 AT BIH5K 219,448 191,075
Other staff’s share award scheme expense £ 8 T K% (7 2B =815 142,279 115,608
2,815,972 2,360,233
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense MR /A5 % H1F & ik 48 24,741,675 25,816,826
Auditor’s remuneration 1% ZtEh 4 4,209 3,542
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #)3  # 22 LR EITE 1,513,407 1,171,430
Depreciation of investment properties % & ¥4 &E 4,391 4,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets £ FEEEITE 54,285 46,499
Amortisation of intangible assets % 2 & = & £ 56,202 55,558

Allowance for inventories (included in cost of sales)

GFERE (BENESKRA) 245,674 155,488
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

11. DIVIDENDS

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company recognised
as distribution during the year:
FAER B IROAR R T BRFEARE
2019 final dividends — RMB72.80 cents (2019:
2018 final dividends — RMB56.80 cents) per share
“E-NFRERE - 8RARK72.800
—T-NF ZE-N\FRERE - 8RAR%56.805)

1" RE

2020 2019
—z-%5 e
RMB’ 000

AREBFTT

RMB’000
ARBT

798,507 623,011

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of approximately
RMB88.80 cents per share, equivalent to Hong Kong Dollar
(“HK$” or “HKD”) 105.70 cents per share, amounting to a
total of approximately RMB974,003,000 (2019: approximately
RMB72.80 cents per share, equivalent to HK$81.00 cents per
share, amounting to a total of approximately RMB798,507,000)
has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The final dividends proposed after the end of
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of reporting period.

RBEPRE  ARREBEZRNTE
R AR #88.8070 (FBENFR105.70
Bl - A RHARKE 974,003,000t (=
T-—NF : BROARK72.80% (48
ZRERE1.0081l) - EHHNARY
798,507,0007T) MBE_ZE_TF+_H
=+ RIEFERARE - EAERER
EERRBEFAE EHE - @R HRESR
RERN B REAE B I AR AR E BRIER
RAE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.88KRER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share A RREESRERAREERF TR
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following BATEEE
data:

2020 2019
—B-RF —

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARBETT

Earnings 27|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share
STEEBREARREERFN AT 4,871,793 3,991,298

Number of shares & {32 B
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic earnings per share (Note)

ST E AR E AR R F A B AR N 5 & () 1,092,870 1,094,079
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &£ #58 @R £ -
Restricted Shares [& &4 5 1,578 1,873

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of diluted earnings per share

SHEEREE RN T BN T8 1,094,448 1,095,952
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares has been MiEE - METFHEETRROEEFEDZERRMD
calculated taking into account the shares held by the Group under REFTE TAEBEREHRG -

share award scheme.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13. E% FETBRAEBERESR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFMEEM S
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and executives’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the EENTHRAEMESZRERA EMRIUNEAD
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance, is as follows: ARG BT -

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-Z-_ZEF+-A=1+T—HLEFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total

benefits Bonus | contributions award 2020

FER RINER -

HifE A AL AR R 43 52 b
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT | AR%TR ARBTR | AR%TR| AR¥ETR
(Note)
(Rt=E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ¥#& 2 1,120 547 73 2,383 4,123
Sun Yang ok 942 596 43 2,383 3,964
Wang Wenjie £ X 7R 793 547 57 2,383 3,780
Sub-total /N5t 2,855 1,690 173 7,149 11,867

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2020

FEk RIER -

Hit g # AL AR R 43 32 k]
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTT
(Note)
(B aE)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHTES
Wang Wenjian £ X2 1,120 547

2,383 4,050
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13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEE FETHAERASR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ BEeFmMESENE (8)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2020

FeR BAKEF “ECEF
Hin@Fl 4L FEIMR 43 2 #m
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETR | AR¥Tx ARETR | ARBTR| AR®TxR

C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

BYFHTES

Zhang Yuging 3R 53 84 = = - 84
Feng Hua Jun 5% 84 = o - 84
Shao Yang Dong BB 5 84 = = - 84
Sub-total /Nt 252 - = - 252

Total 4858 16,169
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEE FETHAERASR
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ EeFrmMESNE (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_ZT-—NF+-A=+—RHLFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total

benefits Bonus | contributions award 2019
FLR RINER —E-hE

Hfth 7 7 TEAT BEESA Rt 228 ek
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT | ARBTR| AR®TRT| ARETE| ARETT
(Note)
(F=E)

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HITES

Ye Liaoning ZF 2 1,120 389 70 2,050 3,629
Sun Yang ok 942 564 43 2,050 3,599
Wang Wenjie £ X 7R 793 552 56 2,050 3,451
Sub-total /N5t 2,855 1,505 169 6,150 10,679

Retirement

Salaries benefit
and other scheme Share Total
benefits Bonus | contributions award 2019
Fek RIKEM —T-NEF

H fth 78 7 TE4T BEETA Rt 228 k]
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB'’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETT | ARBTR| AR%®TT| ARETT| ARETET
(Note)
(FE)

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
FHTES
Wang Wenjian £ 3% 1,120 389 = 2,050 3,559
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 13.
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Salaries
and other
benefits

HFER

HA AR R
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 00
ARBTE | ARBTL

Retirement

benefit
scheme Share Total
contributions award 2019
RINE A —TNEF
AR R 17 22 B g
RMB'’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT | ARBTRT| ARETR

C) INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS

BYEHTES

Zhang Yuqing 3R R & 90 - - - 90

Feng Hua Jun 5% 90 - - - 90

Shao Yang Dong BB 5 90 = = = 90

Sub-total /gt 270 - - - 270
Total #8258 14,508

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were for
the services as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Ye Liaoning, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Wang Wenijie are also the
Chief Executives of the Company and their emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by them as the Chief
Executives.

EIRTESHERREEREEARA
Ko N 6% 1B = 75 ) AR TS SR B

EIERITESENME REEARR RE
B B8 B EE S5 A AR TS SR BN

EIBYGEFRATEFTNME AREFREEAR
RAEFH R R -

BEEERLE  BARAEEREXKELETR
ARABNEBITHRAE  BEXAEREZ
RENHEBRRBEFETERITEAE
PR IRIS VBN S -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ BEE FETHAERASE

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 4 (2019:
4) directors and chief executives for the year. Details of their
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the remaining
1 (2019: 1) highest paid individuals were as follows:

mEFNESHE (4)

AEERAFENTIERSFMALBE
ME(ZE-NF HR)BEFREFETH
AB - EMEFBEHN X - Hfp—% (=
E-NEF: —R)RSFHALHBS M
T

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Salaries and other benefits ¥ & H b2 7 541 671
Bonuses (Note) fE4T (Bft=E) 1,336 1,362
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR 4&F 5T 8 LK 61 56
Share award B& {5 52/ 1,508 1,808
3,446 3,897

Their emoluments were within the following band: BN EHE LT -

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 % 7T 24,500,000/ 7T

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
No. of No. of

employees

BT A

employees
BTAH

Note: The bonus is determined by remuneration committees based on
the Group’s performance for each financial year and subject to a
maximum of 5% of consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals and directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. In the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil),
no director waived emoluments.

During both years, certain directors, non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees were granted share awards,
in respect of their services to the Group under the share awards
scheme of the Group. Details of the share awards scheme are set
out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mzt : EATHFMEESREASENRZH
BEEHNRREE - ETARRARE
PR FE(R AR & A 5% o

RWER > AEBEVERDELRSHHA
ITRARBEEINME - FREFEN
AFMAREE R RS HAFDBERE
B -BE_FT_FTF+_A=1—HLF
B UEEERENS (ZF-NEF:FT)-

RWER - RIBEAEE NI 2R S -
ETES  FEFMFITETBRAERS
i 8 ph 1 A AN S B R A RO AR 75 1 2%
Bt 2R - B EERh A 8l F IR HN 4R
EMBEwRM T2 -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 %)% - B RRE

Machinery and Fixtures
Owned production Motor | and office | Construction
properties equipment vehicles | equipment | in progress Total
BER HR
BENE EERMR RE | BAERRE HRIRE oL
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARETR ARETR | ARBTR | ARETR ARETR | ARBETR
COST A&
At 1 January 2019 R=Z—NF—H—H 556,071 5,031,358 18,754 629,100 784,858 7,020,141
Additions RE 67,483 2,453,292 692 328,172 392,263 3,241,902
Transfer &7 292,511 102,251 - 68,112 (462,874) -
Disposals (1% (2,167) (179,125) (383) (5,966) (56) (187,697
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary
K- WBRRME - 26,942 163 1,581 28 28,714
Exchange realignment 51 382 - 57 25 51 = 133
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
RZE-N+-A=+-BR=ZE-ZF—F—H 913,898 7,434,775 19,251 1,021,050 714,219 10,108,193
Additions AE 52,042 1,562,262 394 199,759 723,258 2,537,715
Transfer &% 345,576 204,541 - 34,353 (584,470 -
Disposals (& (11,056) (249,505) - (10,309) - (270,870)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HEMBA AR LIRS - (849) = (303) = (1,152)
Exchange realignment 5hE 8% - (2,786) (110) (1,892) - (4,788)
At 31 December 2020 R=E=ZFF+-A=+—H 1,300,460 8,948,438 19,535 1,242,658 853,007 12,364,098
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
REAMERAE
At 1 January 2019 R=Z—nF—H—H 130,360 2,087,377 12,413 267,250 - 2,497,400
Charge for the year £ i 26,459 1,051,824 2,158 90,989 - 1,171,430
Eliminated on disposals & 4 (123) (126,888) (240) (6,216) - (182,467)
Exchange realignment 51 382 - 25 14 46 = 85
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
RZB-NE+-A=T—AK=ZE-FF—-F—H 156,696 3,012,338 14,345 353,069 - 3,536,448
Charge for the year FR 45,504 1,087,297 1,810 178,796 - 1,513,407
Eliminated on disposals &5 4 (9,504) (179,036) = (9,066) - (197,600)
Derecognised on disposal of a subsidiary
HEMB A AR & EHER - (835) - (286) - (1,121)
Exchange realignment 5hE F% - (63) (105) (55) - (229)
At 31 December 2020 R=E=FF+-A=+—H 192,696 4,119,701 16,050 522,458 - 4,850,905
CARRYING VALUES [
At 31 December 2020 R=E-ZF+-F=1—H 1,107,764 4,828,737 3,485 720,200 853,007 7,513,193

At 31 December 2019 R=FE—HNET-F=1—H 757,202 4,422 437 4,906 667,981 714219 6,566,745
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives as follows:
Owned properties Shorter of 20 years
or over the lease term
Machinery and production equipment 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles

Fixtures and office equipment

4 to 5 years
3 to 10 years

The carrying value of owned properties shown above comprises:

Owned properties outside Hong Kong

REBRIMNB B =

14. 9% - B RRE (F)

i - HRRREER ERTRRE
M) REREAVAR KRB E 4 Al A M
17 -

BEME 20 MR ERN
(B H B%)
WeE N EE RS 5&104F
B 4FB5%F
ERONSE N 3E10%F
B BEYMENEABEAKAT

31/12/2020
—EZEHF

+t=R=+—H

31/12/2019
—E-NF
T=E ==
RMB’ 000
ARETFIT

RMB’ 000
ARET

1,107,764 757,202
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15.EREEE

Leasehold Leased

lands properties Total

HE T HEWX HmE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETT ARETIT ARETT

As at 31 December 2020 W —ZE-ZF+ - A=+—H
Carrying amount BRE{E

As at 31 December 2019 R —Z—h&E+-A=+—H
Carrying amount BRE{E

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_T_ZTFT_A=+—RHILFE
Depreciation charge #T& &

342,552 137,453 480,005

243,974 158,769 402,743

7,908 46,377 54,285

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE_T-NF+_A=1+—RILFE
Depreciation charge 172 &

6,322 40,177 46,499

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
t=A=t+-8| +=A=+-&

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBF T ARBTT

Expense relating to short-term leases %2 280 € #8512 8,218 9,363
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets,

excluding short-term leases of low value assets
REEEEASHERX (TeERBREREBEEENE 235 461
Total cash outflow for leases T &IR & H 42E 167,567 112,535
Additions to right-of-use assets {FREEENE 134,287 126,254
For both years, the Group leases various offices, warehouses, staff RAEARN AEBEHEZH #)ﬁf -

dormitory and machines for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 1 month to 10 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

B-BIEEk#SANEEE Fﬁn—fi
%E‘E/\%’JE’\JI;E/H%EZ%HIHImE o
HRERNEEEFDE RS SE TR E
MR o 7O TE A B N RS I R RGH Y
REER  A"EERBAEHONERRETE
BRFHITHOHR -
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings and industrial
buildings where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located.
The Group is the registered owner of these property interests,
including the underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.

The Group regularly entered into short-term lease for machines.
As at 31 December 2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is
similar to the portfolio of short-term leases entered during the
year.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB140,479,000 are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of RMB137,453,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: lease liabilities of RMB160,606,000
and related right-of-use assets of RMB158,769,000). The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

15. EHEEE (&)

AN REBEHEABERAE R TEEF
(FBEZEHLERE) - AKRE/ZEY
X (BRABEEL W) HELHESR
A B REXN2EHRIBBABBEZEY
KiEs o BRREAISED B RE - HAE
ZEMERMENEE RN ERZ5 -

M

AREBETFEH BRI LEREE - R =F
“EFE+-A=1t—H EHHEHE4dHsHR
FRFIZHEHREERSEL -

HER IR

oy BE_ZF_FF+_A=+—8 "
HEaBEARK140,479,000 7T & HH7E
WERAEEEARK137,453,000 0
BR(ZE-—NLF HEBBEAARK
160,606,0007C RH@HEAEEE B A
R#158,769,0007T) ° B AFEHHE
EEEREREZIN  BERETHEN
ERIEM L - HEEETS AR ERE
R o



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # %2 — & —F4#+— A=+—HIFFZ

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IRE Y%
The Group leases out several offices under operating leases with AEBUSZEESFFENRKHES EHE
rentals receivable quarterly or semi-annually. The lease typically FHELEHEETHHAE - EEHE A
run for fixed period of 1 to 10 years. E104F o
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result HRFEHEENNEEREBNEENEE
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the A MASET2HGRHSEREESI
respective functional currencies of the group entities. The lease RINERRR - HEAS N T BIEFBRERE
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and lessee’s BERAEARHEERE SR EERE -

option to purchase the property at the end of lease term.

RMB’ 000
ARETIT

COST F A

At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020

RZE-—NWF+_A=T—BEZE=_FF+_A=+—H 67,601
DEPRECIATION &

At 1 January 2019 R=ZF—N4F—H—H 17,912
Charge for the year AR 4,391
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

RZE-—NFE+_A=T—HBE=Z=FF—H—H 22,303
Charge for the year WX 4,391
At 31 December 2020 R—ZE—ZEF+—-_H=+—H 26,694

CARRYING VALUES EHEE
At 31 December 2020 A—Z-_ZTF+—-A=+—H 40,907

At 31 December 2019 R=—ZE—hE+=-_A=+—H 45,208
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REW % (&)
(Continued)
All of the investment properties are measured using the cost FrEIREMEURARAGE - RZT =
model. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at TE+ZA=1+—H8  KEEREMED
31 December 2020 was RMB93,348,000 (31 December 2019: NREBARKISZ,348,000L (ZF— N
RMB91,160,000). The fair value has been determined by the F+=ZH=+—H: AK%091,160,000
management of the Company reference to recent market evidence JL) c R ARBEREARBERELERRE K
of transaction prices for similar properties in the same locations HHRENRENENCEMSERIERE
and conditions. JE °
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information about REEFREMENFBERNIFERREH
the fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are as RABEELRHERWDT

follows:

Fair value as at

Level 3 31/12/2020
R=ZB=%F
+=—RA=+—8

B=& MDA
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT ARBT T

Commercial property units located in the PRC i7 77 /1 B ) 7 2 1) 2 B i1 93,348 93,348

Fair value as at

Level 3 31/12/2019

RZZE—NF

+=-A=+—8©

B WA E

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARBT T ARBTIT

Commercial property units located in the PRC i A FR B8 #) i3 3£ ) % B i1 91,160 91,160
The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line EIEEYER20F NIRRBEHEITE ©

basis over 20 years.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1E]EEE

Patents
BRI
RMB’ 000
AREFIT
COST A&
At 1 January 2019 R=—Z—hF—HF—H 444,933
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary ¥ — K& A 7l FT15 125,900
At 31 December 2019 7 —NF+=-—A=+—H 570,833
Additions N E 176
At 31 December 2020 A—Z-ZTF+—-A=+—H 571,009
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT #84 & s &
At 1 January 2019 R=Z—hF—A—H 96,112
Charge for the year A3 i 55,558
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
R-E—hhFt+_A=+—Bhk_Z-_ZTF—HF—H 151,670
Charge for the year A 56,202
At 31 December 2020 A—Z-—ZTF+—-A=+—H 207,872
CARRYING VALUES EHEE
At 31 December 2020 A—ZE -ZF+ - H=+—H 363,137
At 31 December 2019 R=—Z—hE+-_A=+—H 419,163

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held (i) licensing patent
acquired from Konica Minolta, Inc. (‘KMI”), an independent third
party of the Group, which allows the Group to develop, produce
and sell licensed products, (i) patent and other intangible assets
acquired from the acquisition of Sunny Mobility Technologies
(Ningbo) Co., Ltd., formerly known as Wuxi Wissen Intelligent
Sensing Technology Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Wissen”), in the prior year
to develop the advanced driving assistant system in automobile
industry.

R-ZZE-_FHFE+-_A=1+—H AKER
AEERENBAKREN—RBILF =T
RIFEREREAR (KMI) BEBEFNF
B AMARERE LENMNHEREE
o (VR EFRBERZETETERRM
BRAT (RIRBESSRE EERRMAR
NE([EHRFR])) BSHEF & E it &
WERE RABTERBELEBRBHDR
ST
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 1. EBEEE (&)
These intangible assets have finite useful lives and are amortised ZEBTEEREBEBRAERFE - WA
on a straight-line basis over 10 years. B AR T F A -
The directors of the Company considered no impairment loss on HE_Z-_TFR_ZT—NLF+=A
intangible assets for the both years ended 31 December 2020 and =T —HILFE KRAEERLETLE
2019. EIWEREREE -

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REtE N B RS

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—Bo%F —ENEF
t+t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=t—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARETT

Cost of investment in unlisted associates FE B & A G E p A 93,569 92,319
Share of post-acquisition profit or loss and other comprehensive

income or expenses, net of dividends received

SMEW B RERD REM 2 ER AKX - HRE KRS (18,753) (18,773)
Impairment loss recognised & &R EE 18 (72,863) (72,863)

1,953 683
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #Z —ZF —FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ
pon — ==
18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REE N TRIAVRER (&)
(Continued)
Details of each of the Group’s associates at the end of the REEHR - AEBE ST E QRSB
reporting period are as follow: T
Places of Proportion of ownership Proportion of voting
registration/ interests held rights held by
Name of associate operation by the Group the Group Principal activity
Rl REREN FREREN
HENRER Sk P gRE LAl RERLA TEEYR
2020 2019 2020 2019
—7—7 7FE jHLE —7—7 :$*H$
Visiondigi (Shanghai) Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC 30.85% 30.85% 33.33% 33.33%  Manufacture and sale of closed
(*Visiondigi Shanghai’)* i circuit television
LREERBRTERAR (LER%) EERHERRESR
Jiangsu Sunny Medical Equipments Co., Ltd.  The PRC 26.00% 26.00% 33.33% 33.33%  Manufacture and sale of medical
(“Jiangsu Medical’)* i instrument business
IERTEERMAR AR (IHRTRE) EERHERBREEK
SCIVAX Co., Ltd. (‘SCIVAX)* Japan 18.3% 18.30% 18.30% 18.30%  Research and development of
SCIVAX#E &1t ([SCIVAX])* A& advanced nanotechnology
TR RAR EE AR
LA — K ERABMBRAR" The PRC 25.00% N/A 25.00% N/A  Research and development of
LA~ ERARMBRA R e T@f @A optics products
HRERAE L EER
*: The English names of the above entities established in the PRC and o RAPBERBARKYE LB AR ETE
Japan are translated for identification purpose only. REEATE - EERER -
#: The company was established during the current year, which is #: ZARRAFERERKY FEREWR
mainly engaged in the research and development of advanced optics R GENBER -

products.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. dEFEBL 1B
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement REAMBIRAKRNESM S & TRLT
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities HEEEMBEBEELKE - BEMERS
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BHRIRLERIBASROTAOT ¢

balances for financial reporting purposes:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
i —TNF
t=A=+—-B| T=A=1+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Deferred tax assets &R TH & &= (207,332) (131,178)
Deferred tax liabilities i TE & & 888,809 684,836
681,477 553,658
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) ERANEZREHIREE (BE) RRA
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior FEMBEFEEBNT :
years:

Withholding | Allowance
tax on for
distributed | inventories Deferred
profit from and ECL subsidy | Accelerated Accrued
the PRC provision income | depreciation bonus

RERER
PECAR | BMER i
NERS® | BRAE | WREEA MEFE | EiRS Rt 2
RMB'000 [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000 RMB'000 |  RMB'000 | RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTL | ARRTR | ARBTT | ARBTR | ARBTR

At 1 January 2019

RZE-NE—A—H 80,859 (32,456) (9,288) 314,493 (7,248) 14,369 360,729
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

RE&EPR GIA) (E9) 39,673 (24,929) (577) 227,129 (48,864) (13,167) 179,265
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary

KE-FMBARMG - - - - = 13,664 13,664
At 31 December 2019

RZZ-NE+=A=+—8 120,532 (57,385) (9,865) 541,622 (56,112) 14,866 553,658
Charge (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 9)

BRI (GTA) (F159) 25,205 (33,971) 1,544 170,504 (41,407) 2,595 124,470
Charge to other comprehensive income

FAHM AN E - - - - - 3,349 3,349

At 31 December 2020
RZIEZBF+-A=1—H 145,737 (91,356) (8,321) 712,126 (97,519) 20,810 681,477
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

20

As at 31 December 2020, the deferred tax liability amounting to
RMB145,737,000 (31 December 2019: RMB120,532,000) was
provided in respect of the temporary differences attributed to the
PRC undistributed profits to the extent exceeding the investment
plan which the directors of the Company decided to distribute.
The Group has determined that the remaining portion of the profits
derived from those PRC operating subsidiaries will be retained
by those subsidiaries and not distributed in the foreseeable
future, since the Group is in a position to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences, and it is probable that such
differences will not reverse nor be subject to withholding tax in the
foreseeable future.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately RMB885,339,000 (2019:
RMB808,044,000) available for offset against future profits.
The tax losses arising from the PRC non high-tech subsidiaries
of RMB78,984,000 (2019: RMB110,718,000) can be carried
forward for maximum of five years and will expire during 2021
to 2025 (2019: 2020 to 2024) while the tax losses arising from
the PRC high-tech subsidiaries of RMB764,624,000 (2019:
RMB653,462,000) can be carried forward for maximum of ten
years and will expire during 2021 to 2030 (2019: 2020 to 2029)
according to Caishui [2018] No. 76. which has extended the
expiration period from five years to ten years. Other tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT/
LAND USE RIGHT

The deposits are paid for construction of factory buildings,
acquisition of plants and equipment located in the PRC and other
regions and acquisition of land use right for the expansion of the
Group’s production plants.

19.

20.

IEAERE (4])

N_ZE-_TFE+-_F=+—H AEEH
FHAPERDIRAN GG R ZEEELDE
EHIEEERELF ARK145,737,000
T(CZE—AE+_A=+—8: AR¥
120,532,0007T) * 22 BEBBAAFE
EARENDRZIREFEINGSTE - ~EEE
AERBZETREERBRARNRANZ
BTIHIBEHZENBARRE BT
RABEREHNERIIE @ ARAEED T
Hl R R SRR R RETER  BZE
ZRAS T A BE R Al 78 B A9 5 2R 8 Bl 5 B
TESTIIE -

RIBEHR  AEEBAAREAREBELY
AR#885,339,0007T (=T —LF : A
R #808,044,0007T) ] it AR IE R 2R
wm Al o REIES I MM B AR EEMT
THE51E A AREE78,984,0007 (T — A
F: AR#110,718,0007T) Al A RZ A F
NS WER T —FE2_FT-HF
(Z2—NF: ZE-_TFE-_T_NF)
FIE o MBSk B R R EEMNT
A EE A ARE 764,624,000 (ZZT— A,
&£ AR#653,462,0007T) © AIRHEZ+
FREE - FHHARBRIRE 1 [2018]765%
YHAFEE+F  BRZT=_—FF=
E=FF(ZFE—NF: _T_ZTFFE_F
ZNEF)BIE - Bt E AR A ER A
i o

BB YIE
TiERED

REE L BZ A BT A RKBAR T
MR MR M s L R A A &
EMEBRERM RS
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21.EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT A. RAJ/EFAEMEERE
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER WERTA
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
t e 2.2 —2NEF
+t=A=+—B | +t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARBT T
Unlisted equity investments FE_E iR & 134,609 112,183
The unlisted equity investments represent the Group’s equity FELEMRBERERREEBERLAERL
interests in private entities. The directors of the Company have RAREZ - AAREFEEEHZZRE
elected to designate these investments in equity instruments as BEARAAEFAEMEAW SR
at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term fluctuations ITHE WIHBERESHERERERZE
in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not be BREAAENRBESTREAEERR
consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments HEMNHEZSEREUERRRAME BN
for long-term purposes and realising their performance in the long ZERE B RS o
run.
During the current year, the Group made a new equity investment RAFEHBE - NEBELD —BHARE
measured as equity instruments at FVTOCI amounting to WE - URAREFT AR M2 RS
RMB100,000 (2019: RMB5,600,000) and the fair value gain in the =T HREF=EAARKE100,000T (ZZE—AN
amount of RMB22,326,000 was recognised in FVTOCI reserve. F : AR®5,600,0007T) @ AnERES

AR 22,326,0007tERIEA R EFTA
Hih 2 E S FE B R -

22. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED 22 RSN ATTENER IR
COST
During the current year, two debt instruments amounting to RAFEHB MELBEAARE
RMB54,200,000 reached maturity and was redeemed accordingly. 54,200,000t EFH LA B 2 B2 EE °
The Group purchased another debt instrument amounting to AEBERBANZS—BHEBILASEARAAR
RMB29,262,000 carrying coupon rate of 6.40% with the same #29,262,0007T * ZEFZER6.40% * H
business model to collect contractual cash flows that are solely *BEARKEERRENHRESRE @ &
payments of principle amount outstanding semi-annually according BIEAEHNBRINEBEFEREERS 27
to the contract terms, the debt instrument was classified and B ZEBEBTAWS>BEERBEREFEKA
subsequently measured at amortised cost. = o
As at 31 December 2020, the total carrying amount of the RZEBE-ZFEF+_A=+—8 &K
debt instruments is RMB52,823,000 (31 December 2019: TAZEEEBEAARMKS52,823,0007T
RMB83,711,000) and all of the debt instruments will mature within (ZE—NF+-A=+—H: AR¥
one year (31 December 2019: RMB55,749,000). 83,711,0007T) - BEFTEEHBITABR —F

REH(ZZE—AF+_A=+—8: AE
#555,749,0007T) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE BB AREBEFTAEZNERE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
. i —
t=RA=+—-A| t=A=+—H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETIT

Current assets

mENEE

Fund investments (Note a)

B E (MizFa) 282,711 373,638

Unlisted financial products (Note b)

FELEmERER (M) 8,197,475 5,289,170
8,480,186 5,662,808

Non-current assets

EMENE E

Debt investments (Note c)

EBRE (Mizc) 72,884 84,568

Equity investments (Note d)

MR E (MisEd) 133,352 100,579

206,236 185,147
Notes: MIeE -
(a) Fund investments (a) E2RE

The Group entered into several contracts to purchase fund units (the
“Fund”) with a financial institution since 2018, which were accounted
for as financial assets as FVTPL on initial recognition. As at 31
December 2020, the fair value of the Fund is United State Dollar
(‘US$” or “USD”) 43,328,000 (31 December 2019: USD53,559,000)
per the investment statement of the financial institution, equivalent
to RMB282,711,000 (31 December 2019: RMB373,638,000).
The fair value gain in the amount of USD3,328,000, equivalent to
RMB22,199,000 (2019: RMB40,734,000) was recognised in profit or
loss in the current year.

BT \FE AEEE-—RSpEE
BRI ETAHNUBEESEN ([E£])
RYI B EREEINER AR BT ABRD
SRMEE N-EBE-_ZTE+-_A=+—
H RBESBEBENRERE  E£2H0
A 1EA43,328,000% T ([FEx]) (=
T—-hF+=ZA=+—H :58,559,000
) HERARM282,711,0007T
(ZE—NEF+=ZA=+—H8: AR
373,638,0007T) ° AFERIBEFRERA
A= © 543,328,000 T (FHHER A
R#¥22,199,0007T) (ZE—NF : ARY
40,734,0007T) °
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Unlisted financial products

During the current year, the Group entered into several contracts of
unlisted financial products with banks. The unlisted financial products
are managed by related banks in the PRC to invest principally in
certain financial assets including bonds, trusts and cash funds, etc.
The unlisted financial products have been accounted for financial
assets at FVTPL on initial recognition of which the return of the
unlisted financial products was determined by reference to the
performance of the underlying government debt instruments and
treasury notes and as at 31 December 2020 the expected return rate
stated in the contracts ranges from 2.15% to 3.95% (31 December
2019: 2.10% to 4.75%) per annum.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value change
of the unlisted financial products is insignificant in the current year.

Debt investments

During the current year, the Group disposed three debt investments
at the proceed of RMB81,668,000 (2019: RMB75,719,000) and the
Group purchased another three debt instruments at FVTPL amounting
to RMB77,617,000 with coupon rates ranging from 4.45% to 5.00%.

The gain on the fair value change of the remaining debt investments
amounting to RMB47,000 (2019: RMB1,674,000) was recognised in
the profit or loss in the current year.

Equity investments

The Group’s equity investments of gRBkMZEAETIREF D (FR
&%) (“V Fund”) and another partnership enterprise in total amount
of RMB72,500,000 (31 December 2019: RMB72,500,000) were
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. As at 31 December 2020, the
fair value of all equity investments amounted to RMB133,352,000
(31 December 2019: RMB100,579,000) with a fair value gain of
RMB32,773,000 (2019: RMB6,949,000) recognised in the profit or
loss during the current year.

23. 1%
E

(b)

(c)

(d)

R[REFABESNEHE

J
(&)

FEmERER

RAFEHM  AEEERITHRTSETIE
tTERMEREN - ZSFELTERER
HPBEMEBRITEE  TZRENE
5 ERkRSESCESETEREE - 3
FerEMENPERFEIIERAAR
Bt ABRNEREE - ZHELTE
BhE A B RARR AR BAES TAERE
EFMERBREE  R_ZE_ZTF+=-A
=+—B AOFHNEHFEFENT
2.15%%£3.95% 2 H (ZE—NLF+=A
=+—H :2.10%E4.75% 2 ) °

ARAEERAE  FLTEBERNAR
ERBRAELLTEA -

BHRRE

RAFEEHHE  ASELE=ZHEHER
& FTSEIB A ARKES1,668,000T (= F
—NE : AR#75,719,0007T) @ BARER
BASI=ZEHRARBFABERZNESRT
BESBEAARKET7,617,0007T @ Z@EF=R
NTF4.45%E5.00% 1% °

BRTITEBRENAAEZBDRE /AR
47,0007t (ZF— N4 : AR#1,674,000
TT)  RAFEAERSAHER

RERE

REBMAHBYTIERETRERL (BRE
Z)([VER ) RE—REBLELSTER
AR¥72,500,000t (ZE—LFE+=A
=+—H: AR¥72,500,0007T) K4
BEWDEARREARBFAERNSHE
E-R-_TE-_ZTF+-_A=+—H0 " fiE
RIEREN DA ERARE 133,352,000
T(ZZE—hhEFE+-_A=+—8 : AR%
100,579,0007T) * ZANF[E BB R 1B & g
RBAREWEHBARE32,773,00070 (==
—hF : AR¥6,949,0007T) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 #Z —ZF —FF+ - H=+—HIFFZ
24, INVENTORIES 4. 78
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—_ 7 —%F ﬂi igiﬂéﬁ
t=A=+-8| t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T ARET T
Raw materials E# %t 1,126,857 796,909
Work in progress = &K @ 193,666 154,988
Finished goods £k ¢h 4,462,548 4,194,065
5,783,071 5,145,962
25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25, %’L%Xi L {th FE U R IE R TR
AND PREPAYMENT IE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
t=A=t+-8| +=A=+-&

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTF T ARBTT

Current assets REIEE

Trade receivables & 5 fEWFIE 6,888,146 8,470,788
Less: allowance for expected credit loss ¥ : TBEI{= & E I8 B & (95,903) (112,485)
6,792,243 8,358,303
Bill receivables IR Z % 756,530 758,311
Loan receivables (Note) fEUs & 7k (FfsE) 164,998 116,184
Other receivables and prepayment £ b & W kI8 K T8 1~ 708
Value added tax and other tax receivables J& U 3% (& Fi K £ fE U i 18 92,948 72,670
Advance to suppliers 2 & 8 0 E 77,578 96,771
Interest receivables FEUFI & 54,277 30,693
Prepaid expenses TEt 5z 119,584 95,261
Utilities deposits and prepayment A = ¥ i7¢ KB A 75,561 30,714
Advances to employees g & 7B 68,701 34,349
Others Efih 9,605 36,428
498,254 396,886
Total trade and other receivables and prepayment
B 5 I E th & WK IE K AT ROB R 8,212,025 9,629,684
Note: The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month PitaE ARSI AR B R AR KN AU £ SRR
to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC. HRA—EAZ —FHEEFEREN -
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by FIEERIBERRXFHR,HEERE

collaterals. iR
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 5. EBESRHEMEBEWSIERTEN
AND PREPAYMENT (Continued) ;I (8])
The Group allows a credit period of average 90 days to its trade AEBRTEESEFFHIORNEE
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables H o LTFARBEHARENEER (EEH
net of allowance for credit loss presented based on the invoice B ETER B EEE) 2580 E 5 EWRIE
date at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the (HREEEERE) WRE DT

respective revenue recognition dates.

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—ECEF —E—hF
+=A=+—-8| +=ZA=+—H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBT T
Within 90 days 90KJAA 6,599,719 8,146,567
91 to 180 days 91 XZE 180k 191,585 208,686
Over 180 days 180K £ 939 3,050
6,792,243 8,358,303

The credit period of bill receivables is 90 to 180 days. Aging of bill FEREBNEEAIOE180K - R4

receivables based on the issue date at the end of the reporting HAREREITHNEKRERREROT ¢

period is as follows:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
=L i —F-NE
+=—BA=+—H +=ZA=+—8
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 90 days 90K A 647,049 713,304
91 to 180 days 91 XZE 180K 109,481 45,007
756,530 758,311
All bills received by the Group are with a maturity period of less AEBRMOAMERENEBHEARG DR

than one year. ik
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

26

AND PREPAYMENT (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB31,818,000 (31 December 2019: RMB59,643,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Nil (31 December 2019: Nil)
of the past due has been past due 90 days or more.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
and bill receivables for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 are set out in Note 36(b).

TIME DEPOSITS/PLEDGED BANK
DEPOSITS/SHORT TERM FIXED
DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

During the current year, the Group deposited RMB500,000,000
time deposits with several banks in the PRC. These time deposits
carry fixed interest rates ranging from 3.85% to 4.18% (31
December 2019: nil) per annum. The maturity period of these time
deposits is three years and are therefore classified as non-current
assets.

The Group pledged certain of its bank deposits to banks as
security for note payables and the pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interests of 1.35% (31 December 2019: 1.35%) per annum.

Short term fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from
1.92% to 3.15% (31 December 2019: 2.10% to 3.15%) per
annum. Short term fixed deposits have original maturity dates less
than one year and therefore classified as current assets.

Bank balances, which represent saving accounts and deposits,
carry interest at market saving rates at 0.30% (31 December
2019: 0.35%) per annum.

25

26

5K L ERREREN
MIE (&)
RZZBE-_ZEF+-_A=+—H ' £5£HE

BEoRWRELE#BIERBREBHE R
HHMBEmEAARMYS31,818,0007T
(ZE—NAFE+—A=+—8: AR¥
59,643,0007T) MEMBA - WE (ZE—1
F+ZA=+—8 : &)@ 8zIEE 0
Rak A E o

25 RAENRERE R ERRE T
—FER-F-AET-A=t-AL%
SRR AP SRR BT E36() -

EHEFER  SHEARTE
R RBERER S RIT
FBRREAE

RAFEHRE - AEBFAHKFENR
1TH E Bi7F A A R #500,000,0007T °
ZETHFEREEFMENF3.85%F
418% 2B (ZE—NF+=—A=+—8 :
/) ZETEHERIMHRA=F - AM
WA RIERBDEE °

AEBEE RRITERBES TRITERIERE
NEZEHEHRFR  BERFETTEREEF
MERB1.35% (ZE—NF+ZA=+—
H :1.35%) o

RHITE BT RIEN F1.92% % 3.15% 2 fH
—E-AF+=-A=+—H:2.10%=
3.15%) B E & F 52 o B AE 7
REEBALR—F  EmMESERREE
go

RITHEBRIERMEB RS RFR » 20.30% (=
T-hF+-A=1+—H :0.35%) Mm%
FEEFRENEFTE -
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group held certain
derivatives classified as held for trading and not under hedge
accounting as follows:

RMB’ 000
AR%TR

ATETMEEREE

RSB ﬁﬁl%ﬁ%:f:’\*ﬁ%%f/ﬁ
BEERAEHP S AREMNTET AN

7|

Liabilities
af&

31/12/2020 | 31/12/2019

—?—vq-: _:‘:_j-LE

RMB’000 |  RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTT | AR®TR [ ARETT

Foreign currency forward contracts #& EiSNE & 49 17,657 22,462 9,865 =
Foreign currency options contracts SN HitE & 49 3,650 4,607 96,805 1,430
Total £%8 21,307 27,069 106,670 1,430
Less: current portion i : BIEEE 4
Foreign currency forward contracts = Ei9NE & 49 17,657 8,808 5,083 =
Foreign currency options contracts 41 HitE & 49 3,650 4,607 96,805 1,430
21,307 13,415 101,888 1,430
Non-current portion 3B 54 - 13,654 4,782 =
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had entered into the
following foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currency
options contracts:

Foreign currency forward contracts

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency
forward contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the
Group’s foreign currency risk.

Receiving
currency

KEmER

Selling currency

BHE®

ATETMEEREE (A)

RZEBE_ZTF+_A=+—H  xEER

I ATERINES QO RIMNERES L

EHPESH

AEEEBRBEMRTIILETETLLA
REHNEHINESH - UWEBREBEHNHIN

PE LR

Maturity date
38R

Weighted average
forward exchange rate

T HEHEE

Contract Series W USD56,250,000 RMB384,157,125
BHRZRTIW 56,250,000 T AR¥384,157,1257C
Contract Series X RMB771,800,000 USD115,700,000
BHZTIX AR®771,800,0007C 115,700,000
Contract Series Y USD119,000,000 RMB786,547,000
BHZFIY 119,000,000% 75 AR#786,547,0007T
Contract Series Z USD10,000,000 RMB67,216,000
CLIEYVA 10,000,000% 7% AR¥67,216,0007T

Foreign currency options contracts

The Group entered into several USD/RMB foreign currency options
contracts with banks in the PRC in order to manage the Group’s
currency risk.

The Group is required to transact with the banks for designated
notional amount on each of the valuation dates specified within
the respective contracts (“Valuation Date”).

Semi-annually till USD:RMB
18 January 2023 from 6.68 to 6.99
FEHE ETRARE
“E=%-A+/\H 6.68%6.99
Semi-annually till USD:RMB
15 March 2021 from 6.58 t0 6.73
TEHE ETHARE
—E_—%=A+1H 6.58%6.73
Quarterly till USD:RMB
25 March 2021 from 6.57 to 6.64
REREE ETRARE
—E--F=H-t+HA 6.57£6.64
Quarterly till USD:RMB: 6.72
25 January 2021
BERE ETLRAREE.72
—E-—4%-A-t+hH
HEHEEN

AEEDBABEBRTRILE TETLA
REHIMNEHESLN  UEELAEBNE
R -

AEEERE A OF RO HERE (1
EEH) T LB BRRSRITET
%5 -
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27. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Foreign currency options contracts (Continued)

At each Valuation Date, the reference rate which represents
the spot rate as specified within the respective contracts shall
be compared against the strike rates (upper and lower)/barrier
rate as specified within the respective contracts, and the Group
may receive from/pay to the bank an amount as specified in the
contracts if certain conditions specified within the respective
contracts are met.

Extracts of details of foreign currency options contracts from the
respective contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2020 are as
follow:

Notional amount
EREH
USD’ 000

FET

21.

Strike/barrier rates

16/ PIEER

TEEMEEREE (H)

HNEHESH (F)

REMGERY  2EEX (BEEMNMIEE
MR EER) BEZEKMIEENITEER
(ERRTR),PIEERELER - BfEE
BERWMIETEE THRENEBRT - &K
BRI AR RITRER XN ZE A KIPTE
ENTHE -

NR-ZB-_FFE+_A=+—0  8BXF
BEEHMINERESHMFBHENT

Ending settlement date

BREHEBAHY

Contract A 30,000
BHA
Contract B 40,000
S4B
Contract C 40,000
EH#IC
Contract D 75,000
A4ID
Contract E 75,000
AHIE

The Group has entered certain derivative transactions that are
covered by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Master Agreements (‘ISDA Agreements”) signed with a bank.
These derivative instruments are not offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in
place with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amount.

USD:RMB at 1:6.4000
ELHARE 1:6.4000
USD:RMB at 1:7.1883
ETLHARE 1:7.1883
USD:RMB at 1:7.1882
FETLAARE +1:7.1882
USD:RMB at 1:7.1901
ELHARE 1:7.1901
USD:RMB at 1:7.1900
ETLHEARE 1:7.1900

26 April 2021
—E-—FWMA=+/<H
15 June 2021
2 —F,A+HEA
15 June 2021
T —%,A+HH
15 June 2021
—E-—F,A+AH
15 June 2021
—E-—FXA+HH

AEEDATLETIETARS - BiRTT
BRANBEBRERARTAETAG S A GH
(TER=R R TETAB G RG] TR
ZERS c ARBEREMRITETARE
mIpERE  BURERERRE &N
BEXWENBR TTEEHEE  BWAK
B B A3 & A 8E O FERR SIE BV OK T 98
BIBITHER - Hit 0 ZFOTET AL AR
FAEMBINRIRAEH -
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. B 5 R Hfth B FRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented NTARBEHRREREZANE ZER
based on the invoice date and note payables presented based on FIERERETHNENZRIRARR DT

the issue date at the end of reporting period.

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—BC2H —ZE-NF
+t=A=+—-B| t=ZA=+—H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETIT

Current liabilities F B & &
Trade payables & 5 &I 5/ IE

Within 90 days 90K AN 5,525,012 7,062,167
91 to 180 days 91 KXE180KX 829,036 963,569
Over 180 days 180K LA £ 495 3,509
Accrued purchases fE:TEREEZE 804,832 475,271
Total trade payables and accrued purchases & 5 B ZE & EFT R IB 28 4258 7,159,375 8,504,516
Note payables J& {22
Within 90 days 90K AR 1,022,991 1,021,415
91 to 180 days 91 KXE180k 312,985 100,621
1,335,976 1,122,036
Payables for purchase of property, plant and equipment
BEWME MBS LREEMNRE 182,910 278,461
Staff salaries and welfare payables 8 T %4 K18 | &~ Z0A 1,222,684 807,252
Labor outsourcing payables #7558 &1 5 IE 168,504 201,405
Payables for acquisition of patents 4z &% =2 5| fE{~t FE 45,651 42 068
Value added tax payables and other tax payables
JERHIE(E R S H A B IR 341,112 151,177
Commission payables &< 32,471 33,386
Interest payables &7 & 65,878 69,744
Rental and utilities payables B &R ARE=£EH 50,808 31,500
Others EAh 127,995 80,041
2,238,013 1,695,034
10,733,364 11,321,586

Non-current liabilities 3R B & &
Long term payables f= & &t 518
Payables for acquisition of patents Y& 2 %) f& < FUA 245,636 299,209
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28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(Continued)

The credit period on purchases of goods is up to 180 days (2019:
180 days) and the credit period for note payables is 90 days to
180 days (2019: 90 days to 180 days). The Group has financial
risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit time frame.

29. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Advance from customers & P i FIE

28. B 5 R H AL B FRE ()

29

ERRENEENRZ /180K (ZZE—N
F:180K) RENZEBNEEHRIOKRE
180K (ZZF—LF : 90 KE180K) o A
SECERVSRKRSIEER - AERA
BRENREREEBRASA -

BHAE

31/12/2020
—EoEE

—=—=

31/12/2019
—T-NEF
+=-—A=+—8
RMB’ 000
ARETTT

83,202

+=A=+-8

RMB’ 000
AR®T

131,191

The contract liability is the consideration received from the
customers which represents the Group’s remaining obligation
to transfer goods to customers. All the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the period have been realised to revenue in the
reporting period and no revenue recognised in the reporting period
from the performance obligations satisfied in previous periods.

30. BANK BORROWINGS

Unsecured 3 #

ENABRRARECDREPKIARE K
BIREFEBEMBEHHNRE - BIUH
IBERHBBHENBOEHTONEEH
MTEAK - WABIARER - BAHRE HHER
MIRAFR B EAEHELERNELD
&5 o

30.8RITEE

31/12/2020
—g-%%F

—_—=

31/12/2019
—ET-NEF
+=—A=+—8
RMB’ 000
ARETTT

+t=A=+-~8

RMB’000
ARBT

Guaranteed AR 1,381,243 700,000
Unguaranteed &R 689,368 418,572
2,070,611 1,118,572
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a0 /7= =
30. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 30. RITEE (&)
The exposure of the Group’s bank borrowings are as follows: REERBITEERROT
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
‘I'—H:‘I'—EI +=-A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARBTIT
Fixed-rate borrowings EEF| &R EE 1,124,500 418,572
Variable-rate borrowings 7] & | & (& & 946,111 700,000
2,070,611 1,118,572
The above bank borrowings are repayable within one year. FSRITEEAR —FANEE -
The range of effective interest rates per annum (which are equal to REBEBTEENERERNE (BEREL
contractual interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings are as FZ) S@BET -
follows:
31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—E-EF — N
+=B=+—R8| t=ZA=+—AH
Fixed-rate borrowings [&EF|EEE 2.96% 2.77%
Variable-rate borrowings ] & Fl| & {& & 0.85%-1.14% 3.26%-3.29%
The variable-rate borrowings as at 31 December 2020 are RZEZZF+-A=+—HHAZF X
denominated in USD which carry the floating-rates at London BELAETFE  HFHH R mIET
Inter-Bank Offer Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a premium. As at 31 REFEFE ([RBRTREFFEFE])
December 2019, the variable-rate borrowings are denominated ﬁﬂiﬁé{ﬁﬁg R-E—NF+_A=+—
in RMB which carry the floating-rates at Loan Prime Rate (‘LPR”) AENEREEAARKEE  HFH
minus basis points. ﬂr—e? ZERERFE ([ERERFE ) R
EEETE -
The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in currency NEEAEBESEEEREA éﬁ’% AN &
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities BEEMRITEEHIIET

are set out below:

31/12/2020
SE i
+=A=+-8

RMB’ 000
ARBT R

USD %7t 946,111

31/12/2019
—NE
+=-—A=+—8
RMB’ 000
AREFTT
418,572
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31. LEASE LIABILITIES NHEHEERE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
S8 L —z-nE
+=A=+-8| +=A=+-"

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBT T

Lease Liabilities payable: ENTHE & (& :

Within one year —F & 43,580 38,140

Within period of more than one year but not more than two years

HBiA—FENEBAMFNHEA 37,551 35,665

Within period of more than two years but not more than five years

B FE N ER T FHNERR 37,699 58,596

Within period of more than five years #2381 & 1) 2R A 21,649 28,205
140,479 160,606

Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 month shown under current liabilities

B OREIAE TSN 2@ A RNEE /R B FIE (43,580) (38,140)

Amount due for settlement after 12 month shown under non-current liabilities

FERBEE TSI 1218 B B &BEHI 96,899 122,466

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to FER N E & E A N4 F 538 E A FA R

lease liabilities range from 4.75% to 4.90% (2019: from 4.75% to NF475%%£4.90% 2H (ZF—NF :

4.90%). 4.75%%4.90% 2 ) °

32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED 2. HF®@mBE IEEWA
INCOME

2020 2019
—7—7q£ :%ﬁ—ﬂi

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T R ARBT T

Amounts credited to profit or loss during the year: AT ABZE L5 ¢
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

EEFRITBuE AL (M iFa) 59,954 42,988
Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

P78 B i 2 s (B atb) 16,037 7,275
Incentive subsidies (Note c) #&Eh#HEE (MifiEc) 65,819 62,885

141,810 113,148
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32. GOVERNMENT GRANTS/DEFERRED 2. BF®EE JEZEWA
INCOME (Continued) (%)

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
S e
+=A=+-8| +=A=t-H

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR AR®ETT

Deferred income related to government grants: BT B & EIEWA
Subsidies related to technology enhancement of production lines (Note a)

FEERRMBCEREL (fiiTa) 55,945 59,728

Subsidies related to research and development of technology projects (Note b)

FTIE B W BL (fistb) 21,605 24,272

Total 85T 77,550 84,000

Less: current portion & : ENEAER(D (8,695) (10,106)

Non-current portion FEENEA =817 68,855 73,894

Notes: P& -

(a) The Group received grants from the local government for the purpose (a) AEEESHHBRANMEEL - BB SGE
of increasing in production capacity for high-end handset lens sets AERIRRRIGTHRIRHEER 2528
by enhancement of production lines. The amounts are deferred and EEETRESENELESNBREEEDN
amortised over the useful lives of the relevant assets in the enhanced A R HA B S -

production lines.

(o) The Group received grants for reimbursement towards the costs of (o) AEEESM T BT RE @S T M -
research and development of certain technology projects with local LAt EBh B0 BT TH B B AN - 25 S5
government and various parties. The amounts are deferred and TEIRE N R S 70 I R 2% 18 B HRfE #8S -
amortised over period of the respective research and development
projects.

(c) Incentive subsidies were received from the local government in () HMABITRERBEENETAEERAE
recognition of the eminence of development of new products, Em  ENRABERERL OER -
achievement of certain revenue and export volume milestones of ZEMBRERERNBE TAEE RN
the Group. The subsidies were unconditional and granted on a LB R P B R AR o

discretionary basis to the Group and recognised in profit or loss when

received.
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33. BONDS PAYABLE 3. ERES
On 16 January 2018, the Company issued unsecured bonds in the RZZE—NF—A+H ' RNARIREE
amount of US$600 million at the rate of 3.75% which will be due BB FE)SHRAMEBRFINERREE
by 2023 to professional investors outside of the United States in BTN =T = =455, 2600,000,0003
accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. The T3 7S5EMERTES  RETERE
issuance has been completed on 23 January 2018 and the listing —NFE—AZ+=H=EK ' BEHFR=-Z
of the bonds in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange became effective —N\F—AZTEEEBREBE R LT °

on 24 January 2018.

The Company has used all of the net proceeds from the bonds for KA EREFMESREZ2EFRIER
funding capital expenditures, fulfilling working capital requirements, EARTYES  WEEEESTK BB
refinancing existing indebtedness and other general corporate BEEERE RAMN—RARAE -
puUrposes.
During the current year, interest expense of approximately RAFEHME @ “HARK164,282,0007T
RMB164,282,000 (2019: RMB163,938,000) was recognised in —Z-hF : AR¥163,938,007T) A7
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive BERAYREGEEEREMEEKERFE
income. o

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, B ZX

Number

of shares Amount Equivalent to

BHEE =8 BER

HK$’ 000 RMB’ 000
THAT ARBTT

Authorised: JETE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2020
R-Z—hF+_A=+—BR-_ZT_ZTF
TZA=+—REREE10BTH L&A 100,000,000,000 10,000,000

Issued & fully paid: BT R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2020
RZBE-hFE+-_A=+—AKR-_ZT-TF
TZA=+—BE8REE010BTH LB 1,096,849,700 109,685 105,163
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35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in Note 30 and bonds
payable disclosed in Note 33, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts or the
repayment of existing debts.

35. 7K A

b2 E

BEEREER  UHBERAKEETE

IHERLE - RSRBELERRE
C BRBREKREAL - AEEH
B% B2 FAER

E Bk #E B
e R W

%ﬁﬁﬁl

AEBMEARREHAEFE (BEAME
S0 HERRITEE RARMFEISHKRED
EER (MKRRERREEEER)) &
RATIRREGER (BREEBRTRAE R
BEF R EMEE) AKX -

ARBAEZEYFRT —RELRRE - £
RBAN—ED - RRAREFTEBEAK
AREZEBRERHERR - REARAES
MEZ  AREREBMNRE - BITH
P R B A7 8 1) DA B2 3% 1 %ﬂfﬁﬂaﬁfﬁﬁfﬁ
BRFERERBENREE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS %.€@mIT A
a. Categories of financial instruments a. eRMITESE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
i —TNF
t=A=+—-B| T=A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARETTT

Financial assets & Fi& &

Financial assets at FVTPL AR Bt ABEZR S RE E 8,686,422 5,847,955
Derivative financial assets $T4 4 @& &E 21,307 27,069
Financial assets at amortised cost Z#k 45k At &/ B E & 11,410,602 11,321,982
Equity instruments at FVTOCI {2 A R Bt AR 2 E W mafEm TH 134,609 112,183
20,252,940 17,309,189
Financial liabilities % &t B (&
Liabilities measured at amortised cost &k sk AT 2R B (& 14,415,363 15,267,837
Derivative financial liabilities $74 4 &l & (& 106,670 1,430
14,522,033 15,269,267

Lease liabilities FAE & & 140,479 160,606
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T E (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s financial instruments include derivative financial
assets/liabilities, trade and other receivables, amounts with
related parties, financial assets at FVTPL, debt instruments at
amortised cost, equity instruments at FVTOCI, time deposits,
short term fixed deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, lease liabilities,
bank borrowings, long term payables and bonds payable.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
of foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Market risk exposures are further measured by sensitivity
analysis. Details of each type of market risks are described as
follows:

Foreign currency risk

The Group undertakes certain foreign currency sales and
purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
Certain of the Group’s bank balances and cash, trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables, bonds payable
and bank borrowings are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities and
expose to such foreign currency risk. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates and utilising foreign currency
forward contracts and foreign currency option contracts.

b. M¥EREEBERBE

FEENERIABRETESRE
E/AE B REMERZE -
HBEBEALZHANKE HanE
FRFABENESREE BB HERA
EMEBTLA BRAAREBEFAEME
MW s ER TR  EHEFER - BB
EHFER - BERMBITENR - RITE
#mhkRe BHREMEMNRE B
EafE RIEE REENMKER
ERES - @R TANFBHNIAM
iz - Bt SR T AMBNERE
EmiSE R (HMNERR - F RE R &
HiERER) EERRRRBE
TR o RE L F R A BRI R
TX EREAEEEREZNLER
% ERKEARURIEE 1A °

m SRR

RSB TS E R X 25 ARSI
ERR - FEERIEEBERRR -
miZREBRE - FTREFESNAE -
AT RZEMSRARNFES

SMNEEBR

AEBETETIHIEEE  AMEY
SMNER R o NEEE TRITHERRLEA
T EBIRHEMERFE BEZRHE
R RIE - BRNEFARRITEER
HUHBEEEERNEEEAINNE
KFHERYERERIMNERR - KK
Bl S E R F LA ELINE
BHIRINEHIEAS QA EIRINER KR
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued) mERE (&)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) SMNER [ (A2

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currencies AT AREBERREHRAINESE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the BEEEEREEAEHNEREEE

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
&f&

2020 2019 2020 2019

BB | Z2-NF| ZBZBF| ZZ2—NF
RMB?’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARETT | ARETT| ARETR | ARETR

USD %7t 3,888,114 2,292,831 6,821,730 7,194,353
HKD 7T 59,963 71,517 1,150 -
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) BT 39,923 106,683 394,580 407,948
Indian Rupee (“INR”) ElZ & tt, 365,975 164,868 9,226 19,708
Vietnamese Dong (‘VND”) #iF & 5,247 36,005 7,766 14,936
Sensitivity analysis BURRZE T
The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in USD, HKD, JPY, AEEMEZREAKRKEET BT
INR and VND against RMB. Arx - HEEXRBEERLAREDN
[ SR B o
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% TERFMAEERSIELARKE
(2019: 5%) change in respective foreign currencies against ./ BRES% (ZFE—NF : 5%) M
RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign BRE - WRESNMERBERRGEE
currencies denominated monetary items and adjusts their WINEHBEERKIER URB@EKRE
translation at the year end date for a 5% change in foreign [R5 45 H [ =425 5% M {E H A2 o

currency rates.

A positive (negative) number below indicates an increase THEH (BE) REREWEER K HE
(decrease) in post-tax profit where the respective functional 28 SN FHE 5% 1T 28 B8 Bk 18 0 1) 28 0
currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant foreign (B2 IBR - e EEEIERE
currencies. For a 5% weakening of the respective functional KEZ(ES5% - Bl EREE RN E S8
currencies against the relevant currencies, there would be an EREE -

equal and opposite impact on the post-tax profit.
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

USD (Note) £t (FffzE)
HKD 77t

JPY BT

INR ENEE L

VND /&

MEEEREEERRBEK (&)

misER (8)

HREE W (&)

Profit for the year

F iRl
2020 2019
—¥-%F —TNF
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARKFIT
124,679 208,315
(2,500) (3,039)
15,073 12,804
(15,162) (6,169)
107 (895)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure to bank balances,
outstanding receivables, outstanding payables, bank
borrowings and bonds payable denominated in foreign
currency of USD at the year end date.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see Note 30 for details of these
bank borrowings), lease liabilities (see Note 31 for details
of lease liabilities), time deposits, short term fixed deposits
and pledged bank deposits (see Note 26 for details of these
deposits), debt instruments (see Notes 22 and 23 for details
of these debt instruments) and bonds payable (see Note 33
for details of the bonds payable). The Group currently does
not have interest rate hedging policy. However, the Group
monitors interest rate exposures and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposures should the need arise.

et - E2RRBNFHHERAINEETTF
ERRITHER  REERKIR -
REERMNZIEA  |RITEERER
RFFRER

AEBEHAEBEEMNEBTEE (ZFRT
BEFBERNZES0)  HEaE(HE
BEFBRMES) EHER - 28
EHERREEFRITER (ZEFK
FERWE26) BB LA (ZSEH
TEFHBERMF22K%23) AR EME
5 (EREHFFIBRMEIS) MERA
AEMNERR - ANEEBINLBEM
FIRERHR - AT - NEBGEE
MERBRIeTEREREERHFE
AAEER o
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and bank borrowings
(see Note 30 for details of these bank borrowings). The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances and
the LIBOR arising from the Group’s bank borrowings. The
management will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed
and floating rates and ensure they are within reasonable
range.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks
is being undertaken globally, including the replacement of
some interbank offered rates (‘IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. As listed in note 30, several of the Group’s
LIBOR to specify bank loans may be subject to the interest
rate benchmark reform. The Group is closely monitoring the
transition to new benchmark interest rates.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities and lease liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note.

misER (8)

FE (&

NE B N E ] & K RIT A R ERTT
BB (ZFRITEEFBRWZES0) M
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ERZFBMEOEE LA ERELE
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. 50 basis points (2019:
50 basis points) increase or decrease in variable-rate bank
borrowings and fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTPL are
used represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have decreased/increased by RMB4,331,000
(2019: RMB3,335,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings and fixed-rate debt instruments at FVTPL.

b.

MEEEREEERRBEK (&)

s ER (&)

ATHREDI IR EBEREHRITE
TAMKITETANNXEARERE -
ZOMIBRNBEHRREENS
BMIEEZFHREENRR - AJ &
MERITEERRAABEFABED
& T A A5 75 T B8 H0 sk s D 50 fE &
R (ZT— N5 : SOEAE%ER) AKX
RREEBHNEMEEABEELH
At fd e

WA EIE I R ADS0EEES (ZF
—NEF : SOAE%ER) BEMFEZE
RETE  AEBEREE_T_TF
T A=+ HLFENRBE5EF
m A i A R 4,331,000t (=
Z—N%F : AR%3,385,0000T) @ E
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)

policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
investments in unlisted financial products, fund, debt
instruments and equity investments as financial assets at
FVTPL, the foreign currency forward contracts and foreign
currency option contracts. The management considers
alternative tools to mitigate other price risk and manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. In addition, the Group also invested in certain
unquoted equity securities for investees operating in several
industry sectors for long term strategic purposes which had
been designed as FVTOCI. The management closely monitors
such exposure and consider hedging such exposure should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to the price risk at the reporting date. For the
sensitivity analysis of those financial assets at FVTPL, increase
(decrease) in the prices of the respective financial assets
would result in an increase (decrease) the post-tax profit
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Sensitivity analyses
for unquoted equity securities at FVTOCI with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 3 were disclosed in
Note 36(c).

If the prices of those financial assets at FVTPL had been 5%
(2019: 5%) higher/lower, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
RMB369,173,000 (2019: RMB248,538,000).
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment assessment
under ECL model on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risks on liquid funds and derivative financial assets
are limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group has
concentration of credit risk on its unlisted financial products at
FVTPL. The credit risk on unlisted financial products at FVTPL
is limited by the underlying assets invested by the unlisted
financial products being the PRC government related debt
instruments and treasury notes and the counterparties who
issued these unlisted financial products are banks with good
reputations.

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as 28% (2019: 31%)
and 51% (2019: 66%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively. Revenue from the top five trade
debtors represent over 56% (2019: 58%) of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The directors
of the Company, the associates and the shareholders have no
interest in the customers mentioned above. The largest five
customers’ manufacturing facilities are located in the PRC and
their principal activities are manufacturing of smartphones and
optical related products.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk on its deposits
for acquisition of property, plant and equipment as 61%
(2019: 42%) of the total deposits for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment was paid to the Group’s largest three
suppliers of property, plant and equipment. The credit risk
on the deposits paid is limited as these suppliers are large
construction enterprises and equipment suppliers in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Japan.

Other than the above, the Group has no other significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers.

EERRFRERTE (&)

BRRETEETRRITHRITEREN
NBESGFEEESERRERN - A&
ESEEEETRERK  TEAEEE
%%E%%E$~?ﬁ§ﬁ@ﬁ£k
BEDAE28% (ZF—NF : 31%)
&51%<_$44v$ 66%) ° 2K B Al
FAREBZBEHBANRAGHEZE=T=
TEF+_A=+—HALEFEREEK
A#56% (ZZT—NF : 58%) ° AR
AEE BMBARRRERLMERS
WETMEZR I RAATPHNEER
MEARFE HFEEKARETE
FHEABIEBEER

REERABEYE BRERIZENR
eMAZEESETRRE  SEAEER
BRI = AYE - BRRZEHHER
TNEBEME HWERRJBEZEESD
61% (ZZT—NF : 42%) - BEF &S
WEERBRAER  BAZSHERAR
FE - BERARHABERELER
R ER o

B EX At &SN AREA EEME
AREEETER  TEREERRITS
HREZ2HFAREEZF -



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HmRNE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T E (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. ¥AEREEEERBEK (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERR KRERS (&)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises REBENANSEEFRTHREUT
the following categories: Hhl

Internal credit rating Description Trade receivables Other financial assets

AEEE R

i

B 7 B IR

HttEWEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
(K2 B default and does not have any credit-impaired 12{8 B ESEEEE
past-due amounts ZHEREEEBE -
HFTMEORRE - BEEMA EEERE
BHIRIE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL-not 12m ECL
BRYE dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired 128 AFEHEEERE
ERALERIBEREN  BRE 2HBRHEEEE -
REH B8 &5 EEERE
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL-not Lifetime ECL-not
THEER in credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed ZHEHEEEBE - ZHEHEEESE -
internally or external resources EEERE BEERE
B &N INBERE M E KA S
HERIAK - EERRARE L7
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL-credit- Lifetime ECL-credit-
BB asset is credit-impaired impaired impaired
BRBTEELRGEENE FHREEEEE - FHRBEERE -
= ERE EERIE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off
e debtor is in severe financial FEC M FEEE M S

difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

ZF%@%HQ@KM?@?E%%%
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRXRE S (8)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFAFVNAEBEZBREMEEEE
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to ECL TENEeREENMEERNEERR
assessment:

External | Internal 2020 2019
credit credit | 12-month or Gross Carrying Gross Carrying
rating { lifetime ECL amount amount

44 LE o = 5 %

REFAR | FEFR | 2HEADFEFR BREE

AR
RMB’000 | RMB’000 | RM RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR BIT | ARBTR

Financial assets at amortised cost

RBHRAGTENEREE
Trade receivables 25 N/A Note b  Lifetime ECL 6,798,858 8,375,781
B SRR TR Biztb  (provision matrix)
FHRBEEER
(BBER)

Loss  Credit-impaired 89,288 6,888,146 95,007 8,470,788

Bl HEGERE
Loan receivables 25 N/A Notec  12m ECL 164,998 164,998 116,184 116,184
R ET TR Mize 12ARHEESSE
Bill receivables 25 N/A Notea  12m ECL 756,530 756,530 758,311 758,311
[ERER TR Mia 12ABHEESS
Other receivables 25 N/A Notea 12m ECL 63,882 63,882 67,121 67,121
At IR TR Mia 12ABHEESS
Debt instruments at amortised cost 22 BB- N/A - 12m ECL 52,823 52,823 83,711 83,711
RRENATENER LA BB- TER  12EARSEESS
Time deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 500,000 500,000 - -
EAER AA+ TEA  12EARSEESS
Short term fixed deposits 26 AA+ N/A  12m ECL 234,917 234,917 15,000 15,000
RHESER AA+ TEA  12EARSEESS
Pledged bank deposits 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 3,438 3,438 6,113 6,113
BHEABRTER AA+ TER  12EARSEESS
Bank balances and cash 26 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 2,841,771 2,841,771 1917239 1,917,239

RTGREAS AA+ TER  12EARBEEER
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. AR EEEZERBER (&)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EER R &R ERS (8)
Notes: Pt EE -
a. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group a. HRAABEERMBREEMNEHN K%

uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

ERABMERFEEERRE NS
HERRIAZRE B AIE LT -

Not past due/

No fixed
repayment
Past due term Total
mmg
HHRE EEEBRRH wEm
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T ARET T
Bill receivables B Z 1 - 756,530 756,530
Other receivables i f& W5k 18 - 63,882 63,882
- 820,412 820,412

Past due

BHEAFIA
RMB’ 000
AREFTT

Not past due/
No fixed
repayment

RMB’ 000
ARBTIT

Bill receivables & Z# = 758,311 758,311
Other receivables Hth fE W FIE = 67,121 67,121
- 825,432 825,432

b. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified b.
approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime
ECL. Except for debtors with credit-impaired, the Group
determines the ECL on these items by using a provision matrix,
grouped by debtor’s aging.

c. The Group provides fixed-rate loans with a term from one month ©x
to one year to local individuals and small enterprises in the PRC.
All loans are either backed by guarantees and/or secured by
collaterals. The credit risk of loan receivables is low.

REZEWHKENE  AREERT
BRI EHMEERF R E TR
AEXHEHRERERMNERRE -
BRHEREERENEBEAIN  AEE
ERBHEEMNE (REBARKSHE) E
EZEFRANAREEES -

AN 65 A R B O B N BU B R ER
HEARAS—EAZ-—FHNEENXE
K MEERLBERZFHR A
BERER - BREFNEERBRTS
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, except for the
debtors with credit-impaired the Group uses debtors’ aging
to assess the impairment for its customers which are with
common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with
the contractual terms. The following table provides information
about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade
receivables which are assessed collectively based on provision
Debtors with
credit-impaired with gross carrying amount of RMB89,288,000
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB95,007,000) were
assessed individually.

matrix with lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

Fa = by E T e ES:

—FFES—A=1—HIFE

6. LRTH (&)
BRERETERERBE (F)

EERBR KRET G (8)

EBAEEEZERBREEN—IMH
B IR = B E R BN GRIESN - K&
BEFEAEEANRRIGETFEOR
B AzEEFesEAHARRRE
B(RBEFPBRES OGRS EE
HRIEREE ) - TRIBHEBEER
MEERRRENEHEMENZHE
HEEEE (BEERE) AEHEE
FEME SR FIENEREEER
méﬂ RZEZTF+_A=+—

BRI E A AR #89,288,0007T
T—h4F : AR¥95,007,0007T)
m:ﬁmﬁﬁ$Aw¢ﬁjHﬁ

Average Gross carrying | Impairment loss

loss rate amount allowance

FHER=E AEREE BEBRRE

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR®T T ARBT T

1 -90 days 1£90:X 0.01% 6,600,315 596
91 — 120 days 91 £120K 0.20% 177,932 363
121 — 180 days 121 = 180X 0.78% 14,126 110
More than 180 days 180K LA & 85.52% 6,485 5,546
6,798,858 6,615
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Average

loss rate
TR

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

EE R KR ERh (&)
Gross carrying Impairment loss
allowance
BB B 15 B
RMB’ 000
AREFTT

amount
RAREE
RMB’ 000
ARETT

1 - 90 days 1E90k 0.01% 8,147,073 506
91 — 120 days 91120k 1.64% 192,506 3,165
121 — 180 days 1212180k 1.47% 19,634 289
More than 180 days 180 KA £ 81.59% 16,568 13,518

8,375,781 17,478

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
reversed RMB6,499,000, which was net off recognition of
RMB6,603,000 (2019: reversal of RMB4,249,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the provision
matrix and reversed RMB5,719,000 (2019: recognition of
RMB1,432,000) impairment allowance for credit impaired
debtors, respectively.

R BEXDEREFEANENS S
AHELBRENXRERMNH B
EHRAHLE I MERFRIEIEER
#ETRHE - D EBEEEEE BRT
NHEREBREESANERERZ
RATH]

HE_Z2_2£F+_A=+—H1
FE AEEBERBEEBERN
BRIERAREK6,603,000TH AR
6,499,000 (ZZE—NF : BEAR
#4,249,0007T) M EWRE 5 FIBRE
B WHEE ARKS5,719,0007T (=
T—NF - BRAK®1,432,0007T)
Mz EREES AR ERE -
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRXRE S (8)
TREIERBGESETHERNE S
EWSRIEEBEREESEES -

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified

approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
ZHENEERE | 2HEHGERSR
(BEERE) (HREERME)
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTTT AR¥BTTT ARBTT
As at 1 January 2019 R—Z—hFE—HF—H 8,011 93,575 101,586
Changes due to financial assets recognised
at 1 January 2019:
AR—ZE-NF—HA - ABRNEHEENES :
— Impairment losses recognised
— ERREEIE - 1,432 1,432
— Impairment losses reversed
— BERERSE (4,249) = (4,249)
New financial assets originated &4 & f & &= 13,716 = 13,716
As at 31 December 2019
R=B-AF+=A=+—8H 17,478 95,007 112,485
Changes due to financial assets recognised
at 1 January 2020:
AR—Z_ZF-HA - BEBIANCHEENED :
— Transfer to credit-impaired
- BREEERE (4,364) 4,364 -
— Impairment losses reversed
— HRREEE (13,102) (5,719) (18,821)
— Write-offs
— hi s - (4,364) (4,364)
New financial assets originated &4 ¥4 &l & &= 6,603 - 6,603
As at 31 December 2020
R-ZB-BHF+-A=+—H 6,615 89,288 95,903
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that debtors is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtors has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.

Liquidity risk

The Group has net current assets amounting to approximately
RMB12,218,409,000 at 31 December 2020 (31 December
2019: RMB9,815,555,000) and has low exposure to liquidity
risk of being unable to raise sufficient funds to meet its
financial obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period from the year end
date to their maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based
on floating interest rate or exchange rates (where applicable)
prevailing at the year end date.

b. M¥EMREEBERBE (&)

EERR KR ERE (B)

AEEREEHBREBARR
S 75 IR R % S U 1) R R R A S
i HE% 1R & 5 e UGROR (40 EM%JT“}\
ERERHCEARERTR)

H*m 5@”
s |

MEVE SRR

AREEBR-ZZT_TEF+=A=+—
Elﬂﬁxﬁibéi*@ﬁiﬁ}\ﬁ’%
12,218,409,000L (ZE—NF+=
A=+—H : AK%9,815,555,000
7o) IEAREEEEEHERIEERH
CRIBENRBESRREER

REBRBESEAR  AEEEER
HPREEERRENNR MRS E
BEE - ﬁﬁf?$¢lﬁ’]“‘$’éf$&iﬁﬁi
KEERETBENTE -

TREJIENFLRBEZINHEBOFER
HREZEEHEI AN AEECRE
BERMAFREENTLESRBEND
e REFABEBESB|AENFRAN
FEARFER (ER) HARKIRE
HWREME °
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36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MEREEBZREEER (E)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEERER (B&)
Liquidity tables BB FK

Weighted
average | Ondemand Total

effective | orless than 3 months 1 year to 5years to | undiscounted Carrying

interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount
T L

LUk AR | =EAZ-5 | -5ERF | EFETE | AEBEE REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTR | ARMTR | AR®TR | ARMTR | ARETR | ARMT:

As at 31 December 2000 ¥ =E-F4F+-F=F-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £ & E

Trade and other payables & 5 R E e 1508 7,008,065 1,188,167 - - 8,196,232 8,196,232
Amounts due to related parties [EftEE A L3R 5,560 1,436 - - 6,996 6,996
Bank borrowings - fixed rate $i{7{E & — BT F|% 2.96% 24,611 1,120,635 - - 1,145,246 1,124,500
Bank borrowings - variable rate R/7fEE — ATEF|% 0.95% - 950,025 - - 950,025 946,111
Bonds payable [EfS &5 4,00% 73,405 73,405 4,135,155 - 4,281,965 3,895,888
Long term payables & &8 2.21% - - 257,117 - 257,117 245,636
7,111,641 3,333,668 4,392,072 - 14837581 14415363
Lease liabilities €& & 4.80% 12,329 36,758 83,745 23,119 155,951 140,479
Derivative financial liabilities - net sttled
fTELMAE - FELE
Foreign currency options contracts SNEZEA 4) 11,034 87,420 - - 98,454 96,805
Foreign currency forward contracts JMEEHA4) 3,562 1,569 5,136 - 10,267 9,865

Total &5t 7,138,566 3,459,415 4,481,153 2119  15102,253 14,662,512
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. MkEREEBZERBER (E)
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEEERER (B&)
Liguidity tables (Continued) B EL K (&)

Weighted
average | On demand Total
effective or less than 3 months 1year to Syearsto | undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 5 years 10 years amount amount

T &%

ZEAR | ZEAZ-F | -%E0fF | RFETE | ANRER R
RMB'OOO |  RMB'0OO |  RMB'OCO [  RMB'OOD [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARETR | ARMTL | ARBTR | ARMTR | ARBTR | ARMTR

As at 31 December 2019 K= E- 1= F=F-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 £ & E

Trade and other payables & 5 & & (38 9,686,484 - - - 9,686,484 9,686,484
Amounts due to related parties [EfS B A L3R 7,498 = = = 7498 7498
Bank borrowings - fixed rate {715 — BT 7% 2.77% - 424,311 - - 424,311 418,572
Bank borrowings - variable rate $f{TEE — A2F|X 3.28% - 718,855 - - 718,855 700,000
Bonds payable fEff &% 4,00% 78482 78482 627,85 3950276 4735006 4156074
Long term payables & 3t 2.27% - - 210,831 105,416 316,247 299,209

9,772,464 1,221,648 838,687 4,005,692 15,888,491 15,267,837

Lease liabilities &R & 4.80% 9,649 35,148 105,932 30,842 181,671 160,606

Derivative financial liabilities - net settled
fTEsRAE - F8EE

Foreign currency options contracts ShE &A% - 1430 = = 1430 1430
Total &3t 9,782,113 1,258,226 944,619 4,086,534 16071492 15429873
The amounts included above for variable interest rate i A S| R F B B RS HREED
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject MEMEFTENR @ B L IEPTE S B
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from BEMNAENETASREBE 228 -

the estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. EMIAEMAAREE
instruments
This note provides information about how the Group KK FIR A RS E A E R
determines fair values of various financial assets and financial cRHEENEREEAARENELR -
liabilities.
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RRARESZRAE  EHEEHBEmET
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured HEHEKN AT ENEREER SR A
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BEMRmMEREQAAREES °

approximate their fair values.

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities AR M EL R 7 (E5T B 6K FEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis EHEERZHE EH T E

Fair value Valuation technique

Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs

tREE/ AR RATRBHALE MRESR REERTEAALE

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
“BCEE+CASt-B | ZE-AEtZR=1-A

Financial assets at fair value through Listed debt instruments: Listed debt instruments: Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
profit or loss RMBT72,884,000 RMBB84,568,000
BAREHARRNEREAE IHBEHIA: FHRHBIA: F—& HRMISH IS RE
AR¥72,884,0007 AE#84,568,0007C
Financial assets at fair value through Funds investments: Funds investments: Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or loss RMB282,711,000 RMB373,638,000

Key inputs are:

(1) Expected yields of debt instruments
invested by banks

() Adiscount rate that reflects the credit

risk of the banks
BARESABRNERERE EeRE: EeRE: EZ8 FRRens
AR%282,711,0007 AR#373,638,0007
FERARE

(1) BITREREIANESNE
0 RBEGEERBHHRE
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial

liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Continued)

Financial assets/liabilities

tHEE/ A

Fair value as at

RUATEEHAAE

31 December 2020
ZECEE+CA=1-H

31 December 2019
“®-AFtZR=t-A

c. TRMTAMNDAERE (H)

BEEEEEA LA BB EE
EHEEREHBEEMAE (B)

Fair value
hierarchy

EE

Valuation technique
and key inputs
REEREEAANE

Foreign currency forward contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current and non-current Level 2 Discounted cash flows
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB17,657,000 derivative financial
assets and liabilities assets: RMB22,462,000 Key inputs:
Current and non-current (1) Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
derivative financial risk of the banks
liabilities: RMBY,865,000 () Forward exchange rate
PERITESRARERARN RETESREE - TORERBTERREE: FR ERRERE
ERNESH AR¥%17,657,0007 AR#22,462,0007
TERAE:
THRFRBTEEREE - (1) RBEGEERRNERE
AFR%9,865,0007 (0 EHEX
Financial assets at fair value through Unlisted financial products;  Unlisted financial products: ~ Level 2 Discounted cash flows
profit or loss RMBB8, 197,475,000 RMB5,289,170,000
Key inputs are:
(1) Expected yields of debt instruments
invested by banks
() Adiscount rate that reflects the credit
risk of the banks
BARB A RGNS HEE FEmeREm FrmefED F_8 EEBens
ARH8,197,475,00075 AR#5,289,170,0007C
TEQANE:

(1) BOREERIANESLE
@ RRETEERRHRER
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TRTEMNDAAREE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial A E B EL N EGTER A EE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis THEERLHEENE (E)
(Continued)
Fair value Valuation technique
Financial assets/liabilities Fair value as at hierarchy and key inputs
SREE/8f RATABNAALE MAEER HEEREERALE
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
—7—'\'$+ E -I- H :E—jlq:-‘I':ﬁE‘I'—H
Foreign currency options contracts Current derivative financial ~ Current derivative financial ~ Level 3 Black-scholes model
classified as derivatives financial assets: RMB3,650,000 assets: RMB4,607,000
assets and liabilities Key unobservable inputs:
Current derivative financial  Current derivative financial Volatility of the foreign exchange rate (Note a)
liabilities: RMB96,805,000  liabilities: RMB1,430,000
AERITEEREEREEN RETESREE - RETESREE : £=8 0% - SRR
HNESERN AR%3,650,00070 AR%4,607,0007
o o IETTERGAHE -
mafEeRAR nATERRALR : ERHE (M)
AF%96,805,0007 ARH1,430,0007
Unlisted equity investments Equity instruments at Equity instruments at Level 3 Market approach

FVTOCI: RMB134,609,000  FVTOCI: RMB112,183,000
Key unobservable inputs:

Equity investments at Equity investments at (1) Revenue growth rate
FVTPL: RMB133,352,000 FVTPL: RMB100,579,000 () P/Smultiples of selected comparable
companies (Note b)
FEmRERE BAABIALMRE BAREAEMZE E=R [V
BamERTA haEfERTE -
AR%134,609,0007C AR#112,183,0007C TERAREBALE
(1) BAERE
BAR B ABRA NN EE N =t )
ﬂ&;@g}gﬁ: RERS : (2) BETELBRARMNMHEEES (Fb)
AR%133,352,0007C AR%100,579,0007C
Note a: The higher the volatility of the foreign exchange rate, the fizta : EXAUKE) @ AAERAS °
higher the fair value.
Note b: The higher the revenue growth rate, the higher the fair value. MizEb : WARRXDS  AAERS °
The higher the P/S multiples, the higher the fair value. MEREE  AAEAS -
There is no transfer among level 1, 2 and 3 during the year. FAE— ZREBE=R 2 HEIWEE

%%770
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 36. €@ T B (4&)

c. Fair value measurements of financial c. TRITEMNDAREE (&)
instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of financial A EME =R B E SR

assets

Foreign

currency

options
contracts FVTOCI FVTPL Total

SNE D RERTA BARME
EAH |Htt 2w st AR #E
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBETIT | ARBTI| ARBTI | ARETT

At 1 January 2019 R=ZF—NF—H—H (344) 106,583 77,880 184,119
Total gains (losses) Wzs (518 ) 42758 2,965 = 6,949 9,914
—in profit or loss — A8z 2,965 - 6,949 9,914
— in other comprehensive expense
—REMEERX - - - -
Purchases & & 212 5,600 15,750 21,562
Settlements % & 344 - - 344
At 31 December 2019
RZE—hNFE+=_A=+—8 3,177 112,183 100,579 215,939
At 1 January 2020 R =—Z=—FF—H—H 3,177 112,183 100,579 215,939
Total gains (loss) Yzt (E518) 4258 (93,155) 22,326 32,773 (38,056)
— in profit or loss— KB (93,155) - 32,773 (60,382)
— in other comprehensive expense
—REMEERX - 22,326 - 22,326
Purchases BB E - 100 - 100
Settlements & & (8,177) - - (8,177)

At 31 December 2020
RZEZZEF+_A=+—H (93,155) 134,609 133,352 174,806
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 &2 —F = F 41+ =-HA=1+—HIFFF

37. COMMITMENTS 37. HIE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
__‘,__‘,ﬂi iaiéijlfﬁ
+=B=t+-8| +=A=+-"

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET ARETT

Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of property,
plant and equipment contracted for but not provided
in the consolidated financial statements

ERTHNERREAMBRREENBRAKENSE -

R RENE AR 356,008 953,200
38. OPERATING LEASES 8. REHE
The Group as lessor AEBFEBLHEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has contracted with RMEBHR  AEBEEHR T ARKER

tenants for the following future minimum lease payments: ER A AGTA -

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

+—H:+—EI +=HA=+—8

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T ARETIT

Within one year —F A 1,942 2,650

In the second year 5 — 4 1,186 1,998

In the third year 55 =4 1,199 1,446

In the fourth year 25 PU4F 1,225 1,156

In the fifth year 5 A4 1,225 1,182

After five years L LATE 2,239 3,237

9,016 11,669
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 30. R KBTS

Retirement benefit scheme contribution made during the year
F AR IRRE N ET B R

2020 2019
—z-%5 —F-nEF
RMB’ 000

AREBFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

219,621 191,244

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (‘the MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000 for the Group’s
Hong Kong employees. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. For employees who are members of the MPF Scheme,
the Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
subject to a maximum of approximately RMB1,320 (equivalent
to HK$1,500) per month, which contribution is matched by the
employee.

AEETENBARNERD 2 MK
FREENBEREEERENGTE - ZFMH
BARABHEKRARLSER D LAR
TRE R RREAE B - REBRNZ
Rl Uil el iites

TR

AEBNAEARERESN=ZZETZTF+=
AR RS M A TES 581G FI 3% 3 K58 Fl
NESFE ([BEEFTE]) - BRESETE
MEEBYRAEEBEE FTHRRBEET
ABEBNES - ANEBIRH BAEESTE
Bk B ®{E B 2 HE B H & A A 5% Mz AT 2
K EBRAETRHARE1,320T (FHER
1,500 7T) © MEE M EHEREEHK -
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40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES HNRETHELENEBHIER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRANEEREGHELANBEETF
from financing activities, including both the cash and non-cash B PERERIRCED BRESTDE
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for ENBEEDNREEMNENFRRSTER
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be classified in REEGERERERRDEARETE
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows HETENEE -

from financing activities.

Bank Interest Bonds Dividend Lease Other

borrowings payables payable payables liabilities payables
(Note 30) (Note 28) (Note 33) (Note 31)
#iTRE ERAIE EfRS HEaR

(Wiso) |  (Witos) | (W&33) | BARE [ (WES1) | ReEARE B8
RMB'000 |  RMB'O00 | RMB'00 [ RWB'O00 |  RMB'000 [  RMB'000 |  RMB'000
ARRTR | ARMTR | ARMTR | ARETR | ARETR

At 1 January 2019 =51 E—B—H 1,482,405 70,062 4,079,983 - 131,217 - 5,763,667
Financing cash flows B &R 2172 (381,776) (239,531) - (623,501) (46,988) (170,205)  (1,462,051)
New leases entered £]12 111 & - - - - 94,912 - 94,912
Termination of lease # | § - - - - (25,489) - (25,489)
Interest on lease liability FE & 78 - - - - 6,954 - 6,954
Interests on bank borrowings /7 E71& - 71,451 - - - - 71,451
Interests on bonds payable BT AT S, = 155,126 8,812 - - - 163,938
Interest on long term payable & S (07| & = 8,095 = = = - 8,095
Foreign exchange translation &5 & 17,043 4541 67,279 - - - 89,763
Divicend recognised as distrioution B2 A2k 2R & - - - 623,501 - - 623,501
Purchase of shares under share-award scheme
RERGRRHHEERD - - - - - 170,265 170,255
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NF+=A=1-H 1,118,572 69744 4,156,074 - 160,606 - 550499
t 1 January 2020 R=2=5%-A—H 1,118,572 69,744 4,156,074 - 160,606 - 5504,99
Financing cash flows B&B47%E 1016745 (224,439) - (19458) (45065 (151,307  (200614)
New leases entered 3112 5 E - - - - 21,714 - 21,114
Termination of lease & - - - - (2,776) - (2,776)
Interest on lease liabilty B & & (715 - 7,563 - - - - 7,563
Interests on bank borrowings ${7fEEHS - 54,737 - - - - 54,737
Interests on bonds payable i fE4F] 5 - 155,115 9,167 - - - 164,282
Interest on long term payable & Z3fE (1 5UBHIE - 7,158 - - - - 7,158
Foreign exchange translation SN2 & (64,706) (4,000) (269,353) - - - (338,059)
Dividend recognised as distribution B2 AR 2 & & - - - 796,458 - - 796,458

Purchase of shares under share-award scheme

BERHREEERD - - - -
At 31 December 2020 R=E-F4+-f=1-H 2,070,611 65,878 3,805,888 - 140,479 - 6,172,856

151,397 151,397
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Names and relationships with related parties
during the years are as follows:

Name Principal activities
18 TEER
ARk TMRENR B ERBERAA Manufacture and sale of
(‘FEEE) parts for optical instruments
kMR B ERFRAA EERBEXRSESRDH
(I&ax2])

PRNSEERESARAT(HE)
B EERE SERAT ([ 5E))

Sale of electronic devices
HES TR

BTN HARR AR
BITNESERAF (197)

Sale of electronic devices
HEETRE

Sale of electronic devices
HEBTRE

Jiangsu Medical Manufacture and sales of

i

EE 57 o ER

LB T2 medical instruments

EERHEBRSIM

HEEATIRS

(@) FRBMEALEBREREA
THIREM T

Relationship

BE

Company controlled by a close family member
of the Company’s chairman, Mr. Ye Liaoning
ARREREEREERBRATEGNAA

Company controlled by a close family member
of Company’s senior management,
Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARASRERAEREE LA RBRATEGHNRAF

Company controlled by a close family member
of Company’s senior management,
Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARREREEABRRUE L EMBRAMEHIN AR

Company controlled by a close family member
of Company’s senior management,
Mr. Zhang Guoxian
ARAEREEABREAE L EIMHRMZEHNAR]

An associate of the Group
AEEK SRR
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties:

Sales of goods $#HEE M

HEBEALIRE (&)

(b) HEAEALXS :

2020
—EoBE

—=—=

2019
—ET-NF
RMB’ 000
ARETIT

RMB’000
ARBT

RN E mE e 4,038 3,289
Jiangsu Medical jI %52 7 & - 613
4,038 3,902
Purchase of raw materials & B R4 %
BN E REE 11,711 12,740
AR R 421 544
EE R 2,696 4,676
REE REE 1,932 1,884
16,760 19,844

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has
the following significant balances with related
parties:

Current liabilities: RE & & :
Amounts due to related parties FE1<fBdiE A+ FE

(c) RBEHKR  AEFEREAEA
THERGERME :

31/12/2020
—g-%%F

—_—=

31/12/2019
—ET-NEF
+=—A=1+—H
RMB’ 000
ARBTIT

+t=A=t+-~8

RMB’000
ARBT

BN E A 5,354 3,960
BZE 1ER 722 2,269
REE REE 744 1,087
=hE R 176 182

6,996 7,498

All of the above amounts are of trade nature, unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

PIENELBEORES Y - B
& 2MEBEREEER -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # %2 — & —F4#+— A=+—HIFFZ
41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEAEALIRS (8)
(Continued)

(c) At the end of reporting period, the Group has (c) REBEHR  "EBEHEBEA
the following significant balances with related THEXRGEHRUT : (&)
parties: (Continued)

The following is an aged analysis of related parties balance of HWEMBKR EHEESEENREE

A N

trade nature at the end of reporting period. :i: EERRREC D ATAA T ©

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
) =

RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARETTT

Current liabilities: mENE & :

Within 90 days 90K A 5,561 5,971
91-120 days 912 120K 1,435 1,627
6,996 7,498
The Group allows a credit period of 90 days to related party AEBKTHEEATE S EWFKIEI
trade receivables (2019: 90 days). The average credit period KREEH(ZZ—NF : 90K) °
on purchases of goods from related parties is 90 days (2019: BEEATERNFEHEEEHRRIOKR
90 days). —ZT—NF 1 0K) °
(d) Compensation of key management personnel (d) EEEBAEHH
The remuneration of key management during the year is as FA - FEBFTEBEABEHMET :
follows:

31/12/2020 31/12/2019

—E-EF —E-NF

+=A=+—HB| +t=ZA=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET ARBT T

Short-term employee benefits 52 Hi{E 8 & F 21,665 20,455
Share award scheme %17 22 E) =t &) 27,156 23,152
Post-employment benefits B 1% 1& 7l 795 790

49,616 44,397
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42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted The Sunny Optical Technology (Group)
Company Limited Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Restricted
Share Award Scheme”) on 22 March 2010 (“Adoption Date”) with
a duration of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date. The
objective of the Restricted Share Award Scheme is to provide
the selected participants including directors of the Company,
employees, agents or consultants of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Selected Participants” with an opportunity to
acquire a proprietary interest in the Company; to encourage and
retain such individuals to work with the Group; and to provide
additional incentive for them to achieve performance goals, with
a view to achieving the objectives of increasing the value of the
Company and aligning the interests of the Selected Participants
directly to be the owners of the Company through ownership of
shares. The Group has set up The Sunny Optical Technology
(Group) Company Limited Restricted Share Award Scheme Trust
(the “Trust”) to administrate and hold the Company’s shares before
they are vested and transferred to Selected Participants. Upon
granting of shares to Selected Participants, the Trust purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open market
with funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.
Restricted Shares granted under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are subject to a vesting scale in tranches of one-third
to one-fifth each (as the case may be) on every anniversary date
of the grant date starting from the first anniversary date until the
third to the fifth anniversary (as the case may be). The vested
shares are transferred to Selected Participants at no cost except
that the expenses attributable or payable in respect of the transfer
of such shares of the Company shall be borne by the Selected
Participants.

42, [ty R ET &

ARFERZZE—ZEF=A=+=H (&K
MBED RN T R FASRR(EE) AR
7 A PR il 14 AR 10 22D ET &1 ([ BR il 1 AR 1 £
Bhatdll) - ZErElgRAMA R ETF
B o REIMERD ZBIFEEERFES
HERE (BEARRES - B8 « AAF
MEWBARIMNKESKER) ([FE28E
) BEBEARRIMAARZHRS
SRR BRERAEETIENENAL : &
BIMEBI RS FEUEREERIE  LLER
RAARNRRIEE  LEEBHRERERMD - £
RS EENESEARNRRENESE
ERENER - AEEERIZFHER
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T(MEED AEBRIFEARAAARNER
BOFBREETRELMEE - TRFE
SEEFHROK - FEEEARMS LE
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—FFEf_A=1—HIEFE

42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The grant of Restricted Shares is subject to acceptance by the
Selected Participants. The Restricted Shares granted to but not
accepted by the Selected Participants shall become unaccepted
shares. The Trustee may use any remainder of cash and non-cash
income received by the Trust in respect of the shares held upon
trust to purchase additional shares after defraying all expenses
incurred by the Trust prior to the purchase of additional shares.
The selected participants have no rights to receive dividend
income and cannot exercise any voting rights in respect of the
Restricted Shares granted to them during the vesting period. The
Trust shall hold the additional shares, unaccepted shares and
unvested shares upon trust and may make any grant to existing
or new Selected Participants after receiving instructions from
the Administration Committee of the Group. The fair value of the
Restricted Shares awarded was determined based on the market
value of the Company’s shares at the grant date.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, pursuant to the
original Restricted Share Award Scheme dated 22 March 2010,
the directors of the Company resolved to change (i) the vesting
period under the Restricted Share Award Scheme from three to
five years to two to five years; and (ii) the circumstances when the
Company’s shares would lapse, with immediate effect. The details
of the amendments have been disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 26 May 2015. The directors of the Company
considered that the above amendments have had no material
impact on the recognition and measurement of those shares
granted before 26 May 2015.

On 16 March 2020, the Board of Directors resolved to amend
the existing Scheme Rules and adopted the further amended and
restated Scheme Rules with effect from 22 March 2020 to extend
the share award scheme period for ten years. Under the further
amended and restated Scheme Rules, the Scheme shall (unless
previously terminated by a resolution of the Board of Directors)
terminate on the revised expiry date, being 21 March 2030.

2. R RBEE ()

BRHBHIERNAFFE2EEZNT A
FE - HTHESEEBANEZ ARSI
RO ST ERARD - SEANBAE
FERLIAE FETT A\ FF A M AR A7 A W B RO 247
Be MRS BWARBERERIIND - H
EBERIBROAACXNERNMEA
FASc o %I 2 E I B B IR A RO
R - WT%E%?%WW& EERTHR
1B A 1T B (AT A Z&MMF
FAFHRINED - NEERARD R
B AEAKRBEEZEEWNETRT
ARERFTHFESEERLZERD °
EREBORBIERD AR EEARE
KR REBESHNHESE -

BHE_Z-—AF+_A=+—HILEFE
BRERHA_ZE—ZTF=A_T-_HHR
ERHIERDZRE  ARRESRZE
RAEET (i) BR il ME AR 7 BB 5t B TE T 2 57 8
B B=2R2FE8F A _ZRHF : K(i)KN
RARGD KR IER - BIRER - HRAE
ANEERAAAIBAA=-ZS—RAFH
AZ+RAZAERER - AAAEER
R EMEITHZER_ZE-—H1FHA
TN BAETR S A RD B R R AT = I &
BAXE -

E/Q\—7—?£'E ﬁ—i—/\a i%auﬁz/{

FIRBERERA - WERANKCHE— BT
REIJZ2FFERA B ZFE_FF=A

T BERAR - AR REEE 8
RER+F - RELE-HBITREINNZ
SRR R ELERIEmB S (A=
E=TE-A-+H)KLL (BEKES
ERBRIEAAL) -
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42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42. R 8 Est2| (&)

Movements in the number of Restricted Shares granted and EEHRHMERNAOEE REREBARE
related fair value are as follows: REE T :

Weighted Number of
average Restricted
fair value Shares
(per share) granted
(M) s 2 & R &1t
FIPARE R & B
HK$ ('000)

PETT (FA%)

At 1 January 2019 R—ZE— A& —H—H 97.508 2,513

Forfeited B K3 102.460 (116)

Vested 252 B 61.123 (1,862)

Granted (Note a) E % (FffzEa) 101.976 2,390

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

RZE-NF+_A=+—HBR=ZT=_TF—H—H 124.122 2,925

Forfeited 2 %5 123.296 (112)

Vested 252 B 108.560 (1,488)

Granted (Note b) 2% (FizEb) 130.711 1,458

At 31 December 2020 R—Z -+ - A =+—H 135.931 2,783

Notes: BdaE -

(@) The Restricted Shares granted in 2019 vest on every anniversary date (a) RZZT—NFERLRHIHERDR SRR
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on FlIEROELE BN EEBASEBIRA TR
the following scales: BRoEE
Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales REIERED (BR)AAE HE

HK$ BT
829,117 shares 100.900 One-third 829,117 % 100.900 EPZ—
916,455 shares 100.900 One-half 916,455 % 100.900 D2
285,358 shares 88.200 One-third 285,358% 88.200 =92
53,573 shares 88.200 One-half 53,573 % 88.200 D2

305,586 shares 123.400 One-half 305,586/ 123.400 Dz
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42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42. R 8 Est2| (&)

Notes: (Continued) BisE : (&)

(o) The Restricted Shares granted in 2020 vest on every anniversary date (o) RZZE-_ZTFERERGHIMERG N ZHER
of the grant date of each batch of Restricted Shares in tranches on HME RGO E BB EBE BRI TR
the following scales: Bo#EE
Restricted Shares Fair value (per share) Scales REIERED (B8R ARE HiE

HK$ BIT
845,947 shares 122.500 One-half 845,947 % 122.500 =HZ—
27,595 shares 126.800 One-half 27,595 % 126.800 D2
233,868 shares 126.800 One-third 233,868% 126.800 =DZ—
351,181 shares 153.400 One-half 351,181 % 1563.400 D2

The fair value of Restricted Shares granted is measured on the B 3% R M AR (0 A A Fp (B TH E R Al B8R

basis of an observable market price. BT ERETE ©

The following table discloses details of the shares granted under THREBEAEEES (BFEARRESE)

Restricted Shares held by employees (including the directors of A IR RR B MR D B & H R D BB

the Company) of the Group and movements in such holdings RENZERNOEBHFFS

during the year:

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance

at during during during at
1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020
R-EB-2fF

R=B=—%F +t=A=+-8
— B — BW#&EER RERRH RERKRY REARNER ko=
000 000 ' 000 000 000

TR TR TR T Bz TR

Shares {0 2,925 1,458 (112) (1,488) 2,783

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance
at during during during at
1.1.2019 the year the year the year 31.12.2019
R=Z—h&

R-ZE—NF +=—A=+—H
—A—BH#&sH% REAFT RERKK RERNFB B 45 B4R
000 "000 "000 000 000
FB& F A% F A& FB% F A&

Shares &) 2,513 2,390 (116) (1,862) 2,925
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42. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 42. R 8 Est2| (&)

Details of the shares held by the directors of the Company EERMBARFESFRDNFEWT
included in the above table are as follows: ™

Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance
at during during during at
1.1.2020 the year the year the year 31.12.2020
Stk 2.3
— A — BRIk REREH REREKY REREER
’000 000 000 ’000
TR TR TR TR
Shares &5 253 35 - (108) 180
Balance Granted Forfeited Vested Balance
at during during during at
1.1.2019 the year the year the year 31.12.2019
R-T—h&F
—H— BRI RERE T RERRR RERNEE
000 000 000 000
T & T A& F A& TH&
Shares f% {7 79 228 - (54) 253
The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit or HE_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—HILFE "
loss was RMB151,811,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 Bz HIBR B LARE 25 45 B IR 0 32 [ B9 5RI8
(2019: RMB123,808,000). BARE151,811,00c (ZEE—AF : A

R#123,808,007T) °



@ Sunny Optical Technology (Group) Company Limited ® ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R MY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

43. B B X A =15

BRRBEHAN  ARBR_ZF_FTFR—
E-NEFt+ A=t BEERENNE

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HWELTER

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

A EEBE

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRORBRRE
ERER

NEFBWAT

Attributable
equity interest

held by the Group Principal activities

FEEEENEGER

2020 2019
ZE-EF —TNF

IRER

Sun Yu Optical Technology Limited The British Virgin Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
RTABREERAA Islands (‘The BVI" US$100,000 (directly held) REER
EE e Zi@M 100,000 0 (B#EHA)
((ERES])
Sun Xiang Optical Overseas Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
REXBEINERAT RREE LRERI0ET REER
Sun Li Instrument Overseas Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
RNEREINERAT RREE LRR10ET REER
Summit Optics Technology Limited The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Summit Optics Technology Limited BUHE LERIET REER
Summit Optics Investment Limited The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Summit Optics Investment Limited BUHE EER1ET REER
Sunny Optical Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
REABEINERAR i LRRI0ET REER
Sunny Instruments Overseas Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
RFRZENERAA i LRRI10ET REER
Summit Optical Technology Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Summit Optical Technology Limited i EERIAT RAZR
Summit Optical Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Summit Optical Investment Limited i LERIAT RAZR
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZEZTEFER=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NE+T_A=+—HHEERENKE
(Continued): NAFBENT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMRL,/ BRTRAERE/
WEAREH EfHbE SR TRER rRERENELRSE | TEER
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
* Zhejiang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
*IRTFAEERAT i contributed capital optical components
RMB430,000,000 EERHERETH
R ERRA
AR 430,000,0007
* Ningbo Sunny Instruments Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
F ERRFERERAT i contributed capital optical instruments
RMBS82,500,000 LERBERPES
H M RESRE
AR 82,500,000
* Sunny Optics (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* RFRE (Rl BRAF i contributed capital optical components
US$14,990,000 TERBERETH
R ERRA
14,990,000% 7T
* Ningbo Sunny Opotech Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
* ERATAEERERAA il contributed capital optoelectronics products
US$38,831,600 EERHERBER
i RESHRAR

38,831,600% T
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =F 15 (])
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBAHBEN  RRAGRZZEZZTEFER=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NET+_A=+—HHEERENKESB
(Continued): RAFBWNT (B) :
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
FMEKL ERTRARRE /
WEARER S/ SEh aRER AEERANESES | TEXK
2020 2019
BB “E-NE
#Ningbo Sunny Automotive Optech Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
HERRFEENERMBRAH i contributed capital of optical components
RMB5,000,000 EERHERETHY
R ERRA
AK#5,000,0007
#Xinyang Sunny Optics Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
HEGRTHERRAT i contributed capital optical components
RMB100,000,000 EERHERETHY
HRESRAR
AK#100,000,0007
#Ningbo Sunny Infrared Technologies Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 68.10% 68.10%  Research and development
FERRFAIMTEB AR i contributed capital of infrared technologies
RMB11,481,481 W% R BAIMEI
HRESRAR

AE#11,481,4817C

Sunny Opotech Korea Co., Ltd. Korea Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sales and development of
RENEBRAERAT] =l Korean Won (‘KRW') optoelectronics products
108,000,000 HERRERBER
@ 108,000,000% T

([e7))
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A R E1E (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAHN  ARBR_ZE_FTFR_
E-NFt_A=+—HHEESENHE
NEFBEWT (&) -

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration/ paid up share capital/

operation registered capital Principal activities
BERTRARRE/

EMER

Name of subsidiary

ERAL/
BN/ EE4Y

FEEERNEGRS | TRER

2020 2019
-8 -T-hE

—_—]—T

WEAALR

Sunny Korea Co.,Ltd. (Note a) Korea Ordinary shares 70.15% 56.70%  Manufacture and sale of
CESE NS ICRE)) GEE KRW3,080,880,000 optical components
4% 3,080,880,0008 ¢ EERBEERDTH
Sunny Japan Co., Ltd. (Note a) Japan Registered and 57.89% 55%  Trading of optical
RFARKA G (Ffita) BA contributed capital instruments and
JPY99,000,000 optoelectronics products
T RE SR A BEXERERNEED
99,000,000E 7
Sunny Opotech North America Inc The United States Common stock 100% 100%  Sales and development of
REFEEE (LX) BRAR e US$952,731 optoelectronics products
LiAR52,731% T HERFELEER
Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 100% 100%  Investment holding
Sunny Optical Corean (BVI) Limited REES LERI0ET RARR
Sunny Instruments Singapore PTE. Ltd. (Note b) ~ Singapore Ordinary shares N/A 100%  Sale and development of
RFERMMEBRAR (Hitb) 7 Singapore Dollar TR scientific instruments

8,350,000
188,350, 0004 KT

HERFENDES
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it B X R =15 (8]E)

(Continued)

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBAHBEN  ARAERZZ_TFER=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NET_A=+—HHEFENKES
(Continued): NAFBWNT (&) :

Name of subsidiary

WEBLALR

#Shanghai Sunny Yangming Precision Optics The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital optical components
$LERTHRAREREERAA RMB25,000,000 LERBERBEN
R ESRA
AR 25,000,000
#Ningbo Sunny Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.  The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
HERRTEERRBRAR i contributed capital optical instruments
RMB20,000,000 HERFRLPES
R ERRA
AR 20,000,000
#Sunny Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Investment holdings and
$RFERBRAA i contributed capital property leasing
RMB115,782,000 REBRENEAE
H M RESHRAR
AK#115,782,00070
#Zhejiang Sunny Optical Intelligence The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Sales and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. H contributed capital optoelectronics products

I RTERERRMERAR

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operation

AL/
Eatec YR-§ 5k

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/
registered capital
BRTRMERE /
TRER

RMB25,000,000
atft R EHBAR
AR#25,000,0007T

Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

FREEENEERS

2020 2019
—g-¥F —2-hfF

——

Principal activities

IRER

HERFELEER
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A R E1E (&)

(Continued)

BRAEHAHN  ARBR_ZE_FTFR_
E-NFt_A=+—HHEESENHE
NEFBEWT (&) -

Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated,
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows
(Continued):

Place of
Attributable
equity interest
held by the Group

incorporation/ Issued and fully

registration/ paid up share capital/
registered capital Principal activities
BRTRAERE/

EMER

Name of subsidiary operation

ERAL/
BN/ EE4Y

FEEERNEGRS | TRER

2020 2019
“EoRE TN

WEAALR

#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunyi The PRC Registered and 51.00% 51.00%  Investment holdings
Investment Co., Ltd. i contributed capital RAER
HERBLRN AR ZRAERER AR RMB2,000,000
R ERRA
ARE2,000,0007C
#Sunny Optical (Zhejiang) Research Institute The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide development,
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital service and consultation
HRFHE (L) HERER AR RMB50,000,000 of technology
H M RESHRE RAERIFE - RHR
AR 50,000,000 Ed
#Ningbo Mei Shan Bao Shui Gang Qu Sunxin The PRC Registered and 51.02% 51.02%  Investment holdings
Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership) & contributed capital REER
HERBLRHAERAERETRAB LR RMB3,000,000
(BR&a%) i RESHRR
AR 3,000,000
#Yuyao Sunny Optical Intelligence Technology The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provide optical
Co., Ltd. i contributed capital technology service
AR TR R BRINERAA RMB20,000,000 it BRI R
i RESHRAR

AK#20,000,0007C
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =F 15 (])
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBAHBEN  RRAGRZZEZZTEFER=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NET+_A=+—HHEERENKESB
(Continued): RAFBWNT (B) :
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMEYL BRTRMERE /
WEAREH S EEH TRER TRERENELRESE | TEEH
2020 2019
BB “E-NE
#Yuyao Gity Sunny Huitong Microcredit Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 100% 100%  Provision of
AR TER B BR AR i contributed capital financing service
RMB200,000,000 Rt SR RE
R ERRA
AK#200,000,0007C
Sunny Optics Vina Co., Ltd. (Note a) Vietnam Registered and 70.15% 56.7%  Sale of optoelectronics
RTHENEERAA (Hita) filfeg contributed capital components
US$150,000 HEXETH
R EARA
150,000
Sunny Optics Vina Hanoi Co., Ltd (Note a) Vietnam Registered and 70.15% 56.7%  Sale of optical
RTHEr2ERAA (fita) #E contributed capital components
US$100,000 HEXZTH
R EARA
100,000 7
Sunny Optics Europe GmbH German Registered and 100% 100%  Sale of optical
RFRMEEBRAT 2E contributed capital components
Euro 500,000 HEXDEM
M RESHRAR

500,0008 7T
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =1 (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEN  ARAFRZZEZTEFER=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NE+T_A=+—HHEERENKE
(Continued): NAFBENT (&)
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMRL,/ BRTRAERE/
WEAREH EfHbE SR TRER rRERENELRSE | TEER
2020 2019
BB —E-NE
Sunny Automotive Vina Co., Ltd Vietnam Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
REMHBENEERAH i) contributed capital optical components
US$3,000,000 EERHERETH
R ERRA
3,000,000% 7
Sunny Opotech Vietnam Co., Ltd. Vietnam Registered and 100% - Manufacture and sale of
REAEMEERAA fofEs contributed capital optoelectronics
US$3,000,000 components
H M RESRER EERHEXERH
3,000,000% 7
Sunny Opotech India Private Limited India Registered and 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
REFBEEHEBRAT fE contributed capital of optoelectronics
INR183,701,000 components
i RESHRE EERBERETH

183,701,000ENE E L

#Sunny Mobility Technologies (Ningbo) Co., Ltd. ~ The PRC Registered and 68.67% 60.07%  Sales and development of
(Note c) i contributed capital optoelectronics products

HERRFRTBRRNARAT RMB29,509,710 HERFELEER
(Mizke) AMRESRIARE

29,509,7107C
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. it |8 X R =F 15 (])
(Continued)
Particulars of subsidiaries indirectly held, unless otherwise stated, BREBHBEIN  RRARRZZT_ZTFR=
by the Company at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows E-NFT_A=T—HHEEFENNE
(Continued): RAFBWNT (B) :
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Attributable
registration/ paid up share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
HMEYL BRTRMERE /
WEAREH S EEH TRER TRERENELRESE | TEEH
2020 2019
BB “E-NE
#Zhejiang Sunny SmartLead The PRC Registered and 68.67% 60.07%  Sales and development of
Technologies Co., Ltd (Note ¢) i contributed capital optoelectronics products
#IRTEARMARAR (Hifc) RMBT73,514,500 HERREREER
HMRESRAARS
73,514,5007C
#Shanghai Wissen Automotive Sensing The PRC Registered and 68.67% 60.07%  Sales and development of
Technology Co., Ltd. (Note ¢) i contributed capital optoelectronics products
t LERRESBRERIMARRAR (Kiztc) RMB10,000,000 HERFENEER
HMREARAARS
10,000,0007T
#Sunny OmniLight Technology Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered and 93.39% 88.36%  Sales and development of
HERETRAREMBRAT i contributed capital optical products
RMB130,680,000 HERRERBER
HMREARAARS
130,680,0007T
#Ningbo Yuanheng Supply Chain The PRC Registered and 100% - Import and export agent
Management Co., Ltd. H contributed capital #EHEORE
HERTEHREEERERAT RMB1,000,000
AMRESRIARE

1,000,0007C
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 43. B A R E1E (&)
(Continued)

*  companies are sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises * EREDRRAPINEELE

# companies are domestic invested enterprises # ZERRAERNELE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end REZMER - B AR & T EAEB

of both years. H e

Note a:  The Group has acquired additional equity interest from NCI to Mizta: ZAEBEEENCIEARBEINRE @ LAE
strengthen the Group’s sales network in South Korea, Japan BAREENERE HARBREMNEE
and Vietnam. P -

Note b:  During the current year, the Group disposed all the equity Miztb : RAFEHE @ ANEEATE(LHE
interests of Sunny Instruments Singapore PTE. Ltd. which is JEENRES - MEFTASETESI N
mainly a research and development center to optimize the ERQAKER  ZRRETEE—E
strategy of research and development activity. MRS L

Note c:  The Group has acquired 8.60% equity interest from NCI to MisEc : ANEELABE ANCI8.60% /A% - LAsg
strengthen the Group’s business layout of advanced driving (EAREEBERETELEERSE RGN

assistant system in automobile industry. HIEMB
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 2 —F = F4# 1+ - HA=+—HIFFF

44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE MR NEMBEER
COMPANY
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE

31/12/2020 31/12/2019
—EEHF —E-NF
+=A=+—H” +=HA=+—8

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3EiEh&E

Property, plant and equipment 1% - #4828 2 35 & = 402
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BRARBAEBRNEREE 72,884 84,568
Debt instruments at amortised cost IR AN ENER T A - 27,962
Interests in subsidiaries, unlisted 3E_E M B A Ak 253,850 253,850
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU T E A 7 KB 1,797,607 1,795,984
Loans to subsidiaries f{E R a B 2,837,773 3,014,195
4,962,114 5,176,961
CURRENT ASSETS igh&E
Other receivables and prepayment H fth f& I FRI8 K T8 15 Z0E 709 5,890
Amounts due from subsidiaries & E A 778 560,018 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BARBEFAERNEHEE 282,711 373,638
Debt instruments at amortised cost ZE$EK ANt S HEE LA 52,823 55,749
Banks balances and cash $R1T458 IR & 153,057 129,377
1,049,318 564,654
CURRENT LIABILITIES JRE&h& &
Short term borrowings BEHIfEE 750,364 418,572
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{HIE A 7 FIE 17,715 23,892
Other payables E 1 f& 1 5K 1H 65,330 73,153
833,409 515,617
NET CURRENT ASSETS g & & F58 215,909 49,037
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & & ER B A& 5,178,023 5,225,998
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREN & &
Bonds payable E{J &% 3,895,888 4,156,074
3,895,888 4,156,074
NET ASSETS & & /FE 1,282,135 1,069,924
CAPITAL AND RESERVES &7~ & {5
Share capital &7 105,163 105,163
Reserves f# & 1,176,972 964,761

TOTAL EQUITY #Em 4858 1,282,135 1,069,924
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44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE UK NE)EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves R

Shares held Share

under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve profits

RERDZE

Bhlkf HERANRG A Bl RERT 5t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

(Note a)

(Fzra)
The Company X2
At 1 January 2019 R=E—NE—F—H 2,680 166,973 (7,288) (869) 617,506 779,002
Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year
ERENRERZ ARG ER - - - - 807,781 807,781
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
REROERERENRD - - (4.911) = = (4.911)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
BRMEREERN X ANFE - - - 4,054 - 4,054
Shares vested under share award scheme
RER R RB: 2 SBORA - - 8,577 (3,678) 101 -
Dividends received under share award scheme
RER (R B U E 1,846 - - - - 1,846
Dividends paid 2 k& (2,680) - - - (620,331) (623,011)

At 31 December 2019 K =E—hE+=A=+-8 1,846 166,973 (8622) (493) 805,057 964,761
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44. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 4. K NE)EER (F)
COMPANY (Continued)

Reserves (Continued) bt (4&)
Shares held Share

under share award
Share Special award scheme Retained

premium reserve scheme reserve profits Total

RERGER RH%R

R EE BHRE SESENRG TERE REEA @it
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBT R ARBT TR ARBTTR ARBT R
(Note a)
(fitzFa)

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income for the year

ENBHRENZENRER - - - - 1,006,283 1,006,283
Purchase of shares under share award scheme
BERORE:EEE RN - - (2,056) - - (2,056)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based payments
BANEREE RN NNFR - - - 4,442 - 4,442
Shares vested under share award scheme
BERR REEEIEENRG - - 4,197 (4,570) 373 -
Dividends received under share award scheme
BERA REREIKmRARE - - - - 2,049 2,049
Dividends paid B & (1,846) - - - (796,661) (798,507)
At 31 December 2020 R=Z-FF+-A=1+—H - 166,973 (6,481) (621) 1,017,101 1,176,972
Note: Ptz :
(a) The amount recorded in the special reserve was resulted from: (a) FTARRIRENRERS :
()  the capital contribution by/distribution to the Company in relation () ARARFUE L KB B AR AT
to the acquisitions/disposals of equity interests in subsidiaries; and EXE /FBDIK : &
(i) the difference between the net carrying amounts of equity iy MBARKENERFEARKRSESE
interests in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the shares of ERARRKRMEABEZAREEEZEALBR
their respective holding companies arisen in share exchange R GHREAHERE -

transactions during the group reorganisation.
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